Saddle Creek Community Services District DIRECTORS

1000 Saddle Creek Drive - Copperopolis, CA 95228 Ken Albertson, President
(209) 785-0100 — www.saddlecreekcsd.org Darlene DeBaldo, Vice President
Sue Russ

Roger Golden
Larry Hoffman

REGULAR BOARD MEETING AGENDA
May 15, 2018 2:00 PM
NOTE DIFFERENT LOCATION: Saddle Creek Sales Office
999 Saddle Creek Drive, Copperopolis, CA

CALL TO ORDER

ROLL CALL

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

CHANGES TO ORDER OF AGENDA

PUBLIC COMMENT (Each speaker is limited to two (2) minutes)

Members of the public are appreciated for taking the time to attend this meeting and provide comments on matters of District business.
Any member of the public may address the Board relating to any matter within the Board’s jurisdiction. This need not be related to any
item on the agenda; however, the Board cannot act on an item unless it was noticed on the agenda.

6. CONSENT CALENDAR

Consent Calendar items are considered routine and will be acted upon by one motion. There will be no separate discussion on these items
unless a member of the Board, Staff or a member of the Public requests specific items be set aside for separate discussion.

a. Review of monthly financial report, approval of bills and claims for the month of April 2018.
b. Approval of the minutes from the Board Meeting held April 17, 2018.

c. Approval of the revised minutes from the Board Meeting held March 20, 2018.

d

Adoption of a Resolution approving creation of a new, separate checking account at Umpqua bank
for the Road Project funds.

agpLNE

7. DISCUSSION AND ACTION ITEMS

The Board of Directors intends to consider each of the following items and may take action at this meeting. Public comment is allowed on
each individual agenda item listed below, and such comment will be considered in advance of each Board action.

a. Discussion and Action related to the development of the 2018/19 fiscal year budget; and
establish the final budget adoption public hearing date, time and location.

b. Adoption of a Resolution approving revised and updated personnel policies/employee
handbook.

c. Adoption of a Resolution calling a District General election of directors to be combined with
general statewide election in Calaveras County.

d. Continued development of Norms for Board member conduct to facilitate effective
deliberations; and Protocol to create the structure and process for effective Board meetings.

8. STAFF AND DIRECTOR REPORTS:

Brief reports may be provided by District staff and/or Board members as information on matters of general interest. No action will be
taken by the Board during Reports, however items discussed may be recommended for discussion and action on a future agenda.

a. General Manager's Report:
b. Site Manager’s verbal report.

9. ADJOURNMENT

Agenda Materials: May be viewed on the bulletin boards outside the Saddle Creek Pro Shop, on the Sports Club Bulletin Board and at the CSD
Website typically three days preceding each meeting date. Materials will also be available at the meeting.

Americans with Disabilities Act Compliance: If you require special assistance to participate in Board Meetings, please contact the CSD Clerk at
(209) 785-0100. Advance natification will enable the District to make reasonable arrangements to insure accessibility.

Page 1


http://www.saddlecreekcsd.org/
http://tuolumne.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=3&amp;amp%3Bamp%3Bclip_id=353&amp;amp%3Bamp%3Bmeta_id=18610
http://tuolumne.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=3&amp;amp%3Bamp%3Bclip_id=353&amp;amp%3Bamp%3Bmeta_id=18610
http://tuolumne.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=3&amp;amp%3Bamp%3Bclip_id=353&amp;amp%3Bamp%3Bmeta_id=18610
http://tuolumne.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=3&amp;amp%3Bamp%3Bclip_id=353&amp;amp%3Bamp%3Bmeta_id=18610
http://tuolumne.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=3&amp;amp%3Bamp%3Bclip_id=353&amp;amp%3Bamp%3Bmeta_id=18610
http://tuolumne.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=3&amp;amp%3Bamp%3Bclip_id=353&amp;amp%3Bamp%3Bmeta_id=18610

Saddle Creek Community Services District

Treasurer’s Report
April 30, 2018

Page 2



SADDLE CREEK COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT
FY 2017-18 MONTHLY BUDGET REPORT ANALYSIS

April 2018
ACTUALS BUDGET
Last Year This Year variance | Thisyear's | $ Budget | % Budget
Jul-Mar Jul-Mar Inc/ (Decr) | BUDGET Remaining | Remaining
EXPENDITURES
SERVICES AND SUPPLIES
ADMINISTRATION
OEO1 Audit Expense $ - $ 7,800 $ 7,800 100%
OE02 Accounting & Bookkeeping $ 310 $ 370 $ 60 $ 551 $ 181 33%
OEO02-1  Parcel Tax Implementation $ 5134 $ 3387 $ (@74 $ 4250 $ 863 20%
OEO03 On-line Back-up/Notary Fees/Bonds $ 326 $ 906 $ 580 $ 397 $ (509) -128%
OEO04 Legal Expenses $ - $ 750 $ 750 $ 1575 $ 825 52%
OEO05 Management Fees $ 53,530 $ 50,293 $ (3237) $ 68,775 $ 18,482 27%
OEO06 Insurance (Property Loss/Liability) $ - $ 260 $ 260 $ 8,925 $ 8,665 97%
OEO07 Miscellaneous/Contingency $ 1,789 $ 4,427 $ 2638 $ 8,000 $ 3,573 45%
OEO08 Professional Development (Travel/Training) $ 5887 $ 10,372 $ 4485 $ 8,925 $ (1,447) -16%
OEO09 Dues, Certifications & Subscriptions $ 3,425 $ 7,123 $ 3698 $ 6,200 $ (923) -15%
OE10 Uniform Expenses $ 1,925 $ 2,692 $ 768 $ 2,310 $ (382) -17%
OE11 Electric Power/Water/Sewer $ 4647 $ 4,816 $ 169 $ 9,405 $ 4,589 49%
OE12 Telephone/Internet Service $ 4627 $ 5,097 $ 469 $ 6,405 $ 1,308 20%
OE14 Office Supplies/Postage $ 4368 $ 5505 $ 1137 $ 5250 $ (255) -5%
OE15 Office Equipment Repair/Replacement $ 4449 $ 5916 $ 1467 $ 6,000 $ 84 1%
OE21 Office Equipment Lease $ - $ 1,897 $ 1897 $ 2,000 $ 103 5%
OE26 County Fees/LAFCO $ 3,067 $ 5020 $ 192 $ 6,825 $ 1,805 26%
OE30 Reimbursable Maint/Repair Expense $ 7,246 $ 4,268 $ (2979 $ 7,000 $ 2,732 39%
Castle & Cooke Subsidized Expenses $ - $ - $ 120,000 $ 120,000 100%
OE41 HR Consultant $ - $ 3500 $ 3500 $ 6,000 $ 2,500 42%
PEO3-1  Payroll Taxes - Administration $ 5422 $ 8,800 $ 3378 $ =
PEO06-1 Employee Wages - Administration $ 56,776 $ 97,541 $ 40765 $ =
Total Administration $ 162,929 $ 222,940 $ 60011 $ 286,593 $ 167,494 58%
$ $ 5
COMMON AREAS $ - $ -
OE16 Gate Maintenance & Opener Purchase $ 9,268 $ 12,717 $ 3449 $ 17,500 $ 4,783 27%
OE18-1 Landscape Supplies & Repairs $ 15439 $ 27,673 $ 1223¢ $ 25000 $ (2,673) -11%
OE18-3 Landscape Equipment Gas & Oil $ 3,306 $ 5216 $ 1910 $ 5250 $ 34 1%
OE18-4 Landscape Equipment Repair/Replacement $ 11,850 $ 16,015 $ 4165 $ 17,500 $ 1,485 8%
Payroll Taxes - Common Areas $ 9,436 $ 10,018 s 582 $ =
PEO6 -2 Employee Wages - Common Areas $ 114822 $ 124,132 ¢ 9310 $ =
Total Common Areas $ 164,121 $ 195771 $ 31651 $ 65250 $ 3,628 6%
5/6/2018 Page 3

1of3



SADDLE CREEK COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT
FY 2017-18 MONTHLY BUDGET REPORT ANALYSIS

April 2018
ACTUALS BUDGET
Last Year This Year variance | Thisyear's | $ Budget | % Budget
Jul-Mar Jul-Mar Inc/ (Decr) | BUDGET Remaining | Remaining
| EXPENDITURES
FIRE PROTECTION $
Fire Protection Services & Supplies $ - $ - $ -8 - $ =
PE03-3  Payroll Taxes - Fire Protection $ 355 $ - $ (355) $ - $ =
PE06-3  Employee Wages - Fire Protection $ 4,636 $ - $ (4636 $ = $ =
Total Fire Protection $ 4990 $ - $  (4,99) $ - $ -
MOSQUITO ABATEMENT $ -
OE22-1  Mosquito Control Products $ 9,497 $ 9,284 $ (2120 $ 152225 $ 5,941 39%
OE22-2  Mosquito Abatement Monitoring & Testing $ 2,109 $ 3492 $ 1383 $ 3,150 $ (342) -11%
OE22-3  Mosquito Abatement Vehicles Gas & Oil $ 7,267 $ 5695 $ (1573 $ 11550 $ 5,855 51%
OE22-4  Mosquito Abatement Equipment Maintenance $ 2,396 $ 9250 $ 685 $ 5250 $ (4,000) -76%
PE03-4  Payroll Taxes - Mosquito Abatement $ 990 $ 667 $ (324)
PE06-4 Employee Wages - Mosquito Abatement $ 12,738 $ 8,644 $  (4,094)
Total Mosquito Abatement $ 34,996 $ 37032 $ 203 $ 35175 $ 7,454 21%
STREETS $ - $ =
OE17 Streets/Sidewalks/Lighting Maint &Repair $ 12,374 % 5817 $ (6557 $ 14,175 $ 8,358 59%
PE03-5 Payroll Taxes - Streets $ 193 $ 6 3 @187 $ -
PE06 -5 Employee Wages - Streets $ 2,036 $ 80 $ (1955 $ =
Total Streets $ 14,603 $ 5904 $ (700) $ 14,175 $ 8,358 59%
WETLANDS $ - $ -
Wetlands Services and Supplies $ - $ - $ -8 - $ =
PE03-6  Payroll Taxes - Wetlands $ 93 $ - $ 93 $ - $ =
PE06-6 Employee Wages - Wetlands $ 1,165 $ - $ (1,165 $ = $ =
Total Wetlands $ 1,258 $ - $ (1,258) $ - $ -
Less: Distributed Payroll to Service Areas $ (208,661) $ (249,888) $ (41,226)
TOTAL SERVICES & SUPPLIES $ 174236 $ 211,760 $ 375524 $ 401,193 $ 186,933 47%
PERSONNEL COSTS $ - $ =
PEO1 Worker Compensation Insurance $ 489 $ (320) s 809) $ 22,237 $ 22,557 101%
PEO2 Health Insurance $ 45,892 $ 36,150 $ (9,742) $ 66,101 $ 29,951 45%
PEO3 Payroll Taxes $ 16,490 $ 19,490 $ 3000 $ 28517 $ 9,027 32%
PEO4 Processing Fees $ 1,128 $ 1,150 $ 2 $ 1,400 $ 250 18%
PEO5 Directors Stipend $ 5900 $ 5,600 $ (300) $ 6,000 $ 400 7%
PEO6 Employee Wages $ 192,172 $ 230,398 $ 38226 $ 326,653 $ 96,255 29%
TOTAL PERSONNEL COSTS $ 262,071 $ 292,468 $ 30,397 $ 450,908 $ 249,180 55%
5/6/2018 Page 4

20of 3



SADDLE CREEK COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT
FY 2017-18 MONTHLY BUDGET REPORT ANALYSIS

April 2018
ACTUALS BUDGET
Last Year This Year variance | Thisyear's | $ Budget | % Budget
Jul-Mar Jul-Mar Inc/ (Decr) | BUDGET Remaining | Remaining
| EXPENDITURES
D
EQUIPTMENT OUTLAY $ -
Ccoo1 (1) Cart & (1) Fogger $ 28,960 $ 2890 $ 29,000 $ 40 0%
Coo04 Cart - Mosquito Abatement Dec-16 $ 16,924 $ (16,924) $ -
TOTAL CAPITAL OUTLAY $ 16,924 $ 28,960 $ 12,036 $ 29,000 $ 40 0%
CAPITAL OUTLAY/STUDIES/ASSESEMENTS $
OE18-2 Landscape Design $ - $ 20,000 $ 20,000 100%
OE18-1 Landscape Improvements $ 25944 $ 35927 $ 9983 $ 80,000 $ 44,073 55%
OE17-2 Road Improvement (Incl. $15K Contingency) $ - $ - $ - $ 115,000 $ 115,000 100%
OE17-1 Road Project Management (Willdan) $ - $ 16,063 $ 16063 $ 43,000 $ 26,937 63%
OE17-2  Storm Drains $ 6,248 $  (6,248)
TOTAL STUDIES & ASSESSMENTS $ 32,192 $ 51,990 $ 19,798 $ 258,000 $ 206,010 80%
DEBT SERVICE $
OE20 John Deere Financing $ 13,357 $ 13,357 $ $ 16,100 $ 2,743 17%
TOTAL DEBT SERVICE $ 13,357 $ 13,357 $ $ 16,100 $ 2,743 17%
$ - $ =
TOTAL EXPENSES $ 498,779 $ 598,534 $ 99,755 $ 1,155,201 $ 732,999 63%
| PAYMENTS AND ASSESSMENTS RECEIVED
Assessment Income
Pymt No. 3: (5%) Aug 2017 (FY17) $ 29,186 $ 29,983 3 797 $ 46,222 $ 16,239
Pymt No. 1: (55%) Feb 2018 (FY18) $ 327472 $ 508,738 $ 181266 $ 508,446 $ (292)
Pymt No. 2: (40%) May 2018 (FY18) $ - $ 369,779 $ 369,779
Total Assessment Income $ 356,658 $ 538,721 $ 182,063 $ 924,447 $ 385,726
Reimbursement Income $ - $ =
Total Reimbursement Income $ 8,187 $ 8,467 $ 280 $ 7,000 $ (1,467)
Other Income $ - $ =
Total Other Income $ 3,015 $ 7546 $ 4531 $ 6,400 $ (1,146)
TOTAL PAYMENTS & ASSESSMENTS $ 367,861 $ 554,734 $ 186874 $ 937,847 $ 383,113 41%
Net Income $ (130,919) $ (43,800) $ 87118 $ (217,354) $ 161,490
Budgeted Deficit for
$100K in Landscape & Road planning/Design $158K
5/6/2018 Page 5 30f3



Statement of Cash Flows
For the 10 Months Ending April 30, 2018

OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net Income
Adjustments to reconcile Net Income
to Net Cash provided by Operations:
1200 Accounts Receivable
2000 Accounts Payable
2040 CSDA Bank of the West MC
2070 John Deere Open Account
2100 Payroll Taxes Payable
2150 Accrued Payroll
Other Current Payables
Net cash provided by operating activities
Cash Provided by investment earnings
Cash Transfers
Net cash increase for period
Cash at beginning of period (7/1/2017)

Cash at end of period

Cash Flow Projection

Beginning Checking Account Balance
Deposits Assessments
Transfers In
Series 2018 Installment Sale
Disbursements
Paychecks
Payroll Taxes
Checks Written
Other Operating & Admin Costs

Variable Costs-Repairs & Replacements

Property Liability Insurance
Worker's Comp Insurance
Capital Outlay
Projects Costs
Human Resources Practioners
Willdan
NBS
SDFA (Road Construction Loan)
Landscape Architect & Survey
Credit Card Charges
Cleared check dated next month

ACS Debits - (Utilities, Lease Pymts,P/R processing)

Transfers Out

Total Disbursements

Ending Checking Account Balance

(1) Includes outstanding bonus Check
(2) 40% based on Jan Actual
(3) Per G. Hebard

Saddle Creek Comm Srvs District
Treasurer's Report
April 2018

Umpqua Umpqua Umpqua Umpqua Umpqua
Umpqua Bank | | Calaveras Co Bank CD | BankCD | BankCD | BankCD | BankCD | YTD Total
Checking Fund 2188 LAIF #7405 #46165 #46207 #46249 | #46124
(43,800) - (43,800)
(25,295) (25,295)
(18,789) (18,789)
(184) (184)
137 137
2,766 2,766
368 368
(84,797) B B B B B - - (84,797)
98 25 25 118 119 386
26,790 100,000  (26,243)  (25213)  (25213)  (25253)  (25,254) (387)
(58,007) - 100,000  (26,145)  (25,188)  (25,188)  (25,135)  (25,135) (84,798)
382,100 - - 26,145 25,188 25,188 25,135 25,135 508,891
324,093 - 100,000 - - - - - 424,093
FY 2017-18 FY 2018-19
Apr-2018 | [ May-2018 [Jun-2018] Jul-2018 [ Aug-2018 | Sep-2018 | Oct-2018 | Nov-2018 | Dec-2018
$ 374016 $ 324,093 $628,982 $571,161 $ 513,139 $ 505317 $ 453,495 $ 405874 $ 353,052
$ 370,000 $ 46,000
$ 100,944
$ 700,000
$ 18773 1 $ 18,000 $ 18,000 $ 18,000 $ 18,000 $ 18,000 $ 18,000 $ 18,000 $ 18,000
$ 7,268 (2 $ 7500 $ 7500 $ 7500 $ 7,500 $ 7,500 $ 7,500 $ 7,500 $ 7,500
$ 8746 $ 11,000 $ 11,000 $ 11,000 $ 11,000 $ 11,000 $ 11,000 $ 11,000 $ 11,000
$ 2434 (3 $ 6,622
$ 738 8,500
$ 22,237
®©) $ 5000 $ 4,200 $ 6000 $ 6800 $ 12,000
$ 500 $ 500
$ 1,792 $ 4000 $ 3000 $ 3000 $ 3000 $ 3,000
$ 1,089 $ 1,000 $ 2000 $ 2000 $ 2,000
@
© $ 8,000 $ 8000 $ 8000 $ 8000
$ 13794 % 7930 $ 8000 $ 8000 $ 8000 $ 8000 $ 8000 $ 8000 $ 8000
$ (5678 $ (5678 $ (5678) $ (5678) $ (5678) $ (5678) $ (5678) $ (5678) $ (5,678)
$ 2077 % 2000 $ 2000 $ 2000 $ 2000 $ 2000 $ 2000 $ 2000 $ 2,000
5 100,000 $ 700,000
5 150,868 $ 765111 $ 57,822 $ 58,022 $ 53,822 $ 51,822 $ 47,622 $ 52,822 $ 40,822
628,982 $ 571,161 $513,139 $ 505317 $ 453,495 $ 405874 $ 353,052 $ 312,230

324,093

Check $

(4) If funded April 15, 2018 - payments begin April 15, 2019; No loan fees are paid by the District
(5) Prelim Design $25K, Survey $5K; $2K contingency

(6) 2017-18 Generator; 2018-19 Proposed Budget

This cash flow projection uses estimates of outlays using information available at the time of preparation

Page 6

Prepared by: Dolores Baker
6-May-18




Saddle Creek Comm Srvs District

BALANCE SHEET
As of April 30, 2018

TOTAL
ASSETS
Current Assets
Bank Accounts
1000 Umpqua Bank Checking 324,093
1040 Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF) 100,000
Total Bank Accounts $424,093
Total Current Assets $424,093
Fixed Assets
1500 Capital Assets 13,127,405
1600 Accumulated Depreciation (851,858)
Total Fixed Assets $12,275,547
TOTAL ASSETS $12,699,641
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
Liabilities
Current Liabilities
Accounts Payable
2000 Accounts Payable 9,014
Total Accounts Payable $9,014
Credit Cards
2040 CSDA Bank of the West MC 4,663
Total Credit Cards $4,663
Other Current Liabilities
2100 Payroll Taxes Payable 365
2110 Wage Garnishments Payable 179
2150 Accrued Payroll 11,232
2170 Payroll Corrections (1)
2200 Sales Tax Payable 532
Total Other Current Liabilities $12,306
Total Current Liabilities $25,983
Long-Term Liabilities
2500 Lease Payable - John Deere 63,334
Total Long-Term Liabilities $63,334
Total Liabilities $89,317
Equity
3800 Developer Capital Contributions 12,198,796
3900 Retained Earnings 455,328
Net Income (43,800)
Total Equity $12,610,323
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY $12,699,641

7



Saddle Creek Comm Srvs District

2040 CSDA Bank of the West MC, Period Ending 04/28/2018
RECONCILIATION REPORT
Reconciled on: 05/04/2018
Reconciled by: Dolores Baker

Any changes made to transactions after this date aren't included in this report.

Summary usD
Statement beginning balance 13,794.28
Charges and cash advances cleared (43) 7,929.71
Payments and credits cleared (1) -13,794.28
Statement ending balance 7,929.71
Uncleared transactions as of 04/28/2018 3,902.56
Register balance as of 04/28/2018 11,832.27
Cleared transactions after 04/28/2018 0.00
Uncleared transactions after 04/28/2018 918.13
Register balance as of 05/04/2018 12,750.40
Details

Charges and cash advances cleared (43)

DATE TYPE REF NO. PAYEE AMOUNT (USD)
03/20/2018 Expense 806518 Hunt & Sons, Inc. 145.89
03/26/2018 Expense 808477 Hunt & Sons, Inc. 234.35
04/01/2018 Expense Intuit - QBO Online 30.99
04/01/2018 Expense 69.63 Cal Waste Recovery Systems 69.63
04/02/2018 Expense 9696633 Lowe's 130.57
04/02/2018 Expense S4600899.002 General Plumbing Supply 219.27
04/03/2018 Expense MCFJX7E820403 Copper Auto & Marine 34.00
04/03/2018 Expense H251172 Hughson Farm Supply 1,101.21
04/03/2018 Expense 14054731 Indeed for Employers 88.58
04/04/2018 Expense 1678948618 Verizon Wireless 126.42
04/05/2018 Expense 2018 Legislative Days California Special Districts Associ... 150.00
04/06/2018 Expense 147904 Kathy's Miracle Cleaners 171.75
04/06/2018 Expense 6829 USPS 1.63
04/06/2018 Expense 11515 Staples 3.67
04/06/2018 Expense 98 4436 Orchard Supply Hardware 47.94
04/06/2018 Expense 0946 Staples 12.70
04/09/2018 Expense 816269 Hunt & Sons, Inc. 358.87
04/09/2018 Expense 18790 Evergreen Research 420.42
04/09/2018 Expense 959278 McDillard's Feed & Supply 58.00
04/10/2018 Expense 304660 J.Milano Co., Inc. 215.78
04/10/2018 Expense Microsoft Office 12.50
04/10/2018 Expense 61711489 DMV Renewal 52.00
04/10/2018 Expense 65200132268 Les Schwab Tires 307.79
04/10/2018 Expense 7401643-A-1 Ewing 408.09
04/12/2018 Expense H252288 Hughson Farm Supply 468.45
04/13/2018 Expense 049668 Copperopolis Cruisers 25 30.00
04/13/2018 Expense 901308 8883 Family Dollar 146.24
04/16/2018 Expense 6678 00002 30409 Home Depot 129.16
04/17/2018 Expense 01163505 Saddle Creek Country Club 71.05
04/17/2018 Expense 4393 Orchard Supply Hardware 21.54
04/18/2018 Expense 01/16-3/15/18 CCWD 285.88
04/18/2018 Expense March Billing Calaveras Telephone Co. 321.13
04/19/2018 Expense 2155077 Lowe's 93.32
04/20/2018 Expense 851905874 Chevron Station 70.02
04/20/2018 Expense 432891075 Chevron Gas n Goodie 91.74
04/20/2018 Expense 000030 Farnesi's Steakhouse & Lounge 54.00
04/23/2018 Expense 23528272 Lowe's 268.30
04/23/2018 Expense 5 Indian Creek Car Wash 27.00
04/24/2018 Expense 0089954-IN Valley Tool Manufacturing Co. 773.24
04/24/2018 Expense H253731 Hughson Farm Supply 85.69
04/24/2018 Expense 1842 00015 63881 Home Depot 242.33
04/25/2018 Expense 13804 USPS 125.20
04/26/2018 Expense April Billing Stmt Young's Copper Ace Hardware 223.37
Total 7,929.71

Page 8




Payments and credits cleared (1)

DATE TYPE REF NO. PAYEE AMOUNT (USD)
03/28/2018 Bill March Stmt Bank of the West -13,794.28
Total -18,794.28
Additional Information

Uncleared charges and cash advances as of 04/28/2018

DATE TYPE REF NO. PAYEE AMOUNT (USD)
04/05/2018 Expense 32KT6LDQ Hyatt Regency 398.00
04/12/2018 Expense 817755 Hunt & Sons, Inc. 678.69
04/24/2018 Expense 16617084 Lowe's 180.50
04/26/2018 Expense 9034203 Lake Tahoe Oil 71.38
04/27/2018 Expense 0085 Riva Grill 38.33
04/27/2018 Expense 449186 Belkorp Ag, LLC 1,306.91
04/27/2018 Expense 449196 Belkorp Ag, LLC 710.12
04/28/2018 Expense 39 Great Wall Restaurant 60.04
04/28/2018 Expense 317464 Lake Tahoe Resort Hotel 391.36
04/28/2018 Expense 35 Red Hut Ski Run 25.80
04/28/2018 Expense 0662022 Chevron 41.43
Total 3,902.56
Uncleared charges and cash advances after 04/28/2018

DATE TYPE REF NO. PAYEE AMOUNT (USD)
04/30/2018 Expense 450229 Belkorp Ag, LLC 760.78
05/01/2018 Expense Intuit - QBO Online 30.99
05/04/2018 Expense 3/13-4/12/18 Verizon Wireless 126.36
Total 918.13

Page 9



Saddle Creek Comm Srvs District

CHECK DETAIL
April 2018

DATE NUM NAME MEMO/DESCRIPTION AMOUNT
1000 Umpqua Bank Checking
04/01/2018 2269 Kampa Community Solutions, LLC  Monthly Management Fees (5,678.27)
04/01/2018 1975179 John Deere Financial Tractor Lease Payment (1,335.71)
04/02/2018 May Fee Intuit Full Service Payroll Payroll Processing Fee -MAY (133.00)
04/04/2018 March PG&E - 7193 Utilities (388.46)
charges
04/05/2018 DD DOLORES C BAKER Pay Period: 03/16/2018-03/31/2018 (1,106.02)
04/05/2018 2270 California State Disbursement Unit Garnishments Payable (103.00)
04/05/2018 DD Gregory Hebard Pay Period: 03/16/2018-03/31/2018 (2,349.52)
04/05/2018 DD BRADLEY D NICKELL Pay Period: 03/16/2018-03/31/2018 (743.97)
04/05/2018 DD Gregory Hebard Direct Deposit 2 (50.00)
04/05/2018 DD NICOLE D MC CUTCHEN Pay Period: 03/16/2018-03/31/2018 (1,582.10)
04/05/2018 DD Ralph M. McGeorge Pay Period: 03/16/2018-03/31/2018 (1,879.76)
04/11/2018 IRS Tax Payment for Period: 04/04/2018-04/06/2018 (2,802.31)
04/11/2018 CA EDD Tax Payment for Period: 04/04/2018-04/06/2018 (568.86)
04/17/2018 2274 Calaveras First Company, Inc. Recruitment Ad (167.00)
04/17/2018 2273 Bank of the West CSDA Credit Card March Stmt (13,794.28)
04/17/2018 2272 Aaronson, Dickerson etal Attorney’s Fees (375.00)
04/17/2018 2276 Human Resources Practitioners Review & Revise Personnel P&Ps Monthly Retainer (500.00)
04/17/2018 2275 Heluma Health Chicken Sera Testing - Mosquito Abatement Monitoring (139.00)
04/17/2018 2277 NBS Quarterly Special Tax Admin Fee per Contract (1,088.66)
04/17/2018 2284 K.A.R. Service Landscape Equipt Maintenance (60.00)
04/17/2018 2280 SDRMA-Prop/Liability Insurance Property/Liability Insurance (72.58)
Additions - Fogger & Trailer
04/17/2018 2279 Willdan Road Project Mgmt & Design Services (1,791.75)
04/17/2018 2278 VALLEY ENTRY SYSTEMS, INC. Entry Gate Maintenance (551.51)
04/18/2018 CA EDD Tax Payment for Period: 01/01/2018-03/31/2018 (911.77)
04/20/2018 2281 California State Disbursement Unit Garnishments Payable (103.00)
04/20/2018 Wire Fee Umpqua Bank (30.00)
04/20/2018 DD BRADLEY D NICKELL Pay Period: 04/01/2018-04/15/2018 (730.71)
04/20/2018 DD Ralph M. McGeorge Pay Period: 04/01/2018-04/15/2018 (1,879.77)
04/20/2018 DD NICOLE D MC CUTCHEN Pay Period: 04/01/2018-04/15/2018 (1,582.11)
04/20/2018 DD Gregory Hebard Direct Deposit 2 (50.00)
04/20/2018 DD DOLORES C BAKER Pay Period: 04/01/2018-04/15/2018 (552.52)
04/20/2018 DD Gregory Hebard Pay Period: 04/01/2018-04/15/2018 (2,349.54)
04/23/2018 2285 Kevin’s Tree Service Tree Removal (800.00)
04/25/2018 CA EDD Tax Payment for Period: 04/18/2018-04/20/2018 (525.51)
04/25/2018 IRS Tax Payment for Period: 04/18/2018-04/20/2018 (2,459.73)
04/27/2018 2286 Kevin’s Tree Service Tree Removal (700.00)
04/27/2018 Wire Fee Umpqua Bank (30.00)
04/30/2018 354707820  USBank Equipment Finance Copier Lease (144.79)

Total for 1000 Umpqua Bank Checking

$ (50,110.21)

Page 10

7m



Saddle Creek Community Services District DIRECTORS

1000 Saddle Creek Drive - Copperopolis, CA 95228 Ken Albertson, President
(209) 785-0100 — www.saddlecreekcsd.org Darlene DeBaldo, Vice President
Sue Russ

N

o akw

Roger Golden
Larry Hoffman

REGULAR BOARD MEETING MINUTES
April17, 2018 2:00 PM
Saddle Creek Lodge
1001 Saddle Creek Drive, Copperopolis, CA

CALL TO ORDER 2:05

ROLL CALL Vice President DeBaldo, Director Hoffman, Director Golden, Director Russ, GM
Kampa, Board Clerk McCutchen, Accountant Baker, Site Manager Hebard —President Albertson
absent.

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

CHANGES TO ORDER OF AGENDA None.

PUBLIC COMMENT None 6 people from the public present.

CONSENT CALENDAR Director DeBaldo approves consent calendar, Director Hoffman seconds.
Consent calendar approved unanimously minus the meeting minutes form the Special Board
Meeting held March 21, 2018, they need to be revised and will come before the Board for approval
in May’s regular board meeting. — President Albertson absent.

a. Review of monthly financial report, approval of bills and claims for the month of March 2018.
b. Review of Third Quarter Investment Report.
c. Approval of the minutes from the Special Board Meeting held March 21, 2018.

DISCUSSION AND ACTION ITEMS

a. Presentation from the Landscape Adhoc Committee regarding the concepts for the preliminary
landscape design under preparation by Orr Design office. Ad hoc committee presented a
landscape presentation from 2:10 — 3:25 to the Board.

Discussion and Action regarding continued short-term entrance area landscape improvements.

c. Adoption of a Notice of Exemption for the 2018 road improvement project pursuant to the
California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA). Director Hoffman makes a motion to approve
the CEQA exemption. Director Golden seconds, motion passes unanimously. President
Albertson- absent.

d. Approval of the 2018 Saddle Creek road improvements and authorization to issue the Notice to
Bidders and secure project bids. Director Hoffman makes a motion to approve the
authorization to issue the Notice to Bidders and secure project funds. Director Russ
seconds, motion passes unanimously. President Albertson — absent.

e. Adoption of a Resolution approving an agreement with Dave Ragland Engineering for the
survey work necessary for the preliminary landscape design. Director Golden makes a
motion to approve an agreement with Dave Ragland Engineering for the survey work
necessary for the preliminary landscape design. Director Hoffman seconds, motion
passes unanimously. President Albertson —absent.

f. Discussion and Action related to the development of the 2018/19 fiscal year budget. Board
agrees to move this item to June agenda. President Albertson —absent.

g. Discussion and Action related to the draft equipment replacement reserve program. Board
agrees to move this item to June agenda. President Albertson —absent.

h. Continued development of Norms for Board member conduct to facilitate effective
deliberations; and Protocol to create the structure and process for effective Board meetings.
Board agrees to postpone this item td’Majlagenda. President Albertson —absent.


http://www.saddlecreekcsd.org/

8. STAFF AND DIRECTOR REPORTS:

a. General Manager’'s Report: GM reported he will be on vacation August 17 — 31, 2018.
* Management Objectives Report
b. Site Manager's verbal report.

9. ADJOURNMENT 5:18PM

Page 12



Saddle Creek Community Services District DIRECTORS

1000 Saddle Creek Drive - Copperopolis, CA 95228 Ken Albertson, President
(209) 785-0100 — www.saddlecreekcsd.org Darlene DeBaldo, Vice President
Sue Russ

N

o akw

8.

Roger Golden
Larry Hoffman

SPECIAL BOARD MEETING MINUTES
March 21, 2018 2:00 PM
Saddle Creek Lodge

1001 Saddle Creek Drive, Copperopolis, CA

CALL TO ORDER meeting called to order 2:00pm

ROLL CALL President Albertson, Vice President DeBaldo, Director Golden, Director Hoffman,
Director Russ-ABSENT

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

CHANGES TO ORDER OF AGENDA None

PUBLIC COMMENT No comment, 6 people present

CONSENT CALENDAR No issues with the Board with the consent calendar. Director Russ Absent.
a. Review of monthly financial report, approval of bills and claims for February 2018.
b. Approval of the minutes from the Regular Board Meeting held February 20, 2018.

c. Adoption of a resolution approving the proposed increase in the weed abatement fee charged
for mowing of vacant lots.

DISCUSSION AND ACTION ITEMS

a. Adoption of a Resolution Authorizing the Execution and Delivery of an Installment Agreement
and Authorizing and Directing Certain Actions in Connection with the Acquisition and
Construction of the Saddle Creek Road Improvements 2018. Director Hoffman makes a
motion to approve contingent upon delivery of letter from the lawyer, Vice President
DeBaldo seconds. Motion passes unanimously. Director Russ Absent.

b. Discussion and Action Related to Clarification of the Phase 1 & Phase 2 Landscape
Improvement Projects and Related Landscape Architect and Construction Work. No action
taken. Director Russ Absent.

c. Discussion and Action Related to District Actions and Involvement in the Implementation of the
Second Community Entrance. No action taken.

d. Discussion and Action Regarding a Proposed Policy Prescribing Rules and Regulations
Relating to the Management of Wildlife Habitat Easements Throughout the Community.
President Albertson directed General Manager Kampa to develop a policy to be
presented at a later meeting date. Director Russ Absent.

e. Adoption of a Resolution Amending the Privacy Gate Rules, Administrative Regulations
Section 2003-1. Director Hoffman makes a motion to approve the Resolution amending
the privacy gate rules, Director Golden seconds. Motion passes unanimously. Director
Russ Absent.

f. Continued development of Norms for Board member conduct to facilitate effective
deliberations; and Protocol to create the structure and process for effective Board meetings.
Directors and General Manager agree to move this item to the April agenda. Director
Russ Absent.

g. Adoption of a Resolution Authorizing Agreement with Umpqua Bank to Participate in the CSDA
District Purchasing Card Program. Director Hoffman makes a motion for the adoption of a
Resolution authorizing agreement with Umpqua Bank to participate in the CSDA District
Purchasing Card Program. Director Golden seconds. Motion passes unanimously.
Director Russ Absent.

STAFF AND DIRECTOR REPORTS:
a. General Manager’s Report: Page 13


http://www.saddlecreekcsd.org/

b. Site Manager’s verbal report.
9. ADJOURNMENT Meeting adjourned at 3:52pm

| CERTIFY THE MARCH 21, 2018 MEETING MINUTES HAVE BEEN BOARD APPROVED IN THE REGULAR BOARD MEETING HELD
APRIL 17, 2018.

Peter Kampa, Secretary DATE

Page 14



RESOLUTION NO. 2018-09

A RESOLUTION FO THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE SADDLE CREEK COMMUNITY

SERVICES DISTRICT AUTHORIZING THE ESTABLISHMENT OF A NEW AND SEPARATE

INTEREST BEARING CHECKING ACCOUNT AT UMPQUA BANK FOR THE PURPOSE OF
PAYING THE COSTS OF THE 2018 ROAD IMPROVEMENT PROJECT

WHEREAS, the Saddle Creek Community Services District (the “District”) is a public agency
duly organized and existing under and pursuant the laws of the State of California and;

WHEREAS, direction to the President of the Board, the General manager or a designee in writing
to make appropriate arrangement to establish a special fund into which the proceed of Installment Sales
Agreement #17-003 dated March 21, 2018 was given in Section 3 of Saddle Creek Community Services
District Board Resolution 2018-  passed and adopted on March 21, 2018 and;

NOW, THEREFORE, it is resolved by the Board of Director of the Saddle Creek Community
Services District that a new and separate interest bearing Public Funds checking account be opened at

Umpgqua Bank, 3505 Spangler Lane, Suite 300, Copperopolis, CA 95228 for the purpose of paying the
cost of the 2018 Road Improvement Project and;

FURTHER RESOLVED that the account be operated by any two of the authorized signer listed
below:

Peter Kampa, General Manager
Dolores Baker, Accountant
Nicole McCutchen, Clerk of the Board

WHEREFORE, this Resolution is passed and adopted by the Board of Directors of the Saddle
Creek Community Services District on May 15, 2018, by the following vote:

AYES:
NOES:
ABSENT:
ABSTAIN:

ATTEST:

Peter Kampa, Secretary

Ken Albertson, President - Board of Directors

CERTIFICATE OF SECRETARY

Page 15



I, Peter Kampa, the duly appointed and acting Secretary of the Board of Directors of
the Saddle Creek Community Services District, do hereby declare that the foregoing
RESOLUTION NO. 2018-09

was duly passed and adopted at a Regular Meeting of the Board of Directors of the
Saddle Creek Community Services District, duly called and held on May 15, 2018.

DATED:

Page 16



Saddle Creek Community Services District

Regular Board Meeting May15, 2018

AGENDA SUPPORTING DATA

7. DISCUSSION AND ACTION ITEMS
a. Discussion and Action related to the development of the 2018/19 fiscal year budget.

Recommended Motion
No action is required at this time, however Board input and direction on the desired alternative is
encouraged.

Background

During the April Regular Board meeting, the Board of Directors reviewed a preliminary draft of the
2018/19 fiscal year budget. Following significant discussion, direction was given to staff to provide
alternative funding scenarios to balance the budget and provide the desired level of services.

Included herein is the 2" draft budget, in the following forms:

1. Containing the annual special tax levy at $1442 per year per Equivalent single Family Unit.
This equates to the proposed $1400 levy increased by the cost of living as detailed in the
special tax measure. In this version of the budget you will find that the Castle & Cooke
subsidy is not funded and excess revenue is appropriately placed in the 2018 Road
Improvement Project Contingency; and

2. Containing the annual special tax levy at $1545 per year per Equivalent single Family Unit.
This equates to the proposed $1500 levy increased by the cost of living as detailed in the
special tax measure. In his version of the budget you will find that the Castle & Cooke subsidy
is fully funded and the excess revenue is appropriately placed in the 2018 Road Improvement
Project Contingency.

The final draft budget will be presented to the Board at its June Regular meeting during a public hearing.

Page 17



Saddle Creek Community Services District

2018-19 Proposed BUDGET

2017-18 Proposed Projected 2018-19
BUDGET Budget BALANCE Proposed
Inc./(Decr. 6-30-2018 BUDGET
Income
INO1 Assessments 924,447.00 101,071.00 924,447.00| $ 1,025,518
INOS5 Interest Income 0.00 434.00
INO6 Interest - County 0.00 410.00
INO7 Rebates Received 0.00 1,335.00
IN30 Expense Reimbursement Revenue 7,000.00 (4,000.00) 8,468.00 3,000
IN41 Gate Opener Income 1,100.00 1,217.00 1,100
IN59 Other Misc. Revenue 6,400.00 200.00 6,600.00 6,600
Services 0.00 0.00
TOTAL INCOME]| $ 937,847.00| $ 98,371.00f $ 942,911.00] $ 1,036,218
Expenses

Services & Supplies
Administrative Expenses

OEO01 Audit Expense 7,800.00 3,900 0.00| $ 11,700
OEO02 Finance Expenses 551.00 49 463.00 600
OEO02-1 - Financial Assessment (NBS) 4,250.00 1,250 5,287.00 5,500
OEO03 Advertising 397.00 103 906.00 500
OEO04 Legal Expenses 1,575.00 125 1,575.00 1,700
OEO05 Management Fees 68,775.00 625 61,650.00 69,400
OE41 HR Consultant 6,000.00 0 7,000.00 6,000
OEO06 Insurance (Prop Loss & Liab) 8,925.00 575 8,760.00 9,500
OEQ7 Miscellaneous/Contingency 8,000.00 0 8,000.00 8,000
OEO08 Professional Development 8,925.00 2,075 10,958.00 11,000
OEQ9 Dues, Certs, Bonds & Subscriptions 6,200.00 1,100 7,123.00 7,300
OE10 Uniform Expense 2,310.00 690 2,692.00 3,000
OEL11 Electric Power/Water/Sewer 9,405.00 (3,605) 5,514.00 5,800
OE12 Telephone & Internet 6,405.00 (405) 5,670.00 6,000
OE14 Office Supplies/Postage 5,250.00 450.00 5,655.00 5,700
OE15 Office Equipment Repair/Replace 6,000.00 2,000.00 5,916.00 8,000
OE21 Office Equipment Lease 2,000.00 700.00 2,187.00 2,700
OE26 County Fees/LAFCO 6,825.00 3,675.00 9,642.00 10,500
Castle & Cooke Subsidized Expenses 120,000.00 (120,000.00) 0.00 0
OE30 Reimbursable Maintenance Exp 7,000.00 (4,000.00) 4,268.00 3,000
Total Administrative Expenses $ 286,593.001 $ (110,693.00) 153,266.00| $ 175,900
Common Areas
OE16 Gate Maint/Repair/Staff/Openers 17,500.00 900.00 17,491.00 $ 18,400
OE18 Landscape Supplies & Repairs 25,000.00 4,900.00 28,514.00 29,900
OE18-3 Landscape Equip Gas & Oil 5,250.00 250.00 5,216.00 5,500
OE18-4 Landscape Equipment Repair & Replacemer, 17,500.00 0.00 17,475.00 17,500
Total Common Areas $ 65,250.00| $ 6,050.00 68,696.00 $ 71,300

Proposed Budget Doc $1442 CoRtigéitial Page 1



Saddle Creek Community Services District

2018-19 Proposed BUDGET

OE22 Mosquito Abatement Expense
OE22-1 Mosquito Control Products
OE22-2 Mosquito Abatement Monitor/Test
OE22-3 Mosquito Abate Vehicles Gas/Oil
OE22-4 Mosquito Abatement Equip Maint
Total OE22 Mosquito Abatement Expense

Total OE17 Streets

Total Services & Supplies

PE Personnel Expense
PEO1 Workers' Compensation Insurance
PEO2 Health Insurance
PEO3 Payroll Taxes
PEO4 Processing Fees
PEOS Directors' Stipend
PE06 Employee Wages

Total Salaries & Benefits

Equipment Replacement
CO04 Shop/Grounds Equipment
24' Flat Bed Trailer w/Tail gate
Radar Unit
Spray Rig
John Deer Tractor - to replace old C&C tractor

Equipment Storage Car Port

Total Equipment Replacement

Capital Projects
OE18-1 Short Term Landscape Inprovements
OE18-2 Landscape Design/Survey

Total Landscape Project

OE51-4 Road Improvements
OE51-1 Road Project Design & Constr Mgmt
OE51-2 Road Project Administration (SCCSD)
OE51-3 Road Improvement Contingency

Total Road Improvement Project

Total Capital Projects

Proposed Budget Doc $1442

2017-18 Proposed Projected 2018-19
BUDGET Budget BALANCE Proposed
Inc./(Decr. 6-30-2018 BUDGET
15,225.00 775.00 15,187.00 $ 16,000
3,150.00 650.00 3,577.00 3,800
11,550.00 50.00 10,495.00 11,600
5,250.00 3,950.00 9,250.00 9,200
$ 35,175.00 $ 5,425.00 38,509.00| $ 40,600
$ 14,175.00] $ (3,075.00) 10,529.23[ $ 11,100
$ 401,193.00] $ (102,293.00) 271,000.23| $ 298,900
22,237.00 (7,537.00) 21,917.00 $ 14,700
66,101.00 7,699.00 45,490.00 73,800
28,517.00 83.00 24,290.00 28,600
1,400.00 500.00 1,416.00 1,900
6,000.00 0.00 5,600.00 6,000
326,653.00 24,747.00 266,398.00 351,400
$ 450,908.00] $ 25,492.00 365,111.00] $ 476,400
29,000.00 28,960.00
$ 6,700
6,800
6,000
55,000
12,000
$ 29,000.00] $ 57,500.00 28,960.00] $ 86,500
80,000.00 (80,000.00) 35,927.00( $ -
32,000.00 (16,000.00) 16,000.00 16,000
$ 112,000.00 $  (96,000.00) 51,927.00| $ 16,000
100,000.00 500,000.00 0.00| $ 600,000
40,000.00 (30,000.00) 23,063.00 10,000
3,000.00 2,000.00 505.00 5,000
15,000.00 124,700.00 0.00 139,700
158,000.00 596,700.00 23,568.20 $ 754,700
270,000.00 500,700.00 75,495.37| $ 770,700
CoRffdeiitial




Saddle Creek Community Services District

2018-19 Proposed BUDGET

Debt Service
OE20 Landscape Equipment Lease/Purch
New Tractor lease/Purchase

Series 2018 Install Pymts (Road Improv Loan)

Total Debt Service

TOTAL EXPENDITURES

Other Financing Sources/(Uses)
New Tractor Lease/ purchase
Road Loan Draw down
Equipment Replacement Reserve

Excess of revenues over expenditures

Proposed Budget Doc $1442

i 2018-19
2017-18 Proposed Projected
BUDGET Budget BALANCE Proposed
Inc./(Decr. 6-30-2018 BUDGET
16,100.00 0.00 16,029.00| $ 16,100
12,300.00 12,300
83,800.00 83,800
$ 16,100.00] $ 96,100.00 16,029.00] $ 112,200
$ 1,167,201.00 $  577,499.00 756,595.60] $ 1,744,700
0.00 55,000.00 0.00( $ 55,000
0.00 700,000.00 0.00 700,000
(46,500.00) (46,500)
$ -| $ 708,5500.00] $ -1 % 708,500
$  (229,354.00) $ 229,372.00 186,315.00| $ -
CoRffdetitial

Page 3



Saddle Creek Community Services District

2018-19 Proposed BUDGET

2017-18 Proposed Projected 2018-19
BUDGET Budget BALANCE Proposed
Inc./(Decr. 6-30-2018 BUDGET
Income
INOL Assessments 924,447.00 173,353.00 924,447.00| $ 1,097,800
INO5 Interest Income 0.00 434.00
INO6 Interest - County 0.00 410.00
INO7 Rebates Received 0.00 1,335.00
IN30 Expense Reimbursement Revenue 7,000.00 (4,000.00) 8,468.00 3,000
IN41 Gate Opener Income 1,100.00 1,217.00 1,100
IN59 Other Misc. Revenue 6,400.00 200.00 6,600.00 6,600
Services 0.00 0.00
TOTAL INCOME]| $ 937,847.00] $ 170,653.00( $ 942,911.00f $ 1,108,500
Expenses

Services & Supplies
Administrative Expenses

OEO1 Audit Expense 7,800.00 3,900 0.00| $ 11,700
OEO02 Finance Expenses 551.00 49 463.00 600
OEO02-1 - Financial Assessment (NBS) 4,250.00 1,250 5,287.00 5,500
OEO03 Advertising 397.00 103 906.00 500
OEO04 Legal Expenses 1,575.00 125 1,575.00 1,700
OEO05 Management Fees 68,775.00 625 61,650.00 69,400
OEA41 HR Consultant 6,000.00 0 7,000.00 6,000
OEO06 Insurance (Prop Loss & Liab) 8,925.00 575 8,760.00 9,500
OEOQ7 Miscellaneous/Contingency 8,000.00 0 8,000.00 8,000
OEO08 Professional Development 8,925.00 2,075 10,958.00 11,000
OEOQ9 Dues, Certs, Bonds & Subscriptions 6,200.00 1,100 7,123.00 7,300
OE10 Uniform Expense 2,310.00 690 2,692.00 3,000
OE11 Electric Power/Water/Sewer 9,405.00 (3,605) 5,514.00 5,800
OE12 Telephone & Internet 6,405.00 (405) 5,670.00 6,000
OE14 Office Supplies/Postage 5,250.00 450.00 5,655.00 5,700
OE15 Office Equipment Repair/Replace 6,000.00 2,000.00 5,916.00 8,000
OE21 Office Equipment Lease 2,000.00 700.00 2,187.00 2,700
OE26 County Fees/LAFCO 6,825.00 3,675.00 9,642.00 10,500
Castle & Cooke Subsidized Expenses 120,000.00 0.00 0.00 120,000
OE30 Reimbursable Maintenance Exp 7,000.00 (4,000.00) 4,268.00 3,000
Total Administrative Expenses $ 286,593.00| $ 9,307.00 153,266.00 $ 295,900
Common Areas
OE16 Gate Maint/Repair/Staff/Openers 17,500.00 900.00 17,491.00| $ 18,400
OE18 Landscape Supplies & Repairs 25,000.00 4,900.00 28,514.00 29,900
OE18-3 Landscape Equip Gas & Oil 5,250.00 250.00 5,216.00 5,500
OE18-4 Landscape Equipment Repair & Replacemer 17,500.00 0.00 17,475.00 17,500
Total Common Areas $ 65,250.00| $ 6,050.00 68,696.00| $ 71,300

Proposed Budget Doc $1545 Conficréstial Page 1



Saddle Creek Community Services District

2018-19 Proposed BUDGET

OE22 Mosquito Abatement Expense
OE22-1 Mosquito Control Products
OE22-2 Mosquito Abatement Monitor/Test
OE22-3 Mosquito Abate Vehicles Gas/Oil
OE22-4 Mosquito Abatement Equip Maint
Total OE22 Mosquito Abatement Expense

Total OE17 Streets

Total Services & Supplies

PE Personnel Expense
PEO1 Workers' Compensation Insurance
PEO2 Health Insurance
PEO3 Payroll Taxes
PEO4 Processing Fees
PEO5 Directors' Stipend
PE06 Employee Wages

Total Salaries & Benefits

Equipment Replacement
CO004 Shop/Grounds Equipment
24' Flat Bed Trailer w/Tail gate
Radar Unit
Spray Rig
John Deer Tractor - to replace old C&C tractor

Equipment Storage Car Port

Total Equipment Replacement

Capital Projects
OE18-1 Short Term Landscape Inprovements
OE18-2 Landscape Design/Survey

Total Landscape Project

OE51-4 Road Improvements
OE51-1 Road Project Design & Constr Mgmt
OE51-2 Road Project Administration (SCCSD)
OE51-3 Road Improvement Contingency

Total Road Improvement Project

Total Capital Projects

Proposed Budget Doc $1545

2017-18 Proposed Projected 2018-19
BUDGET Budget BALANCE Proposed
Inc./(Decr. 6-30-2018 BUDGET
15,225.00 775.00 15,187.00 $ 16,000
3,150.00 650.00 3,577.00 3,800
11,550.00 50.00 10,495.00 11,600
5,250.00 3,950.00 9,250.00 9,200
$ 35,175.00| $ 5,425.00 38,509.00 $ 40,600
$ 14,175.00| $ (3,075.00) 10,529.23( $ 11,100
$ 401,193.00] $ 17,707.00 271,000.23] $ 418,900
22,237.00 (7,537.00) 21,917.00| $ 14,700
66,101.00 7,699.00 45,490.00 73,800
28,517.00 83.00 24,290.00 28,600
1,400.00 500.00 1,416.00 1,900
6,000.00 0.00 5,600.00 6,000
326,653.00 24,747.00 266,398.00 351,400
$ 450,908.00| $ 25,492.00 365,111.00] $ 476,400
29,000.00 28,960.00
$ 6,700
6,800
6,000
55,000
12,000
$ 29,000.00] $ 57,500.00 28,960.00] $ 86,500
80,000.00 (80,000.00) 35,927.00( $ -
32,000.00 (16,000.00) 16,000.00 16,000
$ 112,000.00 $  (96,000.00) 51,927.00( $ 16,000
100,000.00 500,000.00 0.00| $ 600,000
40,000.00 (31,000.00) 23,063.00 9,000
3,000.00 (2,000.00) 505.00 1,000
15,000.00 82,000.00 0.00 97,000
158,000.00[ $ 549,000.00 23,568.20( $ 707,000
270,000.00 453,000.00 75,495.37] $ 723,000
ConfidRéstial Page 2



Saddle Creek Community Services District

2018-19 Proposed BUDGET

Debt Service
OEZ20 Landscape Equipment Lease/Purch
New Tractor lease/Purchase
Series 2018 Install Pymts (Road Improv Loan)

Total Debt Service

TOTAL EXPENDITURES

Other Financing Sources/(Uses)
New Tractor Lease/ purchase
Road Loan Draw down
Equipment Replacement Reserve

Excess of revenues over expenditures

Proposed Budget Doc $1545

i 2018-19
2017-18 Proposed Projected
BUDGET Budget BALANCE Proposed
Inc./(Decr. 6-30-2018 BUDGET
16,100.00 0.00 16,029.00| $ 16,100
12,300.00 12,300
83,800.00 83,800
$ 16,100.00] $ 96,100.00 16,029.00| $ 112,200
$ 1,167,201.00] $ 649,799.00 756,595.60] $ 1,817,000
0.00 55,000.00 0.00| $ 55,000
0.00 700,000.00 0.00 700,000
(46,500.00) (46,500)
$ -1 $ 708500.00[ $ - $ 708,500
$ (229,354.00)| $ 229,354.00 186,315.00] $ -
Conficréstial Page 3



Saddle Creek Community Services District

Regular Board Meeting May 15, 2018

AGENDA SUPPORTING DATA

7. DISCUSSION AND ACTION ITEMS
b. Adoption of a Resolution approving revised and updated personnel policies/employee handbook.

Recommended Motion
I move to adopt a resolution approving the revised and updated personnel policies/employee handbook.

Background

The District has adopted a number of personnel policies over the years; some by resolution, some by
motion of the Board, and others based on minutes of the meeting where a policy concept was approved
from a staff report; not actually on the agenda. We currently have no organized personnel policy manual
to use in new employee orientation.

Over the past six months, staff has been working with our Human Resources consultant in the
development of a full, comprehensive draft personnel policy manual. The policy manual was crafted to
not change our current benefits, rather to memorialize them in an organized document. While we
recommend your approval at this meeting, we understand that this document is lengthy and complex,
and may require more time to evaluate.

This policy manual is compliant with current HR practices and solid policy.

Page 24



OMMUNITY

May 15, 2018

Page 25




CHAPTER ONE — INTRODUGCTION ....uuiiiiiiiieiiie et e e e e e e e e eennnnns 4

1000 - Purpose of Employee HandbooK...............coiiiiiiiiiiiiiii e 4
1010 - DEfINITIONS ...ttt ettt ettt eeeenees 5
1020 - INtrodUCLOrY PEIOU.......cceiieeeeiiee e e e e e e e 7
CHAPTER TWO — EMPLOYMENT — HIRING AND CONDITIONS OF EMPLOYMENT ........... 8
2000 - RECTUITMENT ...ceeiiiiiiiit ettt e e et e e e e e e st eeeeas 8
2010 - Pre-Employment Physical EXamination.................eeveeeeeeeimeieeeeiiiiieiiiiiieiieiineennennes 9
2020 - Background CRECK...........uviiiiiiiiiiiiiiieieeeee e 10
2030 - DMV RECOIT ....cceiiiiiiiiitt ettt ettt e et e e e e e 10
2040 - IMIMUGTALION ...ttt 11
2050 - Personnel ACHION FOMM .......oooiiiiiiiiiii e 12
2060 - Employment of Relatives and Disclosure of Personal Relationships................. 13
2070 - Equal Opportunity EMPIOYMENT.........oviiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiieieiiiieeiie e 14
2080 - Disability Accommodation and Fitness for DULY ..........cccoovviiiiiiiienicciiiicc e, 15
2090 - Outside EMPIOYMENT......ooiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiei it eneneneee 15
2100 - Separation from District EMPIOYMENt...........ccooiiiiiiiiiiiiccieeie e 16
CHAPTER THREE — HOURS OF WORK AND COMPENSATION.....ccociiiiiiiiieecei e 17
3000 — COMPENSALION ....eeeeeteeiiiiiieeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeee et e e aee bbb ebeeebebeeennnenes 19
3010 - Pay Periods / Paydays.........coiiieeeiieiiiiee e 20
10 12 T o T 10 630 ) YA 0] o 21
3030 = OVEITIMIE ...ttt e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e r et e e e e e e e e nnbbbnreeeeas 23
CHAPTER FOUR - DISTRICT EQUIPMENT, PROPERTY AND REIMBURSEMENT............ 24
0 1010 1 0T 1= PSR 24
4010 - Use of District VEhICIES & PrOPEIY .....ccoieeiiiiiiiiiieei e eeeens 25
4020 - TECNNOIOGY USAQE .....uuuiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiii s a e e e e e e e e 26
4030 - Vehicle Cost Reimbursement.............uuvviiiiiiiiiiic e 30
4040 - Business Travel and Reimbursement................euuuiiiiiieeee e 31
4050 - Accepting & Providing GiftS............uuuuuuiuimiiiiiii e 33
4060 - Education and TraiNing .........ccceiieeuiiiiiise e e e e e e e e e e e eeaara e e eeaeeaannes 34

Page 26




CHAPTER FIVE — BENEFRITS . ... ettt eeaa e e e e
5000 - Benefits and INSUranCce COVEIAQE .........uuiiieeeeiiieiiiiiee e
5010 - VACALION. ...ceeieeeeeeeeeeeeeeee ettt
5020 - HONIOAYS ..+ttt
5030 — SICK LBAVE ....eeiieiiiiiit ettt
CHAPTER SIX — FAMILY AND MEDICAL LEAVE ...
6000 - Family and MediCal LEAVE .........ccceiiiiiiiiiie e
6010 - Pregnancy Related Leaves and Transfer Privileges........cccoooeeeiiiieiiiiiiiiieeeee,
6020 - WOrkers’ COMPENSATION.........eveetieeeeeeeeieeeeeieeeeeeeeeeeeseseeeeeeessesssesesesseeeneeeeeennnnnnne
6030 - Early REtUrN 10 WOIK.......couiiiiii i
6050 - JUIY DULY LEAVE ...t ieeiieeeitiiei ettt e et e e e e e eenrr e e e e e
6060 - Voluntary Leave of Absence Without Pay ............ccccceiiiiiiiiiiiiiii e,
6070 - OtNEI LEAVES ...ttt ettt e e e e
CHAPTER SEVEN — WORKPLACE CONDUCT AND PERFORMANCE/DISCIPLINE ..........
7000 - Attendance and PUNCIUANLY ..........coooviiiiiiiie e e
7010 - Dress and Grooming StandardsS............eeeeeeeeereeeieieeiiiiiiiiiiiieeeeeseeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeneees
7020 - Performance EValUuation...............eeiiieiieiiiiiiiiiiiiiiieiiiiiiiieieseeseeeeeeieeeeeeeeeeneeeees
7030 - Safety and Workplace INJUIES .........oouiiiiiii e
7040 - Anti-Harassment and Anti-Discrimination POIICY .............covvvvviiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiieeee,
7050 - WOrKPIace VIOIENCE .......cooiiiiii it
7060 — Drug Free Workplace and TeStNG.......uueureereeeieiiieiiiiiiiiiiieiiieseeeiiesenieeeeneeeeennenees
7070 - JOD ADANAONMENT......iiiiiiiiiiiiiieeiee ettt eeennnnnnnanes
7080 - OPEN DOOF POLICY ... ieiiiiiiiiieee et e e e e e e e e e e
7090 - Employee INCENLIVE PrOGIaM .......cvviiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiieiesisiisssesssssssesssessseeseeneeenennnnnes
7100 - GrieVaNCE PrOCEAUIE .......ciiiiiiiiiiitiie et e ettt e e e e e e e eeeeas
7110 - Discipline and Appeals ProCeAUIES.........ccooeeiiiiiiiiiiiiic e
CHAPTER EIGHT — APPENDICES .....coii ittt e e et e eeeaneaaees
8000 - APPENDIX “A” - GrieVanCe FOIMN .......ccovviiiiiiiiiiiiiieieiieeeeeeeeeeeeeeesenennennennnnnnnnnes
8010 - APPENDIX “B” - Consent and Release Form for Applicants ............ccccccceeeeee.

Page 27




8020 - APPENDIX “C” - Consent and Release Form for Employees being

Requested to UNdergo TeSHNG.......uuiii e e e 93
8030 - APPENDIX “D” - List of Safety Sensitive POSItIONS............cccvvviiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiieienne 94
8040 - APPENDIX “E” - Performance Evaluation FOrmM..........ccccccviiiiiiiiieiiiiiiiiiieeeen 95
8050 - APPENDIX “F” - Per DIiem AMOUNTS .........coocuiiiiiiiiieeeiiiiire e 98
8070 - APPENDIX “H” - Leave Transfer REQUEST.............cevvviviiiiriiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiviiiiinns 100
8080 - APPENDIX “I” - Personnel ACtion FOIM .........ccuuvviiiiiiiiiiiiiiiecce e 101
8090 - APPENDIX “J" - Leave ReqUESt FOIM ........ccooiviiiiiiiie e 102
8100 - APPENDIX “K” - Accident Report - Non-Vehicular ............cccccvvvvviiiiiiiiiiinnnnnne. 103
8110 - APPENDIX “L” - ACCIAENt REPOI ....coviiiiii i 104
8120 - APPENDIX “M” - Employee Handbook Acknowledgment Form ...................... 106
8130 - APPENDIX “N” - Anti-Harassment Policy Acknowledgment Form................... 107

Page 28




CHAPTER ONE — INTRODUCTION

1000 - PURPOSE OF EMPLOYEE HANDBOOK

The information contained herein constitutes the District's Employee Handbook
(“Handbook™). 1t is not to be interpreted as a contract between the District and any of its
employees. Except as provided herein, this Handbook applies to all regular and part-
time employees. Except as provided herein, these rules do not apply to members of the
Board of Directors, volunteer personnel (such as advisory committees), persons
engaged under contract to provide expert, professional, technical, or other services; to
temporary employees, or to employees providing services under contract.

If any policy or portion of a policy contained within this Handbook is in conflict with
regulations or legislation applicable to the SADDLE CREEK Community Services
District, said regulations or current legal requirements shall prevail.

The District reserves the right to modify or delete any of these policies when, in the
opinion of its management and the Board of Directors, it becomes advisable to do so.
Changes will be made through standard communication channels (for example,
employer/employee consultations and Manager communications). No oral statements or
representations can in any way change or alter the provisions of this Handbook.

Page 29




1010 - DEFINITIONS

A.

Anniversary Date: Date on which employee completes introductory period.
Employee may be eligible for a step merit increase at this time and each
subsequent year until the top step of the classification is reached. Subsequent
promotion may change the date of merit step increase eligibility.

Corrective Counseling Plan: Plan approved by the General Manager to rectify
or improve substandard performance.

Employee: Any person occupying a position approved by the Board of
Directors in the District service

Exempt Employee: Employee fulfiling requirements for Executive,
Administrative or Professional are exempt employees, as defined by the Fair
Labor Standards Act. An exempt employee is expected to complete his/her
assigned duties rather than adhere to a strict workday schedule. Consequently,
no overtime time will be provided to exempt employees.

Regular Employee: A Regular Employee is an employee who is hired to work
full-time for two-thousand eighty (2,080) hours per year and has successfully
passed the Introductory Period.

Part-time Employee: A Part-Time employee is an employee who is hired in a
position which is intended to be occupied on less than two-thousand eighty-
hours annually.

Temporary Employee: A temporary employee is an employee who is hired in a
position that is considered temporary and cannot work more than one thousand-
forty (1,040) hours in a year and is not eligible for any benefits except as provide
by law. Temporary employees can be terminated at any time, for any reason,
without cause, except as provided by law.

Hire Date: Date on which employee commences work for District. This date is
the basis for seniority and vacation accrual rate once the employee completes
the introductory period.

Leave of Absence: An employee who has permission to be absent from duty
for a specified period and purpose pursuant to applicable law and/or District

policy.

Reclassification: A significant change in the duties and responsibilities of a
position. A reclassification upward or downward in the classification series does
not change the employee’s anniversary date.

Page 30




Regular Pay Rate: The hourly rate paid an employee for the normal work time
performing the duties for which that employee has been employed by the
District.

Safety Sensitive Position: Safety Sensitive Positions are employment
positions in which usage of drugs or alcohol could clearly endanger the health
and safety of the individual employee, other employees, the community and/or
others. These positions have the following general characteristics:

1. Their duties involve a greater-than-normal level of trust, responsibility
for impact on the health and safety of the community and other
employees; and

2. Errors in judgment could clearly result in mistakes that would
endanger the health and safety of the individual, the community
and/or other employees; and

3. Employees in these positions work with such independence or
perform such tasks that it cannot be safely assumed that mistakes
could be prevented by a supervisor or another employee.

4, A listing of Safety Sensitive Positions is included as Appendix D.

Step-Merit Increase: The periodic review of employee performance and
possible increase in salary based on performance and duration of employment
in any given position. Any such step increase based on merit are discretionary
with the District and will be determined by management, in its sole discretion.

Transfer: At the General Manager’s discretion, a change of an employee from
one position to another with the same or comparable duties.

Page 31




1020 - Introductory Period

Requirement: All full-time and part-time employees are “at will” employees until
satisfactory completion of an introductory period. An introductory period is
regarded as part of the employment examination process and provides the
employee’s supervisor and the General Manager the opportunity to observe and
evaluate an employee’s competence and ability to perform assigned duties.

Length of Introductory Period: A new and/or returning employee shall be
regarded as an introductory employee for the first 365 calendar days of
employment. The introductory period can be extended for a specified period of
time, up to an additional six months, if the employee’s supervisor (with the
concurrence of the General manager) reasonably determines that an additional
period of time is needed to assess performance and evaluate whether the
employee is a good fit. A leave of absence for more than 30 days (for any
reason) will extend the introductory period for the equivalent number of days.

Termination During Introductory Period: Introductory employees serve
entirely at the will and pleasure of the General Manager and may be terminated
by the General Manager without cause and without right of appeal or hearing at
any time.

Completion of Introductory Period: Upon satisfactory completion of the
introductory period, the employee’s supervisor/manager must complete a
Personnel Action Form, signed by the General Manager, confirming the
satisfactory completion of the introductory period. An employee does not
automatically successfully complete the introductory period simply by remaining
employed for 365 days. Once a Personnel Action Form is completed and
signed, then the employee will become a “regular employee.”

Page 32




CHAPTER TWO — EMPLOYMENT — HIRING AND CONDITIONS OF EMPLOYMENT

2000 - RECRUITMENT

A.

Employment — Hiring: An applicant for employment shall be evaluated on the
basis of his/her submitted material(s), personal interview(s), and demonstrated
ability. The District will only solicit applications when position openings exist,
when employees have tendered letters of resignation or retirement, or when
vacancies or new position openings are anticipated. The General Manager, or
designee, may provide for job-related exams, an oral panel, or individual
interviews, to ascertain an applicant’s relative ability to perform the duties of the
position before selecting the applicant to fill the position opening. If two people
are hired on the same day for jobs that have the same rate of pay, it must be
determined who was hired first. If two people are hired on the same day with
different rates of pay, the employee with the higher pay rate will be deemed the
employee hired first for purposes of seniority.

The District may retain all employment applications for a period of one year or
longer if required by law whereupon they may be discarded consistent with law.

Page 33




2010 - PRE-EMPLOYMENT PHYSICAL EXAMINATION

A.

Requirement for Examination: All offers of employment for regular, part-time,
and contract positions shall be made contingent upon the applicant successfully
passing a physician’s examination and drug test, if required, to be provided at
District expense. Such applicant(s) shall not be employed until a qualified
physician has certified the applicant is medically fit to perform the duties of the
position. Prior to conducting the exam, the physician will be supplied with a
specification/description of the position for which the applicant is applying, which
shall include the description of the physical requirements and working
environment of the position.

Impact of Refusal: Applicants who refuse to cooperate in the examination and
any required testing shall not be considered for employment.

Re-Employed Individuals: Another pre-employment physical and drug test, if
applicable, of an individual who was previously employed by the District will be
required if more than three (3) months have elapsed since the individual's last
day of work for the District.

Procedure for Examination: When the applicant reports to the medical facility
for the scheduled examination, identification shall be provided to the facility in
the form of a photograph and verifiable signature (e.g. vehicle operator's
license).

Confidential Results: All examination results shall be kept confidential and
disclosed only to those in management with a legitimate need to know. Results
will be kept apart from the employee’s personnel file and placed in a confidential
medical file.

Disclosure: District employment application forms shall contain a notice to
applicants as follows:

The Community Services District has a policy that any offer of
employment shall be contingent upon the applicant successfully passing
a physician’s examination certifying that the applicant is medically fit to
perform the duties of the position. Persons who refuse to cooperate in
the examination or do not receive a physician’s certification of
qualification to do the type of work required by the position applied for will
not be considered for employment subject to applicable laws and
regulations.

Page 34




2020 - BACKGROUND CHECK

The District may conduct an appropriate background check and live scan fingerprinting on all
applicants, and all statements submitted on the employment application or résumé shall be
subject to verification, including information applicants provide for any reference checks.

2021 — Disclosure/Recession of Employment Offers

Any false statements or omissions of material facts may be considered sufficient for
disqualification. If the District discovers that an employee included false statements or material
omissions on his or her employment application or otherwise in the hiring process, that will be
sufficient “good cause” to rescind an employment offer or terminate employment when the
information is discovered.

The Community Services District has a policy that any offer of employment shall be contingent
upon the applicant successfully passing a physician’s examination certifying that the applicant is
medically fit to perform the duties of the position. Persons who refuse to cooperate in the
examination or do not receive a physician’s certification of qualification to do the type of work
required by the position applied for will not be considered for employment subject to applicable
laws and regulations.

2030 - DMV RECORD

A. Submission of Record: All applicants for positions that are required to drive in
connection with their work duties shall submit a current Department of Motor
Vehicle record and may be required to provide proof of insurance to the District.
The printout must be dated no less than 30 days from the date the application is
submitted. All District employees who drive District vehicles are subject to the
DMV Employer Pull Notice Program that provides the District with a means of
promoting driver safety through the ongoing review of driver records.

B. Insurability: All District employees who drive District vehicles as part of their
duties must maintain insurability by District’s insurance carrier. The insurance
carrier of the District will be requested to verify eligibility of insurability based
upon the applicant’'s driving history. Applicants who are denied insurability by
the District’'s insurance carrier will be disqualified. If a current employee is
denied insurability by the District's insurance carrier, the District will evaluate
appropriate action. If driving is an essential function of that employee’s position,
then the District reserves the right to terminate employment.

Page 35




2040 - IMMIGRATION

The District may require evidence of legal authority to work in the United States subject
to applicable federal and state laws.

Page 36




2050 - PERSONNEL ACTION FORM

Every appointment, completion of

introductory period, transfer, step increase,

suspension without pay, separation from service, or any information or action which
affects the employment or salaried status of an employee shall be initiated by the
General Manager on a Personnel Action Form. The Personnel Action Form is located at

Appendix “I”.

Page 37




2060 -

EMPLOYMENT OF RELATIVES AND DISCLOSURE OF PERSONAL

RELATIONSHIPS

The District desires to avoid misunderstandings, complaints of favoritism or lack of
objectivity, claims of sexual harassment, and the morale and dissension problems that
potentially result from romantic or other non-work-related relationships between
employees. In order to implement these objectives, the District will abide by the
following requirements and consistent with applicable laws and regulations governing
such areas:

A.

Limitation on Hiring Family Members: The District does not permit the hiring
of a Family Member (as defined below) of any active Board member. If an
existing employee is a Family Member of an individual who is elected to serve
on the Board of Directors, the District will take any action that it deems
appropriate to properly address the situation in accordance with current laws
and related regulations.

The District permits the hiring of family members of current employees; however,
an employee will not be allowed to work in a position that would result in he/she
directly or indirectly supervising or reporting to a Family Member (defined below).
Additionally, the District may prohibit reporting relationships between employees
who are romantically involved with one another. A reporting relationship exists
between two employees if one employee is within another employee’s chain of
command and is directly or indirectly supervised by the other. The District may
disqualify any applicant for employment or transfer where the result of that hiring
or transfer would put an employee in direct supervision of (or under the direct
supervision of) a Family Member or otherwise create a security, safety, or morale
problem for the District.

For purposes of this policy only, Family Member includes parent, child,
grandparent, grandchild, uncle, aunt, niece, nephew, cousin, sibling, spouse,
domestic partner, cohabitants, or in-law relations (whether arising from a spouse
or domestic partner relationship). Family Member is intended to encompass all
family-like relationships regardless of blood or legal relationship.

Disclosure Requirement: Employees are required to immediately notify the
General Manager of any relationship that potentially falls under this policy. If, in
the District’'s opinion, any of the potential problems noted above cannot be
avoided in a reasonable manner, the District may take any action that the
District deems appropriate to address the situation.

Page 38




2070 - EQUAL OPPORTUNITY EMPLOYMENT

It is the policy of the District that there shall be no discrimination based upon race,
national origin, ancestry, creed, citizenship, marital status, religion, sex, gender identity,
mental or physical disability, medical condition, genetic characteristics, pregnancy or
related medical condition, sexual orientation, military or veteran status, age, or any other
characteristic protected by applicable federal, state, or local law. This policy of
nondiscrimination applies to all employees, Board members, volunteers, and
independent contractors’. All employment practices, including, but not limited to
recruitment, hiring, compensation, benefits, promotion, training, transfer, discipline,
layoff, recall, and termination shall be in compliance with this policy.

If you have any questions regarding this policy or if you have any concerns about
workplace discrimination, please let your supervisor or General Manager know
immediately. A complaint procedure is also addressed in the District’'s Anti-Harassment
and Anti-Discrimination Policy which you should use to address any instances of
workplace discrimination. The District will not retaliate against any employee who raises
concerns in good faith. Anyone found to be engaging in any type of unlawful
discrimination will be subject to disciplinary action, up to and including termination of
employment.

2080 - DISABILITY ACCOMMODATION AND FITNESS FOR DUTY

A.

Reasonable Accommodations: The District will make reasonable
accommodations for qualified individuals with known disabilities unless doing so
would result in an undue hardship in accordance with Federal and State laws. If
you feel you need a workplace accommodation due to a medical condition,
notify the General Manager. You may be required to provide medical
certification regarding your disability and need for accommodation. All medical
information is kept in a confidential, medical information file and shared only on
a need-to-know basis. While the District welcomes your suggestions for
accommodations to enable you to perform the essential functions of your job,
the District will make the final decision as to what, if any, reasonable
accommodation to provide.

Fitness for Duty: Continued employment with the District is conditioned on an
employee being fit and able to perform the duties specified in the applicable job
description. If, in the opinion of the General Manager, an employee is having

Page 39




difficulty performing the reasonable duties of his/her position for medical
reasons, the employee may be required to submit to and pass a medical
examination designated or approved by the General Manager to assure fitness
for continued employment. If the examination finds the employee to be in an
unfit condition to perform the position duties, the General Manager will
commence an interactive process with the employee to ascertain whether the
employee is eligible for any reasonable accommodations.

Page 40




2090 - OUTSIDE EMPLOYMENT

A. Prohibition of Outside Employment: No District employee shall be permitted
to accept or continue employment in addition to or outside of District service if:

1. The outside employment leads to a conflict, or potential conflict of
interest, for the employee; or

2. The nature of the outside employment is such that it will reflect
unfavorably on the District; or

3. The duties to be performed in the outside employment are in conflict
with the duties involved in District service.

4. The District employee’s performance of District duties is compromised
or otherwise adversely impacted by the outside employment.

B. Notification Requirement: An employee who plans to accept such
employment shall notify his or her supervisor immediately prior to commencing
outside employment and obtain approval for the outside employment.

C. Usage of District Property: An employee who engages in outside employment
shall not be permitted to use District records, materials, equipment, facilities, or
other District resources in connection with said employment.

Page 41




2100 - SEPARATION FROM DISTRICT EMPLOYMENT

A.

Resignation: An employee can resign District employment at any time. To
allow for proper transition of duties, the District requests — but does not require —
that employees provide the District with at least two (2) weeks advance notice of
resignation. On or before the effective date of the employee’s resignation,
employee shall immediately relinquish to his or her supervisor all District
property, including but not limited to keys, phone, computer, credit cards, and
any other property in the employee’s possession. Resignhations may only be
withdrawn with the expressed written approval of the General Manager. At the
General Manager’s discretion, the resigning employee may be required to
immediately return all District property in their possession and/or be placed on
paid administrative leave for the duration of his or her employment through the
resignation date.

Layoffs: Whenever, in the judgment of the District Board, it becomes
necessary, due to the lack of work, absence of need for a position, material
change in duties, curtailment of public services, lack of funds, other economic
considerations, the General Manager may layoff an employee. The General
Manager shall prepare a layoff list, giving consideration to all applicable factors,
including business necessity, job performance, competence and skill-set of
individual employees, and longevity of service with the District (where practical).
Longevity will not dictate layoff choice where other relevant factors apply.

1. Employees to be laid off shall be notified as soon as practicable and
given at least fourteen (14) calendar days prior notice. A layoff is not
subject to grievance or appeal.

2. Employees laid off or demoted in good standing under this policy shall
be eligible for re-employment with the District. The names of all
persons laid off or demoted in accordance with this policy shall be
entered upon a re-employment list. If, within three (3) months of the
effective date of layoff, the position held by the employee immediately
prior to layoff or demotion becomes vacant, or if another position
within the same class and for which the employee is qualified
becomes vacant (“alternate position”), then the employee shall be
offered the vacant position. Persons who refuse re-employment shall
be removed from the list. At the discretion of the General Manager,
the re-employment list can be extended beyond the initial three (3)
months.

Involuntary Termination: The District can terminate employment of employees
who have not completed the introductory period for any reason or no reason in
accordance with the Introductory Policy. Employees who have attained regular
status can be terminated for good cause in accordance with the disciplinary
policy herein.

Page 42




Page 43




CHAPTER THREE — HOURS OF WORK AND COMPENSATION

3000 - COMPENSATION

A.

New Introductory Employees: All newly appointed introductory employees
shall be paid at the first step of the salary range for the position to which the
introductory employee is appointed except as provided elsewhere herein.

Advanced Step Hiring: If the General Manager finds that qualified applicants
have greater experience or competencies than required at the first step of the
salary range, the General Manager can extend an offer higher than the first
step.

Increase in compensation other than Cost of Living Adjustments (Step-
Merit Increase): After one year in a salary step (on the employee’s Anniversary
Date), employees may qualify for a merit increase to the next step, provided
management has determined that a step merit increase is appropriate. The
General Manager may provide for movement to any step in the salary range for
business purposes, such as retaining employees with important skills or labor
market reasons. All decisions about step-merit increases are subject to
management’s sole discretion; employees are not automatically entitled to or
eligible for a step merit increase. A report verifying satisfactory performance,
including any goals established from the employee’s last evaluation, for each
employee recommended for a Step-Merit advancement shall be submitted to,
and approved by the General Manager prior to final action on such
recommendation.

Cost of Living Adjustments: Annually, the Board may consider a Cost of
Living Adjustment (COLA). If the COLA is approved, the District Salary
Schedule will be adjusted accordingly, thus keeping the schedule current.
Therefore, an employee may receive both a Cost of Living Adjustment and an
increase in compensation pursuant to subdivision C above in any given year
until the employee reaches the maximum salary step for his/her classification.
Upon reaching the maximum salary step, the only salary adjustments an
employee shall receive will be Board-approved COLA, except as otherwise
provided herein.

Promotion: Employees promoted to a position with a higher salary range shall
be placed on the step of the range allocated to the new classification which
would grant such employee an increase in pay no greater than five percent
(5%). The increase may exceed five percent (5%) at the discretion of the
General Manager but shall not exceed the top step of the range allocated to the
new classification. Employees who are promoted retain the same Anniversary

Page 44




Date for purposes of years of service and benefit accruals but have a new
Promotion Date for purposes of performance reviews and merit step increases.

Lateral Transfer: When an employee transfers to a different position or
classification with similar responsibilities as his/her existing position, the affected
employee shall be placed at a salary range within the new classification that is
most consistent with the employee’s existing salary range not to exceed the
maximum step of the salary range for the classification.

Supplemental Wages (for withholding purposes): The Internal Revenue
Service defines supplemental wages to include bonuses, commissions, overtime
pay, payments for accumulated sick leave, severance pay, awards, prizes, back
pay, retroactive pay increases and payments for nondeductible moving
expenses. If supplemental wages are given to the employee at the same time
as the employee’s regular wages are paid, the District is required to treat the
sum of the payments as regular wages and withhold income taxes based on the
regular payroll period using the withholding schedules. If the supplemental
wage is not given to the employee at the same time as the employee’s regular
wages are paid, the district will withhold a flat rate for federal income tax and
appropriate state income tax in accordance with current federal and state laws.

Page 45




3010 - PAY PERIODS / PAYDAYS

The salaries and wages of all District employees shall be paid bi-monthly on the 20" of
the month for the period including the 1 thorough the 15™ of that month, and on the 5"
of the following month for the period including the 16" through the end of the month. T

In the event a payday falls on one of the holidays listed, the immediately previous
working day shall become the payday. Upon request, District employees may be paid
via direct deposit into a personal bank account subject to processing requirements.

Page 46




3020 - HOURS OF WORK

This policy shall apply to all non-exempt employees.

A.

Workweek: The work-week shall consist of seven (7) consecutive days from
12:01 o’clock a.m. Saturday through midnight Friday.

Workday Hours: The regular hours of work each day shall be consecutive
except for interruptions for meal periods. The regular working day is generally
7:00 a.m. until 3:30 p.m. Employees shall be at their assigned work location,
ready to start work at 7:00 a.m. Employees are required to record their work
time (including start of shift, meal breaks, and end of shift). Hours worked can
be rounded to the nearest 1/10th of an hour.

Meal Periods and Rest Breaks: Employees are provided with a half-hour (30
minutes) break for lunch, a mid-morning break of fifteen (15), minutes and a
mid-afternoon break of fifteen (15) minutes. Break time must be used on a daily
basis. Time allocated to breaks may not be accumulated or used to come in
late, leave early, or add to a meal period. All fifteen (15) minute breaks must be
taken on the job site or other assigned work location, as that time is
compensable.

Tardiness: If an employee cannot report for work at the scheduled start time,
then that employee is required to notify his/her immediate supervisor before his
or her scheduled start time. Tardiness may be cause for disciplinary action, up
to and including termination from employment.

Whenever an employee will not be reporting or returning to his/her assigned duty
station during scheduled work hours he/she shall contact his/her supervisor by
telephone or in person and explain the reason for his/her proposed absence

Failure to make this required notification without a justifiable reason will be
considered a serious breach of policy that may result in corrective action being
initiated against the offending employee

Additionally, employees’ who fail to return or report to their assigned duty station
during scheduled work hours without a valid reason (such as sickness, family
emergency, etc.) shall be considered as being in violation of this Policy and may
result in sever corrective action (up to and including the possibility of termination
of employment).

Page 47




Page 48




3030 - OVERTIME

A. Overtime Discouraged: The District discourages overtime whenever possible.

B. Overtime Approval Required: Employees shall not work overtime without first
obtaining approval from his or her supervisor or the General Manager. When
overtime is necessary and authorized by the General Manager or designated
Supervisor, it shall be paid as follows:

1. Time worked in excess of forty (40) hours in a work-week.

2. Time worked on a designated holiday.

3. Overtime compensation will not be paid to FLSA Exempt Employees.
4. Compensation for overtime is paid at a rate of one and one-half times

the employee’s regular hourly rate.

5. Overtime shall always be paid in accordance with current federal and
state laws.

Page 49




CHAPTER FOUR — DISTRICT EQUIPMENT, PROPERTY AND REIMBURSEMENT

4000 - UNIFORMS

A.

Requirement for Uniforms for Maintenance Personnel: All regular
maintenance personnel are required to wear the designated District provided
uniform while on regular duty. The District will supply all qualifying employees
with specific products that meet the needs and/or safety requirements. This will
include uniforms (shirts), jackets, appropriate foot protection and rain gear.
Jackets and rain gear will be issued to qualifying employees as needed, if
approved by the Supervisor.

Cost of Uniforms: The cost of such uniforms and/or protective clothing that
employees are required to wear shall be borne by the District.

Damage to Uniforms: Employees are responsible for any loss or damage of
uniforms and/or protective clothing caused by negligence or misuse. Off-duty
wearing of District provided uniforms and/or protective clothing is prohibited.
Upon termination or separation, all uniforms and/or protective clothing
(excluding shoes) must be returned to the District.

Shoes: Employees who are exposed to foot injuries or hazardous mixtures
shall wear appropriate foot protection, as outlined in the Safety Manual. The
District will reimburse the employee up to $100.00 for the initial purchase of a
pair of safety toe shoes and will reimburse the employee up to $100.00 for the
replacement of safety shoes due to damage or wear, not to exceed one wear
replacement per year.

Page 50




4010 - USE OF DISTRICT VEHICLES & PROPERTY

A.

Limitation of Use of District Property: District vehicles, maintenance
equipment, power equipment, tools, cell phones, computers, and other property
shall only be used for District business and operations. No District employee or
Board member shall use any such District property or vehicle for any personal or
non-District use. Transportation in District vehicles of persons other than
Directors, officers, employees, agents of the District, or authorized guests, is
prohibited.

Exemptions: Exemptions must be pre-approved by the General Manager or
his/her designee and may be allowed for general public good will and the
general benefit of the District.

Requirements: Employees who are required to use District vehicles shall:

1. Be aware they are on public display when driving a District vehicle
and must conduct themselves accordingly.

2. Be aware that if any violation results in a citation, it must be reported
immediately to the supervisor. Thereafter, it is the employee’s
responsibility to address the citation in a legally compliant manner.
The employee may be subject to District initiated disciplinary action.

3. Fasten seat belts at all times and see to it that passengers do the
same.
4, District cell phone use policy is strictly enforced. Refer to the Safety

Manual for the entire policy.

Animals: Animals of any kind are prohibited from being transported in District
vehicles or brought by employees onto District property, unless properly
designated as a “service animal”.

Purchase of Surplus Equipment: Employees of the District shall not receive
or be permitted to buy surplus District equipment or other property.

Employees shall not remove anything (Firewood, rocks, building materials, etc.)
from the District property. This includes both during and after working hours,
unless given specific written approval. Violation of this policy may be subject to
disciplinary action up to and including termination.

Page 51




4020 - TECHNOLOGY USAGE

A.

Usage of District Technology Resources: The District may provide various
technology resources to its employees, including computers, cell phones, smart
phones, tablets, electronic mail, internet access, and other forms of technology.
These resources are provided to employees for work-related purposes. These
technology resources are business tools, which are to be used in accordance
with generally accepted business practices and to provide an efficient and
effective means of communications for the District.

Privacy: Subject to current legal requirements an employee cannot expect
privacy rights to extend to any use of District-owned technology resources,
equipment, or supplies. The District has the right to monitor and inspect all
technology resources at any time to ensure proper business use. As a result,
any information placed on any District computer, to or from a District e-mail
account or otherwise, is subject to inspection and disclosure by the District. As
a result, no one should have any reasonable expectation of privacy in
communications sent over the District e-mail network. E-mail communications
are not confidential. For purposes of this policy, e-mail shall also include all
messages transmitted on the Internet or while using personal email for district
business.

E-mail Usage: All District employees, consultants and other non-employees
utilizing electronic communications with the District (hereinafter “E-mail users”)
must abide by the following requirements:

1. District Property: The District’s electronic systems and the contents
thereof are the sole property of the District and therefore not
considered personal. Communications sent over the System are
subject to monitoring by the District and may be subject to disclosure
under the Public Records Act or litigation.  Communications
transmitted over the System should be restricted to business activities
of the District or communications that contain information related to
the accomplishment of District business, administration or practices.
Incidental personal use is allowed, subject to the provision below.

2. E-mail Retention: E-mail messages which are intended to be
retained in the ordinary course of the District's business are
recognized as official records that require protection/retention in
accordance with the California Public Records Act. Because the e-
mail system is not designed for long-term storage, e-mail
communications, which are intended to be retained as an official
record, shall be filed in electronic or hard copy form as appropriate in
the appropriate subject file. E-mail messages which are responsive to

Page 52




existing public record requests, subpoena or production demand, or
which are otherwise relevant to pending litigation or claim, shall be
likewise retained in electronic or hard copy format.

Improper Use: All of the following will be considered and treated as
improper use which is strictly prohibited:

Use of the System for transmitting any information that is
discriminatory, harassing, or obscene, including but not limited
to: comments based on race, national origin, gender, sexual
orientation, age, disability, religion, or political beliefs.

Use of the System for transmitting any information that counsels
insubordination, harms close-working relationships, publicizes a
personal dispute, undermines the District's ability to provide
public services through its employees or harms the integrity of
the System or network.

Use of the System to solicit, promote or proselytize others for
non-job related commercial ventures, religious or political
causes, or other non-job-related activities.

Use of the System in any way that communicates with the Board
of Directors in such a way as to violate the Ralph M. Brown Act.

Attorney-Client Privilege: E-mail messages transmitted to or from
District Legal Counsel and/or his/her employees and agents are
considered to be confidential work product communications and
subject to the attorney/client privilege.

Pre-Approval of Outside Information: All materials — diskettes,
flash drives, CDs, DVDs, applications, documents, downloaded
materials, etc. — brought into the workplace from external sources
must be approved by the General Manager before being installed or
used on the District's computer system.

Monitoring: The District reserves the right to monitor the System
including reviewing, auditing, and disclosing all matters sent over
and/or stored in the System.

Personal Cellular Phones: Personal calls during the work hours,
regardless of the phone used can interfere with employee productivity,
safety and may be distracting to others. Therefore, employee use of

Page 53




cell phones for personal business is only permitted during lunch time
rest breaks. Employee violation of this policy may be subject to
disciplinary action. Employees are allowed to make personal calls
during breaks and lunch and should further ensure that friends and
family members are aware of the District’s policy. Personal calls while
not on work break or lunch shall be limited to the minimum time
possible to address a family emergency or immediate need. (The
District will not be liable for the loss of personal cellular phones
brought into the workplace. Cellular telephones may not be used to
defame, harass, intimidate, or threaten any other person.) Employees
are prohibited from using their cell phones in any illegal, illicit or
offensive manner.

Personal Use of District-Provided Communication Devices:
Where job or business needs demand immediate access to an
employee, the District may authorize issue of a business cell phone,
and/or two-way radio for work-related communications. In order to
protect the employee from incurring a tax liability for the personal use
of equipment, such equipment should be used for District purposes
only.

All employees understand that while some minimal personal use
is inevitable, a District provided phone is intended for District
business calls only. Call summary reports (i.e. number of
minutes used) are distributed to supervisors on a periodic basis
and are to be reviewed for reasonableness. Employees will
reimburse the District for any overage charges related to
personal calls. The call detail records generated from assigned
cell phones are considered records of the District and may, on
occasion, be subject to internal and outside audits by the District
and/or official agencies.

Employees in possession of District equipment (e.g., cellular
phones, pagers, radios, etc.) are expected to protect the
equipment from loss, damage or theft. Upon resignation,
termination of employment, or at any time upon request, the
employee will be asked to produce the equipment for return or
inspection. Employees unable to present the equipment in good
working condition within a reasonable time period (i.e., 24 hours)
will bear the cost of a replacement. Employees who separate
from employment with outstanding debts for equipment loss or
unauthorized charges will be considered to have left
employment on unsatisfactory terms and may be subject to legal

Page 54




action for recovery of the loss. Any outstanding debt will be
deducted from the employee’s final pay check.

Cellular Phone Use while Operating a Vehicle: Employees whose
job responsibilities include driving or equipment operation should
refrain from using their phone/communication device while driving a
District vehicle or while driving any other vehicle (rented, leased,
borrowed, or their own vehicle) while conducting District business.

Drivers shall comply with all federal, state, and local laws and
regulations regarding the use of mobile technology devices
including cell phones. Incoming or outgoing cellular phone calls
are not allowed while driving. Sending or reading text messages,
emails, dialing cellular phones, viewing television, videos, or
DVD’s and inputting data into laptop computers, personal digital
assistants or navigation systems are prohibited while driving.
The cellular phone voicemail feature should be on to store
incoming calls while driving and all message retrievals and calls
should be made after the vehicle is safely parked.

If acceptance of a call is unavoidable and pulling over is not an
option, employees are expected to keep the call short, use
hands-free options, refrain from complicated or emotional
discussions and keep their eyes on the road. Special care
should be taken in situations where there is traffic, inclement
weather, or the employee is driving in an unfamiliar area.

In situations where job responsibilities include regular driving
and acceptance of business calls, hands-free equipment may be
provided to facilitate the provisions of this policy. District vehicles
are furnished with hands-free cellular equipment. Under no
circumstances are employees required to place themselves at
risk to fulfill business needs.

Driving while distracted in the State of California is a moving
violation. Accidents incurred while the driver is using a cellular
phone may be considered to be preventable and the driver may
be subject to disciplinary action. Employees who are charged
with traffic violations resulting from the use of their phone while
driving will be responsible for all financial liabilities (fines
associated with citations) that result from such actions.

Failure to follow this policy may result in disciplinary action,
including and up to termination.

Page 55




Incidental Personal Use: Employees are allowed incidental personal use of
the District’s Technology Resources during non-working periods. This incidental
personal use shall not interfere with District business. Even if technology
resources are used during non-working periods, employees should not have any
expectation of privacy of information transmitted or placed on the District's
technology resources. The information is still subject to review, monitoring, and
disclosure.

Social Media: Employees are not allowed to use the District’s Technology
Resources for personal access to any type of social media, including Facebook,
Twitter, blogs, etc. These items (and any others properly characterized as
forms of social media) should not be accessed for personal use from any District
computer, cell phone, smart phone, tablet or other technology resources; or
from personal communication devices while on District work time.

Discipline: Anyone found to have engaged in any of the prohibited practices
mentioned above will be subject to termination of System access, disciplinary
action up to and including termination of employment.

Page 56




4030 - VEHICLE COST REIMBURSEMENT

A.

Rate of Reimbursement: When an employee is authorized to use his/her
personal vehicle in the performance of District work, he/she shall be reimbursed
for the cost of said use on the basis of total miles driven and at the rate specified
in the Internal Revenue Service Guidelines in effect at the time of said usage.

Pre-Approval Required: Employees shall request approval to use a personal
vehicle in lieu of a District vehicle in writing to the employee’s supervisor. Use of
personal vehicles shall not be authorized for the performance of District work if a
suitable District vehicle is available. Every attempt shall be made to coordinate
work so that District vehicles are available for the performance of said work.

Proof of Insurance: Proof of insurance that meets the minimum insurance
requirements of the State of California shall be required by the District of any
employee using a personal vehicle in the performance of District work.

Accident: Should a vehicle accident occur during an employee’s travels for
District purposes, the employee’s personal vehicle insurance will be considered
primary.

Page 57




4040 - BUSINESS TRAVEL AND REIMBURSEMENT

It is the policy of the District to reimburse District employees for expenses while
attending to District business, including but not limited to conferences, meetings,
seminars and classes as provided for in Section 4060. All travel must be pre-approved
by the General Manager. On those occasions where vehicle “non-routine” travel is
required outside the District boundaries; the following procedures shall apply:

A.

Use of District Vehicles: An employee must obtain permission from the
General Manager to use a District vehicle. Any out of pocket expenses, such as
parking and tolls, shall be reimbursed upon presentation of receipts.

Use of Private Vehicle:

1. If an employee is authorized to use his/her private vehicle on District
business by the General Manager, he/she shall be compensated at
the prevailing IRS per diem mileage rate.

2. Use of personal vehicles shall not be authorized for the performance
of District work if a suitable District vehicle is available.

3. Every attempt shall be made to coordinate work so that District
vehicles are available and operational for the performance of said
work.

4, Proof of insurance that meets the minimum insurance requirements of

the State of California shall be required by the District of any
employee using a personal vehicle in the performance of District work.

Should a vehicle accident occur during an employee’s travels for District
purposes, the employee’s personal vehicle insurance will be considered primary.

Air/Other Travel: When the distance may be too great for driving a vehicle, an
employee may be authorized to commute by other modes (air, bus, train, etc.).
The District shall reimburse the employee for all required and reasonable
commute-related costs (fares, fees, related costs).

Lodging: It is the policy of the District to exercise prudence with respect to
hotel/motel accommodations. It is also the policy of the District for Board
members and staff to stay at the main hotel/motel location of a conference,
seminar, or class to gain maximum participation and advantage of interaction
with others whenever possible. Actual hotel/motel costs shall be reimbursed.
Personal phone calls, movies, shacks and other hotel incidentals are not

Page 58




reimbursable. If lodging is in connection with a conference or educational
activity, lodging costs shall not exceed the maximum group rate published by
the conference or activity sponsor, provided that lodging at the group rate is
available at the time of booking. If the group rate is not available, comparable
lodging will be used provided it is reasonable. Government and group rates for
lodging will be used whenever possible.

Meals: Meals may be reimbursed at the actual cost, when accompanied by a
receipt, provided that the expense is reasonable.

An employee shall be eligible for breakfast reimbursement if they are required
to leave prior to 6:30 a.m. in order to reach his/her destination on time and
dinner reimbursement if they arrive back in after 7:30 p.m. The employee may
be authorized a dinner reimbursement if they are required to leave in the
evening prior to a conference, meeting or class. An employee shall not
receive reimbursement for a meal when that meal is included in the
registration of a conference or class. Conversely, if a meal is included as part
of the conference, but the cost is additional, the employee may be reimbursed
the additional out of pocket expenses for the meal provided receipts are
turned in.

Employees are not to claim reimbursement for other employees except for
expenses shared in common, such as taxi fares.

Credit Cards: Credit cards may be provided to designated employees for use
in connection with District business.

Page 59




4050 - ACCEPTING & PROVIDING GIFTS

Employees may accept gifts from third parties, subject to all applicable disclosures rules
and gift limits established under the Political Reform Act and the Fair Political Practice
Commission’s regulations. If you receive a gift from a third party due to your affiliation
with the District, you are required to report the gift to your supervisor within 48 hours, so
that the District can assess if any reporting requirements apply.

Page 60




4060 - EDUCATION AND TRAINING

A.

Education Required as a Condition of Employment: Attendance at
seminars, conferences and/or training sessions will be treated as hours worked
when:

1. Attendance is required to maintain certification for the current job
classification of the employee or when attendance is directed by the
General Manager or his/her designee;

2. The Seminar, Conference and/or Training Session is not offered
during regular working hours; and

3. The General Manager has approved the attendance.

Attendance at Seminars, Conferences and/or Training Sessions must be pre-
approved by the General Manager fifteen (15) calendar days in advance. When
authorized and required by law, travel time and attendance time outside of
regular working hours will be compensated at the overtime rate except for FLSA
Exempt employees. The General Manager may require employees to work
modified schedules to facilitate employee attendance at seminars, conferences
and/or training sessions during working hours. When appropriate, travel and
reimbursement costs will be paid in accordance with the Business Travel and
Reimbursement Policy. If a Seminar, Conference and/or Training Session is
offered on-line, then the class will be taken via internet. Otherwise, if it is offered
in several locations, the closest location to the Community Services District is
preferred.

Page 61




CHAPTER FIVE — BENEFITS

5000- BENEFITS AND INSURANCE COVERAGE

A.

Medical Expense Insurance: The District provides medical insurance to the
Maintenance Manager, Maintenance Supervisor, and all full-time employees
up to nine-hundred and thirty-four dollars ($934.00) per month for employees
only, or greater amount, if approved by the Board of Directors.

. Dependents: Employee may enroll eligible dependents but shall pay all

premium costs related to such dependents. The scope of coverage, the
specific providers, and the payment of premiums may be subject to review
and revision by the Board of Directors.

The District does not provide dental or vision insurance.

New employees are eligible for health insurance the first day of the month
following thirty days of employment.

Workers’ Compensation Insurance: All District employees will be insured
against injuries received while on the job in accordance with State law.

Page 62




Page 63




Page 64




5010 - VACATION

This policy shall apply only to fulltime regular and introductory employees in all
classifications.

Rate of Accrual: 80.0 hours per year (accrued each pay period):

A. Limitations on Accumulated Vacation Time: An employee shall be able to
accrue no more than one-hundred twenty (120) hours of vacation once the
maximum vacation accrual is reached, vacation time will no longer be
accumulated. Once the vacation accrual is below the maximum, vacation
accrual will again start to accumulate.

B. Termination: At termination of employment for any reason, the District shall
compensate the regular fulltime employee for his/her accumulated vacation time
at his/her straight time rate of pay at the time of termination.

C. Unpaid Leave of Absence: No vacation accrues during any unpaid leave of
absence. An employee is not permitted to borrow on future accrual of vacation
benefits.

D. Holidays: If a holiday falls on a workday during an employee’s vacation period,

that day shall be considered as a paid holiday and not vacation time.

E. Requesting Vacation: Employees must submit vacation requests to their
supervisor. Supervisors will consider requests in light of all relevant criteria,
including operational concerns, seniority, scheduling issues, leave balances,
timing of the request, and fairness. Leave Request Form is located at Appendix
“J".

F. Introductory Employees: Introductory employees accrue vacation time during
their introductory period and are subject to the same policies for use as regular
fulltime employees.

G. No Cash-Out During Employment: Vacations are provided by the District to
employees as a period of time away from work with pay for the purpose of rest,
relaxation, and recreation. This respite is a benefit and is intended as an aid in
maintaining the long-term and consistent productivity and contentment of the
employee. As such, pay in lieu of vacation time away from work shall not be
permitted. In addition, employees are not expected to and should not work
during their vacation.

Page 65




Page 66




5020 - HOLIDAYS

This policy shall apply to all fulltime regular and introductory employees.

A.

Days Designhated as Holidays: The following days shall be recognized and
observed as paid holidays:

New Year’s Day;,
Memorial Day;
Independence Day;
Labor Day;
Thanksgiving Day;
Christmas Day;

Requirements: All regular work shall be suspended and employees shall
receive one (1) day’s pay for each of the holidays listed above. An employee on
a leave without pay will not receive holiday pay. In order to receive holiday pay,
you must work the regularly scheduled work day prior to and after the holiday
unless vacation has been pre-approved. If an employee is on approved
vacation when a holiday occurs, the employee will receive holiday pay in lieu of
vacation for the scheduled holiday.

Holidays on Weekends: Whenever a holiday falls on Saturday, the preceding
Friday shall be observed as the holiday. Whenever a holiday falls on Sunday,
the following Monday shall be observed as the holiday.

Work on Holidays: If any employee works on any of the holidays listed above,
he/she shall, in addition to his/her holiday pay, be paid for all hours worked at
the rate of time and one-half (1%) his/her regular rate of pay or as otherwise
specified under Section 3000 except for FLSA Exempt employees.

5030 - SICK LEAVE

Full-time introductory, regular employees, and part-time employees in all classifications
earn sick leave. Full-time and Part-time employees earn sick leave benefits at a different
rate. (See D. below)

A.

Definition of Sick Leave: Sick leave is defined as absence from work due to
illness, non-industrial injury, or quarantine due to exposure to a contagious
disease.

Page 67




Usage: Sick leave may be used for dental and doctor appointments, including
the actual time spent at the appointment and a reasonable amount of time to
travel to and from the appointment. The employee must report to work prior to
the appointment and report back to work after the appointment, if reasonable.
Employees are expected to schedule appointments so as to minimize the time
away from and disruption to work.

Kin Care: In any calendar year, an employee may use accrued sick leave, up to
the amount earned during six months of employment, to attend to the illness of
an immediate family member as defined in Section 1010 (I). After this maximum
allotment is used, employees can take accrued vacation to attend to the illness
of an immediate family member in accordance with the District’'s rules for
scheduling and taking vacation time.

Rate of Accrual: Employees shall earn sick leave at the following rates:

Full time regular and introductory employees accrue 5.87 hours of sick leave per
month (Accrued each pay period) up to a maximum of one-hundred-twenty (120)
work days. Such employees may use such sick leave for existing healthcare, or
preventative care for themselves or family member, or for the specified purposes
for an employee who is a victim of domestic violence, sexual assault, or stalking.

Part-time regular and introductory employees accrue one hour of sick leave for
every 30 hours worked, beginning with their first day of employment. Such
employees may accrue up to a maximum of forty-eight hours or six workdays,
and may use such sick leave for existing healthcare, or preventative care for
themselves or family member, or for the specified purposes for an employee who
is a victim of domestic violence, sexual assault, or stalking.

Accumulated Sick leave is not available for cash out upon termination or
retirement.

Employees who work overtime do not accrue any additional sick leave credit.

Requirements: Sick leave shall not be used in lieu of or in addition to vacation
leave. If an employee calls in sick the day before a holiday, the employee will
not be eligible for holiday pay.

No Borrowing or Advance Accrual: An employee is not permitted to borrow
on future accrual of sick benefits.

Page 68




Unpaid Leave: Sick leave does not accrue during any unpaid leave of
absence.

Notification Requirement: In order to receive compensation while on sick
leave, the employee shall notify his/her supervisor a minimum of 30 minutes
prior to the time for beginning the regular work day that illness will prevent them
from coming to work. Supervisors shall be notified of scheduled doctor’s
appointments or other approved needs for sick leave usage as far in advance as
possible, if known.

Abuse of Sick Leave: If an employee is absent due to illness, if the District
reasonably suspects abuse of sick leave, if there is a pattern of sick leave
usage, or if an employee’s sick leave balances are consistently maintained at a
low level, a doctor’'s note may be required. Failure to provide a doctor’'s note
upon request may be grounds for disciplinary action and/or denial of sick leave
benefits.

Not Guaranteed Benefit: Sick leave is a benefit provided to employees for
sporadic time off work in the event of true illness or need for medical care.
Employees are not guaranteed the ability to take all sick leave that may accrue
except as provided by law. If an employee is unable to perform the essential
functions of his or her position, then the District may take steps to remove the
employee from his or her position even if sick leave remains available.

Page 69




CHAPTER SIX - FAMILY AND MEDICAL LEAVE

6000 - FAMILY AND MEDICAL LEAVE

The District provides Family and Medical Leave in accordance with state California
Family Rights Act (CFRA) and federal Family and Medical Leave Act (FMLA) leave laws.

A.

D.

Basis for

Family and Medical Leave: Family and Medical Leave may be taken

for the birth of the employee’s child, the placement of a child with the employee
for adoption or foster care, to care for the employee’s spouse, child or parent
who has a serious health condition, or for a serious health condition that makes
the employee unable to perform his/her job. Leave can also be taken for certain
military-related reasons as further detailed below.

Eligibility: To be eligible for Family and Medical Leave, you must have at least
12 months of service with the District and must have worked at least 1,250
hours during the 12-month period preceding the date the leave is to begin.

Duration:

1.

Except as provided below with respect to certain types of military-
related leave, Employees may take up to a maximum of 12
workweeks of Family and Medical Leave within a 12-month period.
The District uses a rolling twelve-month period to determine an
employee’s eligibility for leave. The 12-month period is measured
backward from the date an employee uses any family leave.

Leave may be taken intermittently (in blocks of time or on a reduced-
time schedule) if the leave is for the serious health condition of the
employee or the employee’s family member and if such intermittent
leave is medically necessary as determined by the health care
provider of the person with the serious health condition. The smallest
increment of time that can be used for such leave is 0.25 of an hour.

Intermittent leave may be taken in two-week increments for the birth
or placement of a child. Intermittent leave for a shorter period (at
least one day) may be taken on a maximum of two occasions. Any
leave taken for the birth, adoption, or foster placement of a child must
be taken within one year of the birth or placement of the child with the
employee. If both parents are employees of the District, the parents
are eligible for a combined total of twelve weeks leave for the birth or
placement of a child.

Procedures:

Page 70




a.

a.

It is employee’s responsibility to contact the General Manager in
writing as soon as you become aware of the need for family and
medical leave.

If the leave is for the birth, adoption, or foster placement of a child, or
for planned medical treatment for a serious health condition of the
employee or family member, the employee must provide at least 30
days’ advance notice before the leave is to begin. If 30 days’ notice is
not possible, notice must be given as soon as practicable.

If the leave is needed for the employee’s own serious health
condition, the employee must provide a certification from the health
care provider stating:

The date of commencement of the serious health condition;
The probable duration of the condition;

That the employee is unable to work at all or is unable to
perform any one or more of the essential functions of his/her
position because of the employee’s serious health condition.

At the conclusion of leave, the District will require certification by the
employee’s health care provider that the employee is fit to return to
his/her job.

If the leave is needed to care for the serious health condition of a
family member, the employee must provide certification from the
health care provider stating:

The date of commencement of the serious health condition;
The probable duration of the condition;

An estimate of the amount of time that the health care provider
believes the employee needs to take in order to care for the
child, parent, or spouse; and

Confirmation that the serious health condition warrants the
participation of the employee.

If the Family and Medical Leave request is for the employee’s own
serious health condition and the District has reason to doubt the
validity of the medical certification provided by the employee, the
District may require, at its expense, a second opinion from a health
care provider designated by the District. The health care provider

Page 71




designated by the District will not be one who is employed on a
regular basis by the District. If the second opinion differs from the first
opinion, the District may require, at its expense, that the employee
obtain a third opinion by a health care provider approved jointly by the
District and the employee. The third opinion shall be considered final
and binding on the District and the employee.

Recertification may be required if the employee requests an extension
beyond the original certification.

E. Compensation and Benefits:

1.

Family and Medical Leave is unpaid. An employee taking family and
medical leave due to the employee’s serious health condition must
substitute all accrued sick leave, unused paid vacation, personal
leave, paid time off, and short-term salary continuation, if applicable,
before continuing leave on an unpaid basis. An employee taking
leave for reasons other than an employee’s own serious health
condition must exhaust all accrued unused paid vacation, personal
leave, and any other form of paid time off before continuing leave on
an unpaid basis. Any family and medical leave, whether paid, unpaid,
or a combination thereof, will be counted toward the 12-week leave
entittement. Employees on leave will not continue to accrue vacation
time or sick time and will not be paid for holidays during the leave,
unless otherwise required by this Handbook or applicable law.

For any period of time that an employee is eligible for and is receiving
wage replacement benefits under any type of disability benefit plan
(i.e., short- or long-term disability benefits), the employee is not
required to use accrued personal time off. The employee may,
however, supplement these wage-replacement payments with
personal time off on a pro rata basis.

An employee taking Family and Medical Leave will be allowed to
continue participating in any health and welfare benefit plans in which
he/she was enrolled before the first day of the leave (for up to a
maximum of 12 workweeks) at the level and under the conditions of
coverage as if the employee had continued in employment for the
duration of such leave. Employees must continue to pay their share
of premiums, even during unpaid portion of leave. A payment
schedule for employee premiums will be set up with the General
Manager at the time the leave commences. The District will continue
to make the same premium contribution as if the employee had
continued working. The continued participation in health benefits

Page 72




begins on the date leave first begins. An employee who does not
return from leave may be required, under certain circumstances
provided by the law, to reimburse the District for any employee
contributions paid by the District while the employee was on unpaid
leave.

Service Member Family and Medical Leave:
Eligible employees are entitled to such leave in the following instances:

Military-Related Leave: Eligible employees with a spouse, child, or
parent on active duty or called to active duty in the National Guard or
Reserves in support of a contingency operation may take up to the
normal 12 weeks of leave because of any “qualifying exigency.” For
purposes of this policy, “qualifying exigency” includes: (1) short-notice
deployment; (2) military events and related activities; (3) childcare and
school activities; (4) finance and legal arrangements; (5) counseling;
(6) rest and recuperation; (7) post-deployment activities; and (8)
additional activities agreed to by the employer and the employee.
This leave is available only to families of service members in the
National Guard or Reserves — not to families of service members in
the Regular Armed Forces.

Military Caregiver Leave: An eligible employee who is the spouse,
son, daughter, parent, or next-of-kin of a covered service member
(includes a current member of the Regular Armed Forces as well as
the National Guard or Reserves) may take up to 26 weeks of leave
within a twelve-month period to care for such a service member with a
serious injury or illness incurred in the line of active duty. For
purposes of this type of leave, the 12-month period begins on the first
day the employee takes leave for this purpose and ends 12 months
thereafter. This leave entitlement applies on a per-covered service
member, per injury basis. Leave to care for an injured or ill service
member — when combined with other FMLA-qualifying leave — may
not exceed 26 weeks in a single 12-month period.

F. Amount of Leave:

1.

For a qualifying exigency, an employee is entitled to a maximum of 12
weeks leave (when combined with leave for any other qualifying
reason) in accordance with the rolling 12-month period measured
backward.

Page 73




2. To care for an ill or injured service member, an eligible employee is
entitled to a combined total of 26 weeks of leave for any FMLA-
gualifying reason during the single 12-month period that starts when
the leave begins. During this 12-month period, an employee is
entitled to no more than 12 weeks of leave for any qualifying reason
other than caring for a service member.

Other Military Leave Entitlements: The District also complies with any
applicable leave entitlements provided by any state or local law. Where
allowed, military leave under this policy runs concurrently with these other
leaves.

Procedures: Please contact the General Manager as soon as you become
aware of the need for any type of service member Family Medical Leave.
Except in the case of exigency leave for short-notice deployment, the District
requires certification of the need for leave and will provide an employee
requesting service member leave with an appropriate form to complete and
return.

Reinstatement:

1. Upon return from a Family and Medical Leave, an employee will be
reinstated to his/her original position or to a comparable position with
equivalent pay, benefits, and other employment terms and conditions.
However, an employee has no greater right to reinstatement than if
the employee had been continuously employed rather than on leave.
For example, if an employee on Family and Medical Leave would
have been laid off had he/she not gone on leave, or if the employee’s
position has been eliminated during the leave, then the employee
would not be entitled to reinstatement. An employee’s use of Family
and Medical Leave will not result in the loss of any employment
benefit that the employee earned or was entitled to before the leave.

2. Reinstatement may be denied to certain salaried “key” employees.
Such employees will be notified of this possibility at the time the leave
is requested.

3. If an employee fails to report to work promptly at the end of the leave,
the District will assume that the employee has resigned.

Page 74




6010 - PREGNANCY RELATED LEAVES AND TRANSFER PRIVILEGES

A. Eligibility for Leave:

1.

The District provides pregnancy disability leaves of absence without
pay to eligible employees who are temporarily unable to work due to a
disability related to pregnancy, childbirth, or related medical
conditions.

Employees who are affected by pregnancy or a related medical
condition are also eligible to transfer to a less strenuous or hazardous
position or to less strenuous or hazardous duties, if such a transfer is
medically advisable and can be reasonably accommodated. Where
transfers are made based on the employee’s health needs, the
employee will receive the pay that accompanies the alternative
position.

B. Procedures for Requesting Leave:

1.

An employee should make requests for pregnancy disability leave to
his/her supervisor at least 30 days in advance of foreseeable events
and as soon as possible for unforeseeable events.

A health care provider's statement must be submitted verifying the
need for pregnancy disability leave and stating:

The date on which the employee became disabled due to
pregnancy, childbirth or related medical condition or the date on
which the need for a transfer became medically advisable;

The probable duration of the period or periods of disability or the
need for transfer; and

A statement that, due to the disability, the employee is unable to
perform one or more of the essential functions of her position
without undue risk to herself, the successful completion of her
pregnancy, or to other persons, or that the transfer is medically
advisable.

Re-certification may be required if the employee requests an
extension beyond the original certification.

Any changes in this information contained in the health care provider’s
statement should be promptly reported to the General Manager.

Page 75




C. Length of Leave:

1.

Full-time employees are normally granted unpaid leave for the period
of the disability, up to a maximum of four months (or 17 1/3 weeks or
the maximum amount of leave provided for other disabilities subject to
current law. Part-time employees are granted unpaid leave on a pro-
rata basis.

The pregnancy disability leave does not need to be taken in one
continuous period of time but can be taken on an as-needed basis. In
other words, leave may be taken intermittently or on a reduced work
schedule when determined medically advisable by the employee’s
health care provider. The smallest increment of time that can be used
for such leave is 0.25 of an hour. The District may transfer the
employee to an alternative position or alter the existing job to
accommodate intermittent leave or a reduced work schedule. The
employee will receive the same pay and benefits in the alternative
position.

An employee taking pregnancy leave must substitute all accrued sick
leave before continuing on an unpaid basis. The employee may
substitute all accrued paid vacation and sick leave, before continuing
leave on an unpaid basis. Substituted paid leave time will be counted
toward the 17 1/3 week entitlement.

D. Benefits During Leave:

1.

Employees on leave will not continue to accrue vacation or sick leave
time and will not be paid for holidays during the leave, unless
otherwise required herein, or applicable law. However, when an
employee is out on leave that is protected by the Family and Medical
Leave Act (FMLA), that employee will continue accruing paid leave as
long as the employee is using paid leave benefits. If an employee on
FMLA leave uses all paid leave in accordance with the District's FMLA
policy and remains unable to return to work, then the remainder of the
FMLA leave will be unpaid. During the period of unpaid FMLA leave,
the employee will not continue to accrue paid leave, consistent with
the District’s policy for all types of unpaid leave.

The District will allow the employee to continue participating in any
health and welfare benefit plans in which he/she was enrolled before
the first day of the leave (for up to a maximum of 17 1/3 workweeks)
at the level and under the conditions of coverage as if the employee

Page 76




had continued in employment for the duration of such leave.
Employees must continue to pay their share of premiums, even during
any unpaid portion of leave. A payment schedule for employee
premiums will be set up with the District at the time the leave
commences. The District will continue to make the same premium
contribution as if the employee had continued working. The continued
participation in health benefits begins on the date leave first begins.
An employee who does not return from leave may be required, under
certain circumstances provided by the law, to reimburse the District
for any employee contributions paid by the District while the employee
was on unpaid leave.

E. Return to Work:

1.

So that an employee’s return to work can be properly scheduled, an
employee on pregnancy disability leave must provide the General
Manager with at least two weeks’ advance notice of the date she
intends to return to work.

When a pregnancy disability-leave ends, an employee will be
reinstated to her original position or to a comparable position with
equivalent pay, benefits, and other employment terms and conditions.
However, an employee has no greater right to reinstatement than if
the employee had been continuously employed rather than on leave.
For example, if an employee on Pregnancy Leave would have been
laid off had she not gone on leave, or if the employee’s position has
been eliminated during the leave and there is no comparable position
available, then the employee would not be entitled to reinstatement.
An employee’s use of Pregnancy Leave will not result in the loss of
any employment benefit that the employee earned or was entitled to
before the leave.

An employee returning from pregnancy disability leave must submit a
health care provider’s verification of his/her fitness to return to work.

If an employee fails to report to work promptly at the end of the
pregnancy disability leave, the District will assume that the employee
has resigned.

6020- WORKERS' COMPENSATION

All employees are covered for Workers’ Compensation, effective the first day of
employment. Workers’ Compensation provides employees and/or their beneficiaries

Page 77




with certain benefits in the event of a work-related illness, injury, or accidental death.
The District pays the full cost of this coverage, whether through a self-insurance
mechanism or an insurance product. If an employee sustains a work-related illness or
injury, they shall report the illness or injury to their immediate supervisor or General
Manager the day the injury or illness occurs. Failure to do so for good cause may
result in disciplinary action.

All payments for lost wages or salary due to a legitimate work-related illness or injury,
medical treatment, and any other benefits will be made by the workers’ compensation
claims administrator or insurance carrier as required by law. Workers’ Compensation
benefit payments may be coordinated with any accrued sick leave or vacation leave as
part of a medical or disability leave of absence.

The following policies apply to any employee, compelled to be absent due to injury,
illness or disability covered under Worker's Compensation Benefits, provided the
District is in receipt of a certification form from a recognized medical professional
confirming the necessity of the leave, within fourteen (14) days after the leave
begins.

1. Unpaid leave of absence: Employees are allowed to take unpaid leave of
absence while receiving Worker's Compensation benefits. The duration of the
leave will be determined on a case by case basis, considering both the injured
employee’s medical condition and the District’s business needs.

Subiject to the terms and conditions of the insurance policies and applicable law,
the District will continue to provide health insurance benefits for the minimum
period authorized by the Family Medical Leave Act (generally twelve (12) weeks
per twelve (12) month period), provided that the employee continues to pay
his/her portion of the premium payments. The District, in its sole discretion, may
extend the benefits continuation period on a case-by-case basis, considering
both the District's business necessities and the likelihood and timing of the
employee’s return to work.

2. Use of Sick Leave and Vacation Time: Employees can use accrued sick
leave on a prorated basis to make up the difference between compensation
received by him/her as regular salary and the amount received as worker’s
compensation.  After sick leave is exhausted, the employee may also
supplement with accrued vacation leave.

Subject to the terms and conditions of applicable plans and insurance policies,
the District will continue to provide health insurance benefits until the employee
has exhausted all of his/her accrued sick leave and vacation leave (assuming
employee takes the election as provided in this Section). Thereafter, health

Page 78




insurance benefits will continue during the worker's compensation leave as
provided in Paragraph A above.

Limitation on Benefits: Employees will not accrue vacation or sick leave
benefits during the periods of absence referenced in paragraphs A and B
above. Unless an employee is using accrued vacation, employees will nhot be
paid for holidays during the periods of absence referenced in paragraphs A
and B above.

Return to Work: Employees may return to work only after a recognized
medical professional certifies that the employee is capable of resuming all of
the duties of the employee’s position. The District may, in its discretion,
provide modified or light duty work, as provided in Section 6030 of this
Handbook. The District will make reasonable accommodations for qualified
employees with disabilities in accordance with state and federal disability laws.
If the employee has been released without limitation, the employee will be
offered the same position he or she held previously, unless the job no longer
exists or has been filled so that the District can operate safely and efficiently or
the employment relationship has otherwise been terminated for legitimate
business reasons.

Termination: Consistent with current policy and legal requirements, the District
may terminate employment upon receipt of medical evidence that the employee
will be permanently unable to resume his/her position, the employees’ job no
longer exists or has been permanently filled, the District must terminate the
employment due to business necessity, or employment is otherwise terminated
pursuant to District policy. In all cases, prior to termination, the District will
engage in an interactive process to ascertain if areasonable
accommodation will enable the employee to return to work.

Page 79




6030 - EARLY RETURN TO WORK

Community Services District recognizes the need to provide temporary
modified/alternative work to an employee who is unable to perform regular duties due to
industrial illness or injury. In this regard, it is our intent, whenever possible to implement
an Early-Return-to-Work Program designed to return the injured employee to work in a
physically appropriate job as soon as the treating physician deems it medically feasible.

This policy applies to all employees. Due to the limited amount of modified/alternative
work available, employees are assigned on a “first-come, first-served” basis, to
appropriate positions as available.

A. Purpose: The purpose of this program is:

1. To assist employees in the transition from disability to full recovery
while continuing to be a productive part of the work force, while
minimizing the deterioration of the employee’s work skills, health and
attitude that may result from prolonged work absence; and

2. To provide management with a constructive program to reduce the
cost of Worker's Compensation and to minimize the loss of
productivity.

B. Determination: The General Manager will determine the employee’s eligibility

for the program, placement in modified/alternative work, record keeping, and
monitoring the progress and full return to work of the employee(s) in the Early
Return to Work program.

C. Timing: The modified/alternative work will be implemented as soon as possible
S0 as to minimize lost time and wages. The temporary/modified/alternative work
assignment is not considered to be part of the regular staffing pattern. The
employee must have a medical clearance authorization slip from the attending
physician specifying work restrictions and abilities.

D. Scheduling Concerns: An Early-Return-To-Work Program participant is
encouraged to schedule physical therapy and doctor’s appointments around
his/her work schedules to avoid loss of earning power and to prevent disruption
of business. If this cannot be arranged, appointments should be scheduled at
the beginning or end of the work day. All appointments requiring time away
from work must have written verification of time in and out of the facility to
present to his/her supervisor.

E. Requirement to Report Changes: If employee’s health status changes, it must
be reported immediately to his/her supervisor and the General Manager. The
employee’s medical condition, including limitations and restrictions given by the

Page 80




treating physician, will be considered as a priority when identifying the
modified/alternative work.

Periodic Evaluation: While on the temporary modified/alternative work
program, an employee who has experienced an on-the-job-injury, will be
evaluated every thirty (30) days and when his/her medical condition has been
determined to be permanent and stationary.

Duration of Assignment: A modified/alternative job offer will be made only
when the work is available and of benefit to the District. The
modified/alternative work, if offered, will end with the date the employee
receives a regular release, and may be ended at any time if there is no longer a
need for modified/alternative work. Modified/alternative jobs are always
temporary for a finite period of time. Each case will be assessed individually
based on need. Wages and hours will not necessarily be the same as that of
the regular job. If the treating physician determines that an employee is
permanently prevented from returning to his/her former and available regular
position, the modified/alternative work assignment will be terminated. At that
point, the District will engage in an interactive process with the employee to
assess whether the employee is qualified and eligible for a reasonable
accommodation.

Page 81




6050 - JURY DUTY LEAVE

This policy shall apply to introductory and regular employees in all classifications.

An employee summoned for jury duty will immediately notify their Supervisor(s) and/or
General Manager. While serving on a jury, he/she will be given a paid leave of absence
for the duration of said jury duty at his/her regular pay rate. Said paid leave of absence
is conditional upon the employee returning to work upon dismissal each day to complete
his/her remaining normal workday (if the employee is dismissed prior to the conclusion
of his or her normal workday at the District). It is also conditional upon the employee
providing the District with any compensation received.

While serving on jury duty, employee shall request proof of jury duty service and attach it
to his or her time card.

Page 82




6060 - VOLUNTARY LEAVE OF ABSENCE WITHOUT PAY

An employee may request a leave of absence without pay for a period of up to 30 days.
The General Manager will consider the request in light of all relevant factors, including
the reasons for the leave, the District's staffing needs, and workload considerations.
The following requirements will apply:

A.

Usage of Vacation: Voluntary leaves of absence may be taken in conjunction
with, and at the conclusion of, an authorized use of vacation. Voluntary leaves
of absence without pay will only be authorized once all available vacation time
has been used by the employee. During any unpaid portion of the leave of
absence, the employee will not accrue any further paid time off (sick leave,
vacation, holiday, or administrative leave).

Limited Job Guarantee: Due to the District’s limited work force, maintenance
of job classifications for the term of a voluntary authorized leave of absence
without pay cannot be guaranteed beyond the date of the end of the approved
leave period.

Continuation of Benefits: Medical and other insurance benefits will continue
during any period of unpaid leave of absence provided that (1) the employee
pays the entire cost of his or her medical benefit premiums, and (2) such
continuation coverage is allowed under the terms of the particular insurance
plans.

Page 83




6070 - OTHER LEAVES

The District provides all eligible employees with other leaves of absence as required by
applicable law, including (but not limited to) the following:

A.

Voting Time: If an employee’s work schedule would prevent him or her from
voting on Election Day, the District will give up to two (2) hours off to vote. The
employee must give the supervisor at least two (2) days advance notice of the
time needed to vote. The employee may be required to take the voting time at
the beginning or end of his or her work shift and may be required to present a
voter’s receipt to confirm that s/he has voted.

Military Service: The District will provide an unpaid leave of absence to
accommodate service in the Armed Forces, military reserves, and National
Guard as required by federal and state law. The length of the military leave will
be determined in accordance with applicable law. Military leave is unpaid,
except where otherwise required by law. Benefits will continue on the same
basis as for other leaves of absence. An employee must provide the General
Manager with advance notice of the need for military leave, unless prevented
from doing so by military necessity or if providing advance notice would be
impossible or unreasonable.

Within the timeframes provided by law, an employee taking a military leave must
provide the General Manager notice of his or her intent to return to work after
serving in the uniformed services in order to be eligible for reinstatement. The
District will reinstate the employee in accordance with applicable law. The
District reserves the right to deny reinstatement when:

1. Circumstances have so changed as to make the re-employment
impossible or unreasonable;

2. The employment prior to the military leave was for a brief,
nonrecurring period with no reasonable expectation that the
employment would continue indefinitely or for a significant period; or

3. In other circumstances allowed by law.

Employees returning from military leave are entitled to all the rights and benefits
they would have had if they had remained continuously employed.

Spousal Military Leave: Employees who work twenty (20) hours or more per
week may obtain up to ten (10) days of unpaid leave if they have a spouse or
registered domestic partner on leave from active duty in the United States
Armed Forces, Army Reserves, or the National Guard, in an area of military
conflict. The employee must provide notice of his or her intent to take time off

Page 84




within two business days of receiving official notice that his or her spouse or
registered domestic partner will be on leave from deployment. The employee
must also provide written documentation certifying that the qualified member will
be on leave from deployment.

Domestic Violence: Employees who are the victims of domestic violence or
sexual assault may take time off without pay in accordance with California law to
obtain any relief (e.g., a temporary restraining order) to help ensure the health,
safety, or welfare of the employee or his or her child.

Bone Marrow and Organ Donation: Employees may take up to thirty (30)
days paid leave for organ donation and up to five (5) days paid leave for bone
marrow donation, as long as the employee seeking leave provides written
verification that he or she is a donor and that there is a medical necessity for the
donation. The District requests that the employee taking leave provide as much
advance notice as reasonably practicable. Employees taking leave for organ
donation must use two weeks accrued sick leave or vacation (if available) before
receiving the 30 days paid leave. Employees taking leave for bone marrow
donation must take five (5) days accrued sick leave or vacation (if available)
before receiving the 5 days paid leave. Employees on bone marrow/organ
donation leave will continue to accrue and receive all benefits of employment as
if they were actively at work. Leave can be taken intermittently, up to the
maximum of 30 days/5 days within a 12-month period immediately preceding
the first day of leave. At the conclusion of leave, the employee will be reinstated
to the position the employee held when the leave began or to an equivalent
position.

Page 85




CHAPTER SEVEN — WORKPLACE CONDUCT AND PERFORMANCE/DISCIPLINE

7000 - ATTENDANCE AND PUNCTUALITY

Employee dependability and regular attendance during assigned working hours are
essential functions of each employee’s job and are critical to the smooth operation of the
District. Each employee must be prompt in attendance on assigned work days. If you
find that you must be out or late, due to illness or other compelling personal matter, you
must notify your immediate supervisor a minimum of 30 minutes prior to your scheduled
start time. Failure to adhere to this policy may lead to disciplinary action up to and
including termination.

If you fail to report for work or make proper natification of your absence, you may be
subject to discipline, up to and including termination of employment.

Page 86




7010 - DRESS AND GROOMING STANDARDS

The District is a public agency providing public services. Employees provide public
services and interact directly with customers at homes and places of business. All
employees are expected to present a professional appearance in order to promote a
competent image. The general public frequently forms its initial impression of
professional credibility solely on employee appearance. The appropriateness of attire
and personal grooming as seen by the general public has a bearing on how customers
and others view the District as a whole.

Employees who wear uniforms are expected to be dressed and ready for duty on time in
the assigned uniform. Uniforms are expected to be clean, pressed at the start of the
workday, and worn properly with the shirt neatly tucked inside pants. Employees who
are not required to wear uniforms are expected to wear clean, pressed and properly
fitting business clothing appropriate to the position held. For field employees, loose
clothing can be a safety hazard and should be avoided.

Page 87




7020 - PERFORMANCE EVALUATION

A.

Periodic Reviews: The responsible supervisor shall conduct a scheduled
performance review of each employee at least annually and prior to the date
upon which an employee is eligible for increases in compensation based on
merit (See Section 3000). Introductory employees and employees who have
been promoted will be reviewed after six (6) months of employment in the new
position. Even a positive review, however, will not change the at-will nature of
employment while an employee is serving an introductory period.

Format and Content: Performance evaluations shall be in writing on forms
prescribed by the General Manager or other responsible managing employee.
The written evaluation will be presented to and discussed with the employee by
the evaluator and employee’s manager (when the manager is not the evaluator).
Said evaluation shall provide recognition for effective performance and also
identify areas that need improvement. All evaluations will have an overall
evaluation of Unsatisfactory, Improvement Needed, Satisfactory, Above
Satisfactory, or Outstanding. Performance Evaluation Form is located in
Appendix “E”.

1. Unsatisfactory work performance is well below the standard expected
of a competent worker in that job, a majority of the time.
Unsatisfactory ratings must be substantiated in a written statement by
the rater.

2. Improvement Needed work performance is frequently less than the
standard expected of a competent worker in that job, and may
improve with additional training, experience, and/or effort.

3. Satisfactory work performance consistently meets the standard
expected of a competent worker in that job.

4, Above Satisfactory work performance is generally above the standard
expected of a competent worker in that job, a majority of the time.

5. Outstanding work performance is consistently and distinctly above the
standard expected of a competent worker in that job; performance is
definitely superior; Outstanding ratings must be substantiated in a
written statement by the rater.

Signature: The performance evaluation shall be signed by the evaluator
(typically the employee’s immediate supervisor), and the employee’s manager (if
the manager is not the evaluator). The evaluation shall be reviewed by the
General Manager.

Page 88




D.

Unscheduled Evaluations: Unscheduled performance evaluations may be
made at the discretion of the General Manager or other responsible managing
employee or his/her designated representative.

Page 89




7030 - SAFETY AND WORKPLACE INJURIES

The District is committed to providing a safe workplace for all employees. The District
has separately adopted a Safety Manual and Injury and lliness Prevention Plan (lIPP),
which is applicable and provided to all employees. Violation of safety policies is grounds
for termination. In addition to policies contained in the Safety Manual, the District
adheres to the following safety requirements:

A.

Smoking in the Workplace: Smoking, including the use of smokeless tobacco
products, is not permitted in the District office or other District workspaces,
worksites, District buildings, or while in or operating District vehicles or
equipment.

Accident Reporting: All on-the-job injuries shall be reported to the employee’s
immediate Supervisor, no matter how minor. The Supervisor shall make an
immediate report to the his/her Supervisor where appropriate documentation
shall be made. All minor injuries should be treated with first aid as soon as
possible, then a “first aid” report should be completed and turned in to the
Supervisor.

Injury Accident and Damage Report: In addition to immediately reporting on-
the-job injuries to the Supervisor, employees must complete an injury, accident,
and damage report within twenty-four hours of occurrence, (unless a damaged
vehicle is out of town or accident occurs on the weekend, then immediately
upon arrival back in the District or first thing Monday morning). These reports
must be filed in ink; no pencil written reports will be accepted. Upon completion
of report, turn in to the Supervisor and General Manager. Accident Report Non-
Vehicular located at Appendix “K”, Accident Report, Vehicular and Moving
Equipment at Appendix “L.”

Employee use of Safety Glasses and ear plugs is required when working with
blowers. Lawn mowers, and any area that has flying particles, objects or dust
that can be potentially dangerous. Safety glasses must pass the “pencil test”
and have the Z87 safety logo.

Employee’s use of safety glasses, face shield, and helmet is required when
working with weed-edgers and weed eaters. All personal protection equipment
(P.P.E.) will be provided by the District.

Employees found not wearing the correct P.P.E. will be considered in violation of
this policy and subject to disciplinary action.

Page 90




E.

Employees are directed to check fluids in the District’s carts and equipment prior
to using or operating, and to make sure that the fluid levels are at the specific
correct level.

Page 91




7040 - ANTI-HARASSMENT AND ANTI-DISCRIMINATION POLICY

A.

Purpose: All employees, applicants, volunteers, and independent contractors
(“workers”) working for the District are to be treated with respect and dignity.
The District is committed to providing an atmosphere free of harassment and
discrimination based on such factors as race, religion, creed, national origin or
ancestry, physical or mental disability, medical condition, genetic condition,
pregnancy, childbirth or related conditions, marital status, gender identity, sex,
age, sexual orientation, or any other characteristic protected by law.

Harassment and discrimination are against the law, and they are demeaning and
harmful to both the victim and the District. The District will not tolerate
harassment of, or discrimination against, its workers by managers, supervisors,
co-workers, or anyone conducting District business. Similarly, the District will not
tolerate harassment of its workers by others with whom the District has a
business, service, or professional relationship (including members of the public).

This Policy does not restrict nor inhibit any supervisor from their responsibility or
in their ability to direct, critique, and discipline employees in a non-discriminatory
manner.

Failure to follow this Policy may result in disciplinary action, up to and including
termination of employment.

Harassment Prohibited: Harassment includes conduct that has the purpose or
effect of unreasonably interfering with an individual's work performance; creating
an intimidating, hostile, threatening or offensive working environment; or
adversely affecting the employee’s performance, evaluation, assigned duties or
any other condition of employment or career development. This Policy prohibits
harassment in any form, including:

1. Oral or Written harassment such as epithets, jokes, derogatory
comments or slurs based on race, sex, religious creed, color, national
origin, ancestry, age, marital status, sexual orientation, medical
condition, political or union affiliation, physical or mental disability or
any other basis protected by law;

2. Physical harassment such as assault, touching, impeding or blocking
movement, or any physical interference with normal work or
movement when directed at an individual; and

3. Visual harassment such as derogatory posters, cartoons or drawings,
based on one of the categories above.

Page 92




Sexual harassment includes, any unsolicited, offensive or unwelcome
sexual advances, requests for sexual favors, and other oral or written,
visual, or physical conduct of a sexual nature which occurs under any
of the following circumstances:

Submission to such conduct is made either expressly or by
implication a term or condition of an individual’'s employment;

Submission to or rejection of such conduct by an individual is
used as a basis for employment decisions affecting the
individual; or

Other examples of sexual harassment include unwelcome
sexual flirtations or propositions; verbal abuse of a sexual
nature; graphic verbal comments about an individual's body;
sexually degrading words used to describe an individual; and the
display or use in the work environment of sexually suggestive
objects or pictures, posters, jokes, cartoons, or calendar
illustrations.

Sexual harassment also includes gender-based harassment by
a person of the same gender.

Retaliation Prohibited: Retaliation against an employee for reporting violations
of this Policy or for participating in the investigation of a harassment or
discrimination complaint is strictly prohibited.

Procedures regarding all complaints of harassment including retaliation:

Employee Responsibility:

1.

It is important that employees inform the District as soon as possible
about any prohibited harassment because nothing can be done to
remedy the situation if the District does not know that it exists.

Any individual who feels comfortable doing so should let a fellow
employee know when that employee’s behavior or comments are
offensive or unwelcome, even if the situation does not rise to the level
of a violation of this Policy. However, individuals are not required to
handle these situations on their own. If an individual is not
comfortable handling a situation directly with another employee, the
individual should immediately report the conduct to one of the persons
referenced below.

Page 93




E.

Any individual who believes that they have been or are being
harassed in violation of this Policy shall report this violation to his or
her supervisor, the General Manager, or any District supervisor with
whom the individual feels comfortable speaking.

Any individual who is aware or suspects that another person has been
harassed in violation of this Policy shall report this violation to his or
her supervisor, the General Manager, or any District supervisor with
whom the individual feels comfortable speaking.

Supervisor Responsibility:

1.

Each supervisor has the responsibility of maintaining a work
environment free of harassment. This responsibility includes being
available to discuss this Policy with the workers that they supervise
and to assure the workers that they are not required to endure any
form of prohibited harassment. If someone reports a harassment
allegation to a supervisor, it is the responsibility of the supervisor to
take immediate action by documenting the incident(s) and reporting
the allegation of harassment to the General Manager.

Any supervisor who fails to take appropriate action to report or
address harassment, discrimination or retaliation issues can and will
be disciplined by the District.

Investigation:

1.

Process: The District will investigate all complaints of harassment in
a prompt, objective, and thorough manner, including interviews of
those with relevant knowledge where appropriate. The District's
investigation will be designed to maintain, to the extent possible, the
privacy and confidentiality of all parties involved. The General
Manager is responsible for directing an investigation into such
allegations and for implementing appropriate remedial action, where
warranted.

Resolution: After investigation, the District will communicate the
confidential findings (i.e., “sustained” or “not sustained”) to the
complainant, the alleged harasser, and members of management with
a legitimate need to know.

Appropriate action: If there is a finding that harassment in violation
of this Policy has occurred, the District will take appropriate and
immediate action to end any harassment and prevent its recurrence.

Page 94




F.

This may include imposing discipline. Specific action taken will
depend upon the specific circumstances.

Further Information: Employees are urged to contact the General Manager if
they have any questions or concerns about this Policy.

In addition to this Policy, the State of California Department of Fair Employment
and Housing (“DFEH”") provides additional information regarding the legal
remedies and complaint process available through the government agencies. If
a worker thinks he or she has been harassed, discriminated against, or that he or
she has been retaliated against for complaining, that person may file a complaint
or obtain additional information from DFEH at 1-800-884-1684 or
http://www.dfeh.ca.gov.

Page 95




7050 - WORKPLACE VIOLENCE

A.

No Violation Tolerated: The safety and security of employees and customers
are very important to the District. Threats, threatening behavior, acts of
violence, or any related conduct which disrupts another’s work performance or
the District’s ability to execute its daily business will not be tolerated.

Prohibited Conduct: Any person who makes threats, exhibits threatening
behavior, or engages in violent acts on District property or toward other District
employees may be removed from the premises pending the outcome of an
investigation. Threats, threatening behavior or other acts of violence by District
employees off District property, but directed at District employees, District Board
members or the public is a violation of this policy even if the employee is not on
duty at the time. Off-site threats include but are not limited to threats made via
telephone, fax, electronic or conventional mail, or any other communication
medium.

Disciplinary Action: Violations of this policy will lead to disciplinary action that
may include dismissal. In addition, the District will also refer the matter to the
appropriate law enforcement authorities. In addition, if the source of such
inappropriate behavior is a member of the public, the response may also include
barring the person(s) from District property or termination of business
relationships with that individual.

Notification: Employees are responsible for notifying the General Manager or
any other Supervisor of any threats which they have witnessed, received, or
have been told that another person has witnessed or received. Employees
should also report any behavior they have witnessed which they regard as
threatening or violent when that behavior is job related or might be carried out
on District property or in connection with employment.

Restraining Order: Each employee who receives a protective or restraining
order which lists District premises as a protected area is required to provide the
General Manager with a copy of such order.

Page 96




7060 - DRUGFREE WORKPLACE AND TESTING

The District maintains a workplace free of drugs and alcohol and discourages drug and
alcohol abuse by its employees. The District has a vital interest in maintaining safe and
efficient working conditions for its employees. Substance abuse is incompatible with
health, safety, efficiency, and success at the District. Employees who are under the
influence of a drug or alcohol on the job compromise the District’'s interests, endanger
their own health and safety and the health and safety of others, and can cause a number
of other work-related problems, including excessive absenteeism and tardiness,
substandard job performance, increased workloads for co-workers, behavior that
disrupts other employees, delays in the completion of jobs, and inferior quality in
products or service.

To further its interest in avoiding accidents, to promote and maintain safe and efficient
working conditions for its employees, and to protect its business, property, equipment,
and operations, the District has established a policy concerning the use of alcohol and
drugs and, in some circumstances, will conduct drug testing of current employees who
occupy safety sensitive positions. As a condition of continued employment with the
District, each employee must abide by this policy. All employees are expected to read
and abide by this policy in the course of their employment with the District. It is the
District’'s intent to promote a safe, healthy, and productive work environment for our
employees. The District recognizes that the illegal and/or excessive use of drugs and/or
alcohol is not conducive to safe working conditions. The District also recognizes that
employees who work while impaired endanger the health and safety of their co-workers,
District residents, and members of the public. It is the objective of the District to have a
workforce that is free from the influence of illegal substances and alcohol during work
hours (including employees on stand-by duty) and at all times on the premises of the

District.
A. Purpose of this Policy: The purposes of this policy are:
1. to establish and maintain a safe, healthy working environment for all
employees;
2. to ensure the safety and health of all District employees, customers,

and members of the public with whom District employees interact;

3. to ensure the sound reputation of the District and its employees within
the community and industry;

4, to reduce the number of injuries to persons or property; and

5. to reduce absenteeism and tardiness and to improve productivity.

Page 97




Testing/Policy Requirements: As an employee of the District, you will be
required to submit to alcohol/drug testing in accordance with the terms of this
policy. The following rules represent the District’s policy concerning substance
abuse, effective immediately.

1.

The unlawful possession, manufacture, distribution, dispensation, or
use of any illegal substance is inconsistent with the District’'s objective
of operating in a safe and efficient manner and is strictly prohibited.
Accordingly, no employee shall engage in the unlawful possession,
manufacture, distribution, dispensation, or use of any illegal
substance during working hours (including employees on stand-by
duty) or at any time on the premises of the District. No employee
shall report to work or continue to work while under the influence of
any drug whose manufacture, sale, dispensation, distribution, use or
possession is unlawful. Similarly, no employee shall use or have in
his or her possession on the premises of the District any prescription
medication other than medications currently prescribed by a physician
for the employee.

Employees taking physician-prescribed medications which impair their
job performance should not report to work. An employee who is using
prescription or over-the-counter drugs that may impair the employee’s
ability to safely perform the job, or affect the safety or well-being of
others, must notify a supervisor of such use immediately before
starting or resuming work.

The use of alcoholic beverages by employees engaged in the
operation or maintenance of the District’s equipment and/or facilities is
inconsistent with the objective of operating in a safe and efficient
manner. Accordingly, no employee shall use or possess alcoholic
beverages on the District's premises or during working hours
(including employees on stand-by duty). No employee shall report to
work or continue to work under the influence of alcoholic beverages.
No alcoholic beverages shall be served at any District function without
prior written authorization of the General Manager.

Lockers, desks, and storage areas are the property of the District and
must be maintained according to the District’'s standards. All such
areas must be kept clean and are to be used only for work-related
purposes. The District reserves the right, at all times and without
further notice, to conduct searches and inspections of any or all
employee lockers and other District property for the purposes of
determining if this Policy has been violated.

Page 98




C.

D.

All vehicles and containers, including bags, boxes, purses, lunch pails,
brought onto the District’'s premises, are subject to inspection at any time
an authorized representative of the District has a reasonable suspicion
that a District rule, policy, or regulation has been violated and such an
inspection is reasonably necessary in the investigation of such
violation(s). Such inspections will be conducted, to the extent reasonably
possible, in a manner designed to preserve the dignity of the employee.
Inspections will be done in a private area, and will be conducted by a
member of the same sex. An employee who refuses to consent to such
an inspection may be subject to disciplinary action up to and including
termination.

As a condition of continued employment, employees must abide by
this and all other policies in this Handbook. As a further condition of
continued employment, any employee who is convicted of a violation
of any criminal drug statute related to the unlawful manufacture,
distribution, dispensation, possession, or use of controlled substances
in the workplace must inform the District no later than five (5) days
after such conviction (this requirement does not apply to convictions
of misdemeanor marijuana offenses). Any employee who is so
convicted shall be subject to disciplinary action, up to and including
but not limited to termination of employment. The District in its sole
discretion may require an employee who is convicted of any offense
set forth above to satisfactorily participate and complete a drug
use/abuse assistance or rehabilitation program as a condition of
continued employment with the District.

Authorized and Unauthorized Conduct: District adheres to the following:

1.

Customary Use of Over-the-Counter Drugs: Nothing in this policy
is intended to prohibit the customary and ordinary purchase, sale,
use, possession, or dispensation of over-the-counter drugs, so long
as that activity does not violate any law or result in an employee being
impaired by the use of such drugs in violation of this policy.

Off-the-Job Conduct: This policy is not intended to regulate off-the-
job conduct, so long as the employee’s off-the-job use of alcohol or
legal drugs does not result in the employee being under the influence
of or impaired by the use of alcohol or drugs in violation of this policy.
If an employee is in a designated safety-sensitive position, he or she
will be subject to drug testing as described below.

Drug Testing: The District will conduct drug testing under the following
circumstances:

Page 99




Pre-employment: All initial offers of employment for safety sensitive
positions with the District will be made contingent upon satisfactory
completion by the applicant of a pre-employment drug and alcohol
screen (bodily fluid testing). Positive test results shall not bar
reapplication at a later time.

If an employee refuses or fails to cooperate with the administration of the
drug and alcohol test, the refusal will be handled in the same manner as a
positive test result.

For cause testing: If the District has a reasonable suspicion that an
employee is (1) intoxicated or under the influence of drugs or alcohol,
or (2) has used drugs or alcohol on the District’'s premises or during
working time, the employee may be directed to undergo drug and/or
alcohol testing at an independent licensed laboratory to determine
whether a violation of this policy has occurred. “Reasonable
suspicion” includes: a suspicion that is based on specific personal
observations such as an employee’s manner, disposition, muscular
movement, appearance, behavior, speech or breath odor; information
provided to management by an employee, by law enforcement
officials, by a security service, or by other persons believed to be
reliable; or a suspicion that is based on other reliable surrounding
circumstances.  “Reasonable suspicion” may be based upon:
evidence of illegal substances or alcohol on or about the employee’s
person or in the employee’s immediate vicinity; a pattern of unusual
conduct or erratic behavior on the employee’s part that suggests
impairment or influence of illegal substances or alcohol; any physical
circumstances that suggest impairment or influence of illegal
substances or alcohol; arrest or conviction of a drug-related offense or
the identification of the employee as the focus of a criminal
investigation involving illegal substances; information provided by a
reliable and credible source that the employee is under the influence
of illegal substance or alcohol; evidence that the employee has
tampered with a previous drug test.

If an employee refuses or fails to cooperate with the administration of the
drug and alcohol test, the refusal will be handled in the same manner as a
positive test result.

Post-accident: Any employee involved in an on-the-job accident or
injury resulting in personal injury or property damage exceeding
$1,000 may be required to submit to an alcohol/drug test. “Involved in
an on-the-job accident or injury” means not only the one who was

Page 100




injured, but also any employee who potentially contributed to the
accident or injury in any way.

If an employee refuses or fails to cooperate with the administration of the
drug and alcohol test, the refusal will be handled in the same manner as a
positive test result.

Manner of Testing: The District will refer the applicant or employee to an
independent, National Institute on Drug Abuse (NIDA)-certified medical clinic or
laboratory, which will administer the test. The District will pay the cost of the
test. When an employee is directed to undergo drug/alcohol testing because
the District possesses reasonable suspicion that the employee is intoxicated or
under the influence of drugs or alcohol, the employee shall be transported to the
laboratory by a designated District employee or designated transportation
provider. The employee will have the opportunity to alert the clinic or laboratory
personnel to any prescription or non-prescription drugs that he or she has taken
that may affect the outcome of the test. All drug testing will be performed by
urinalysis. Positive results will be confirmed by gas chromatography/mass
spectrometry.

The clinic or laboratory will inform the District as to whether the applicant passed
or failed the drug test. If an employee fails the test, he or she will be considered
to be in violation of this policy and will be subject to discipline accordingly.

Refusal to cooperate fully in drug and/or alcohol testing procedures under the
circumstances described above may constitute insubordination and may result in
disciplinary action, up to and including termination.

If the District directs an employee to undergo drug or alcohol testing based upon
a reasonable suspicion, the employee will be placed on unpaid leave from the
time of the initial testing until test results are received and reviewed by the
District. In the event drug and alcohol screen results are negative, the District
may convert the unpaid leave to a paid leave.

Any positive test results shall be confirmed by a gas chromatography-mass
spectrometry (GC-MS) test. If the GC-MS test results are positive, the employee
may designate a qualified testing laboratory whose work product is of a quality
acceptable to the District to test the original bodily fluid sample independently at
the employee’s expense. The District will arrange delivery of the sample to said
laboratory.

Any employee whose test results are positive for the presence of any of the
specified substances will be given a reasonable opportunity to explain or present
exculpatory evidence before any permanent disciplinary action is taken.

Page 101




Counseling/Employee Assistance: Employees who suspect they may have
alcohol or drug problems, even in the early stages, are encouraged voluntarily to
seek diagnosis and to follow through with the treatment as prescribed by
gualified professionals. Employees who wish to voluntarily enter and participate
in an approved alcohol or drug rehabilitation program are encouraged to contact
the General Manager, who will determine whether the District can accommodate
the employee by providing unpaid leave for the time necessary to complete
participation in the program. Employees should be aware that participation in a
rehabilitation program will not necessarily shield them from disciplinary action for
a violation of this policy, particularly if discipline is imposed for a violation
occurring before the employee seeks assistance.

Accommodations: Nothing in this policy is intended to diminish the District’s
commitment to employ and reasonably accommodate qualified disabled
individuals. The District will reasonably accommodate qualified disabled
employees who must take legal drugs because of their disability and who,
because of their appropriate use of such drugs, cannot perform the essential
functions of their positions without reasonable accommodation. In addition, the
District will provide an unpaid leave of absence to eligible employees who wish
to seek treatment for drug and alcohol dependency. To this end, employees
desiring such assistance should request a treatment or rehabilitation leave. The
District is not obligated, however, to continue to employ any person whose
performance of essential job duties is impaired because of current drug or
alcohol use, nor is the District obligated to re-employ any person who has
participated in treatment and/or rehabilitation if that person’s job performance
remains impaired as a result of dependency. Nor is the District obligated to
accommodate current usage of illegal drugs or alcohol.

Additionally, employees who are given the opportunity to seek treatment and/or
rehabilitation, but fail to successfully overcome their dependency or problem, will
not automatically be given a second opportunity to seek treatment and/or
rehabilitation. This policy on treatment and rehabilitation is not intended to affect
the District’'s treatment of employees who violate the regulations described
above. Rather, rehabilitation is an option for an employee who acknowledges a
chemical dependency and voluntarily seeks treatment to end that dependency.
The District abides by all applicable laws and regulations regarding providing
leaves of absence to employees who are addicted to drugs.

Violation of the above rules and standards of conduct will not be tolerated. An
employee who violates this policy is subject to discipline, up to and including
immediate discharge, even for a first violation. Where appropriate, the District
also may bring the matter to the attention of appropriate law enforcement
authorities.

Page 102




Page 103




7070 - JOB ABANDONMENT
Voluntary absence from work without written permission is grounds for termination.

Voluntary absence from work without written permission for three (3) consecutive
working days shall be considered an automatic resignation, and the District will separate

the employee from service.

Page 104




7080 - OPEN DOOR POLICY

The District adheres to an open door policy and encourages all employees to share
opinions, ideas, and thoughts about general operations, especially relating to improving
efficiency, increasing productivity, devising innovative solutions, and achieving desired
results. The open door policy is intended to encourage personnel at all levels of the
district to express their opinions and ideas about any general item. The open door policy
allows management to understand details about the District's operations and creative
suggestions for improvement.

Page 105




7100 - GRIEVANCE PROCEDURE

The grievance procedure is available for all employees and is intended for use solely to address
disputes about the application or interpretation of the policies in the Saddle Creek Personnel
Regulations and does not apply to the following:

E A

Disciplinary actions

Performance evaluations

Position Classification

Any District policy that provides another complaint procedure for resolution of
complaints.

Any matter which would require the exercise of legislative power by the Board, such as
budget modifications, staffing levels, or change in operational policies relating to the
mission of the District.

A matter which concerns an employee who has since, since filing the grievance
submitted a letter of resignation has voluntarily left employment with the District
Requests or complaints involving the termination of an introductory or temporary
employee, or the termination, suspension or demotion of a regular employee, or any
other disciplinary matter;

Requests or complaints involving the denial or granting of merit increases, performance
evaluations, suspension or denial of education assistance, verbal and/or written
reprimands

A. A'grievance" is the subject of a written request or complaint which has not been settled
as a result of the discussions required by an informal discussion outlined below with the
immediate supervisor, initiated by an employee, concerning the interpretation and/or
application of a specific term of provision of the District’s Personnel and Procedures, and
which the supervisor or District Manager has control. A grievance must specify the relief
sought, which relief must be within the power of the appointing authority to grant in whole or

in part.

B. The grievance procedures set forth below are designed to resolve grievances informally
at the lowest possible level and to provide an orderly procedure for the prompt review and
resolution of grievances. As used in this procedure the term “immediate supervisor’ means
the individual who assigns, reviews and directs the work of an employee(s).

C. Grievance Procedure Steps:

a. Level I, Preliminary Informal Resolution: Any employee who believes he/she
has a grievance shall present the matter orally to his/her immediate supervisor
within five (5) working days after the employee knows, or reasonably should
know, of the circumstances which form the basis for the alleged grievance. The
immediate supervisor shall hold discussions and attempt to resolve the matter
within three (3) working days after the presentation of such grievance. It is the
intent of this informal meeting that at least one personal conference be held

Page 106




C.

between the employee and the immediate supervisor. The supervisor shall
advise the employee orally as to the outcome of the grievance.

Level Il, General Manager: |If the grievance has not been resolved to the
employee’s satisfaction at Level |, the grievant must present his/her grievance in
writing on a form provided by the District (attached hereto as Appendix “A”) to the
General Manager within ten (10) working days after the occurrence of the act or
omission giving rise to the grievance.

The statement shall include the following:

A concise statement of the grievance including specific reference to any
law, policy, rule, regulation and/or instruction deemed to be violated,
misapplied or misinterpreted;

The circumstances involved;
The decision rendered by the immediate supervisor at Level |;
The specific remedy sought.

The General Manager shall attempt to communicate his/her decision
within five (5) working days after receiving the grievance. Decisions will
be in writing setting forth the decision and will be transmitted promptly to
all parties in interest. Either party may request a personal conference
with the other.

Basic Rules: If an employee does not present the grievance or does not appeal
the decision rendered regarding the grievance within the time limits specified
above, the grievance shall be considered resolved.

By agreement in writing, the parties may extend any and all-time
limitations of the grievance procedure.

In addition, if the General Manager needs additional time within which to
meaningfully respond to a grievance, the General Manager will so notify
the employee. The General Manager’s decision shall be final and the last
step in the process.

A copy of all formal grievance decisions shall be placed in the employee’s
permanent personnel file.

Page 107




7110 - DISCIPLINE AND APPEALS PROCEDURES

A. Purpose: The purpose of this procedure is to establish the types of actions for
which an employee can be disciplined and the disciplinary measures that may
be used.

D. Exclusive Remedy: The procedure set forth in this Procedure shall be exclusive, and

E.

the failure of an employee to utilize the provisions herein shall constitute a waiver of any
claim to relief.

Application: These Procedures apply only to Regular Employees. Regular Employees
do not include Introductory Employees, the General Manager, the District Legal Counsel,
or any employee hired on a temporary, special, provisional, seasonal, emergency basis,
or any independent contractor. An employee not covered by this disciplinary policy may
be disciplined without reference to these provisions and removed from his or her position
at will and without cause.

Grounds for Discipline: Discipline may be taken against an employee for “good
cause.” Good cause exists where any fact or set of facts, based upon relevant
circumstances, may be reasonably relied upon in the exercise of discretion as a basis for
disciplinary action. The following are set forth as examples only and shall not be
construed as an exclusive list:

a. Fraud in securing employment
b. Abuse of sick leave or other violation of sick leave policy

c. Violation of any lawful or reasonable regulation or order made and given by an
employee’s supervisor; insubordination

d. Theft or misuse of District property

e. Misuse of District credit cards and/or violation of purchasing policies
f. Negligence in the performance of duties

g. Incompetence

h. Inefficiency

i. Inexcusable neglect of duty

j. Inattention to or dereliction of duties

k. Tardiness

Page 108




.  Unexcused absences

m. Use, possession, being under the influence of, sale/purchase or offer to
sell/purchase illegal drugs and narcotics or alcohol during working hours or after
working hours on District property

n. Falsification of District records
0. Dishonesty

p. Fighting or other abusive conduct toward employees or the public during working
hours

g. Improper or unauthorized operation of District vehicles or equipment

r. Deliberate destruction or damage to District property, public property or the
property of another employee

S. Possessing unauthorized firearms on District property or during hours when the
employee is employed by the District

t. Private or personal use of District equipment, vehicles, tools or materials without
prior approval of the General Manager

u. Violation of safety rules or unsatisfactory driving record
v. Conviction for a felony or misdemeanor

w. Refusal to take and subscribe any oath or affirmation which is required by law in
connection with his/her employment

X. Harassment, or

y. Violation of District rules, regulations, standard operating procedures, or policies
or any other reasons related to employment with the District.

G. Level of Discipline: The District has the discretion to determine the appropriate level of
discipline in the circumstances involved. The District is not obligated to follow any
particular level or order of discipline. The severity of any action taken should be
proportionate to and commensurate with the cause and should also take into account
prior disciplinary history, if any. In appropriate circumstances, the District may suspend
or terminate an employee without first providing lower levels of discipline.

a. Types of Discipline — Minor: No right to appeal is available to challenge minor
discipline.

Page 109




Corrective Counseling: Corrective counseling is a verbal warning
accompanied by written documentation. Corrective counseling may be
provided to an employee whose conduct or performance must be
improved. The counseling should detail the areas for improvement, the
degree of improvement required, and notice that failure to improve will
result in more serious disciplinary action. The supervisor shall document
the verbal warning (corrective counseling) and place a dated copy in the
employee’s personnel file with a copy to the employee. The employee
must acknowledge receipt of the counseling by signing the documentation
at the time of presentation; this signature signifies only receipt of the
document, not necessarily agreement with the contents. The employee
may, within five (5) calendar days, respond in writing, which shall be
included in his/her file.

Written Reprimand: A formal written notice to an employee which
summarizes previous related disciplinary action, if any, which details
conduct subject to discipline and which advises that continued conduct at
such levels may result in suspension, pay reduction, demotion or
dismissal. The employee must acknowledge receipt of the reprimand by
signing the letter at the time of presentation; this signature signifies only
receipt of the document, not necessarily agreement to the contents. The
employee may, within five (5) calendar days, respond in writing to the
contents of the letter of reprimand to be included in his/her file.

b. Types of Discipline — Major:

iv.

Suspension: The temporary removal of an employee from the service of
the District without pay. A suspension of this type does not include
suspension pending an investigation into alleged misconduct.

Pay Reduction: The reduction in pay of one or more pay steps where
performance falls short of normal established standards or where
performance is clearly inadequate in one or more of the critical job duties
for the position.

Demotion: As a result of disciplinary action, the removal of an employee
from a position to one of lower grade or classification.

Dismissal: The removal of an employee from the service of the District.

H. Disciplinary Procedures for Major Discipline: The following procedures apply when
major discipline is imposed. These procedures do not apply when minor discipline is

imposed.

Page 110




a. Notice of Intent-to-Discipline for Suspension, Pay Reduction, Demotion or
Dismissal: Where the proposed discipline is major, as defined, a Notice of
Intent-to-Discipline, signed by the Supervisor or General Manager, supporting the
discipline shall be served on the employee. Service of the Notice of Intent-to-
Discipline shall be made at least five (5) days before a hearing pursuant to
Section F.3. is held regarding the charges. The Notice shall include:

i. The proposed discipline.
ii. The effective date of the discipline.
iii. The reasons for the discipline.

iv. All documents which support the discipline. Copies of the documents
upon which the discipline is based shall be attached to the Notice of
Intent.

An employee may, where circumstances warrant, be placed on
administrative leave pending the hearing held pursuant to Section F.3.

b. Service: Notice of Intent-to-Discipline shall be served on the affected employee
by:

i. Personal service; or

ii. If personal service is not feasible, by first class certified mail, return
receipt requested, to the last known mailing address of the employee.

Service is deemed complete when any one of the preceding steps is
taken.

c. Informal Hearing Procedure (Skelly hearing): The employee shall be given an
opportunity at an informal hearing to show why the proposed major discipline
should not be imposed prior to its imposition.

i. The hearing will be conducted by a Reviewing Officer who shall be the
General Manager or a responsible person designated by the General
Manager (either another District managerial employee or an individual
from an outside organization). The Reviewing Officer can be the
managerial employee who issued the Notice of Intent or an alternate
individual designated by the General Manager. The employee, at his or
her choice, can bring a representative to the hearing.

ii. At the hearing, the employee shall be given an opportunity, either orally,
in writing, or both, to explain why the proposed discipline should be

Page 111




revised or cancelled. The hearing is not an evidentiary hearing. It shall
be tape recorded.

ii. If an alternate Skelly officer conducts the Skelly hearing, then that
individual, within five (5) days of the hearing, shall provide a
recommendation to the individual who issued the Notice of Intent as to
whether to uphold, lessen, or withdraw the proposed action.

iv. Within five (5) days after the hearing or receiving a recommendation from
an alternate Skelly officer, the managerial employee who issued the
Notice of Intent shall issue an order upholding, lessening, or withdrawing
the proposed discipline. The final notice will contain a final statement of
charges, explain the basis for the decision, and indicate whether the
employee has a right of appeal. The five-day period may be extended by
the General Manager, who shall notify the employee.

v. The decision will be served on the employee as provided in Section F.2.
The decision shall also inform the employee of his/her right of appeal as
provided in Section H, below.

Appeal from Minor Discipline: Corrective counseling and written reprimands are not
subject to appeal. These forms of minor discipline are considered final when provided to
the employee. The employee’s only form of challenge to these types of discipline is to
submit a written response, as provided above.

Appeal from Major Discipline: If an employee desires to appeal the decision issued
pursuant to Section F.3, above, then the following procedures shall apply.

a. Appeal Right: An employee who has received a major form of discipline
(dismissal, suspension, pay reduction, or demotion) may appeal to a Hearing
Officer. The appeal must be in writing and filed with the General Manager within
ten (10) working days after service on the employee of the final notice of
discipline.

b. Selection of a Hearing Officer: The parties may mutually and informally agree
upon their desired Hearing Officer. If informal selection is not possible, then the
Hearing Officer shall be selected as follows: The District shall obtain a list of five
(5) potential hearing officers from the State Mediation and Conciliation Service.
Each party may strike all names on the list it deems unacceptable. If only one
name remains on the list, that individual shall be designated as the Hearing
Officer. If more than one common name remains on the list, the parties shall
strike names alternately until only one remains (with the District striking a name
first). If no name remains on the list, the conciliation service shall furnish an
additional list or lists until a Hearing Officer is selected.

Page 112




C.

e.

Hearing: An evidentiary hearing shall be held on the appeal. The hearing shall
be conducted within sixty (60) days of the selection of the hearing officer, unless
the General Manager, the Hearing Officer and the appellant agree in writing that
the date of the hearing be extended for a specified time. The General Manager
or designee shall provide as much advance notice as practicable, but at least
fourteen (14) days written notice, of the date, time, and place of hearing to the
appellant.

Conduct of the Hearing: The hearing shall be conducted in the manner most
conducive to determination of the truth, and the Hearing Officer shall not be
bound by technical rules of evidence. The following procedures shall be follows:

i. The proceedings shall be tape recorded or steno graphically reported.
The decisions of the Hearing Officer shall not be invalidated by any
informality in the proceedings.

ii. The hearing officer shall determine the relevancy, weight, and credibility
of testimony and evidence. The hearing officer shall base his/her findings
on the preponderance of the evidence.

iii. Each side shall be permitted an opening statement and closing argument.
The District shall first present witnesses and evidence to sustain the
discipline and the appellant will then present his/her witnesses and
evidence in defense.

iv. Each side will be allowed to examine and cross-examine witnesses.

v. The hearing officer, upon a request by either party, may subpoena
witnesses and/or require production of other records or material evidence.

vi. The hearing officer may, prior to or during a hearing, grant a continuance
for any reason he/she believes may be important to reaching a fair and
proper decision.

Cost: The District shall bear the cost of the hearing officer and the court reporter
or stenographic recording; each side shall bear its own cost of representation.

Attendance at the hearing: The appellant shall personally attend the hearing,
unless physically unable to do so and excused in advance by the Hearing Officer.
Unexcused failure of an appellant to appear at a hearing shall be deemed a
withdrawal of the appeal.

Resolution by the Hearing Officer: Within thirty (30) days after completion of a
hearing, unless waived by the parties, the hearing officer shall prepare a written
decision and serve it on the appellant pursuant to Section F.2., above, and

Page 113




forward it to the General Manager. The written decision shall set forth the
hearing officer's findings of fact and shall state reasons why the discipline is
recommended to be sustained, reduced, or cancelled. If the hearing officer
recommends that the discipline be reduced or cancelled, the hearing officer shall
make recommendations concerning payment of back pay, if applicable, during
pendency of the appeal.

Advisory to the General Manager: The decision of the Hearing Office shall be
forwarded to the General Manager and is considered advisory. The General
Manager shall review the recommendation of the Hearing Officer and may then
accept, reject, or modify the proposed decision (which includes the authority to
impose a lesser or different form of discipline). The General Manager’s decision
shall be in writing and shall be issued within thirty (30) days of receiving the
Hearing Officer’s decision. The General Manager’s decision shall be final.

Appeal from the General Manager’s final decision: |If the appellant is
dissatisfied with the General Manager's decision and wishes to seek judicial
review, the limitations period provided in Code of Civil Procedure Section 1094.6,
shall apply. The General Manager’s written decision shall include notice to the
appellant that the time within which judicial review must be initiated is governed
by Code of Civil Procedure 8§ 1094.6. A copy of the General Manager’s decision
shall be forwarded to the Hearing Officer, the manager who issued the discipline,
and the appellant. The decision shall be included in the appellant's personnel
file.

Administrative Leave: Whenever the General Manager determines that it is in
the best interest of the District not to have an employee at the workplace — either
prior to or during the disciplinary process — an employee may be placed on
administrative leave, with pay, subject to such reasonable conditions as may be
determined by the General Manager given the circumstances of the situation.

Page 114




CHAPTER EIGHT — APPENDICES

8000 - APPENDIX “A” - GRIEVANCE FORM

EMPLOYEE GRIEVANCE FORM

SADDLE CREEK Community Services District

Employee’s Name: Date:

Statement of grievance, including specific reference to any misapplication or misinterpretation of
the District’s Personnel Policies and Procedures. (Employee Handbook)

Circumstances involved:

Decision rendered by the informal conference:

Specific remedy sought:

Page 115




SIGNATURE

Page 116

DATE




8010 - APPENDIX “B” - CONSENT AND RELEASE FORM FOR APPLICANTS

CONSENT TO DRUG TEST

As required by District policy, | understand that the position | applied for is
designated as a “safety sensitive position.” | further understand and agree that | must,
as a condition of employment and continued employment, submit to and satisfactorily

complete drug and alcohol tests.

| consent to allow the District to direct an independent, National Institute on Drug
Abuse (NIDA)-certified medical clinic to administer a test for drugs and controlled
substances. | also give my consent for the release of the test results to appropriate
management employees. | understand that if | decline to sign this consent and decline
to take the test, my application for employment may be rejected, my conditional offer of
employment may be withdrawn, or my employment may be terminated. | fully
understand that a positive test result for drugs and controlled substances will render me

ineligible for employment.

| understand the above conditions and hereby agree to comply with them.

Agreed to: Date:

Refused: Date:

Page 117




Witness:

Page 118

Date:




8020 - APPENDIX “C” - CONSENT AND RELEASE FORM FOR EMPLOYEES
BEING REQUESTED TO UNDERGO TESTING

EMPLOYEE DRUG TESTING CONSENT

The District is committed to the goal of obtaining a drug-free workplace. The District has
adopted a Drug-Free Workplace Policy, which is included in the Employee Handbook. You may
obtain copies of these policies from Human Resources.

Consistent with this goal and the District policies, YOU ARE REQUESTED TO SUBMIT TO
DRUG TESTING as part of the District's Drug Free Workplace policy and/or reasonable
suspicion of being under the influence affecting your ability to perform the job safely.

The testing will be conducted through urine specimen collection to detect the presence of
amphetamines, cocaine, phencyclidine (PCP), marijuana, opiates, methamphetamine,
methadone, barbiturates, and benzodiazepine. Any non-negative test result will undergo further
confirmatory testing.

You will be given the opportunity to explain to a medical review officer any reason why you are
unable to produce a urine specimen and/or any circumstances that would produce a false
positive result. It may be necessary for you to verify your use of any prescription drugs.

Results of the drug test and any medical information gathered will be kept in a separate,
confidential, medical information file. The results will be communicated only to management
personnel with a specific need to know.

Your refusal to consent to this drug testing and/or to provide a urine specimen will be
considered a violation of the Drug-Free Workplace policy and will result in discipline, up to and
including termination.

A confirmed positive drug test will result in discipline, up to and including termination.

| hereby acknowledge receipt of the Drug-Free Workplace Policy and Employee Drug Testing
Policy. | further understand that | have a right to receive a copy of this authorization upon my
request.

Copy requested and received: [ ] YES [ INO Initial

I consent to the collection of a urine specimen for analysis for the presence of drugs. | authorize
the release of the drug testing results and related medical information to the District, and the
appropriate medical review officer.

Page 119




Date:

Signature

Page 120




8030 - APPENDIX “D” - LIST OF SAFETY SENSITIVE POSITIONS

The following provides a list of safety sensitive positions for the District. This list can be
modified and updated as needed.

General Manager

Site Manager

Superintendent

Maintenance Worker

8040 - APPENDIX “E” - PERFORMANCE EVALUATION FORM

SADDLE CREEK COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT
EVALUATION
EMPLOYEE’'S WORK PERFORMANCE & INTRODUCTORY PERIOD REPORT

Page 1 of 3
NAME: DEPARTMENT:
CLASSIFICATION TITLE: REVIEW FROM: REVIEW TO:
STATUS: INTRODUCTORY: FULL TIME: PART TIME:
Critical UNSATISFACTORY IMPROVEMENT NEEDED SATISFACTORY ABOVE SATISFACTORY OUTSTANDING
Factors
1. ACCURACY is the correctness of work duties performed.
|:| [0 Makes frequent [J careless; makes [0 uUsually accurate; [ Requires little [0 Requires absolute
errors recurrent errors. makes occasional supervision; is minimum of
minor errors. exact and precise. supervision; is
always accurate
and exact.

2. QUANTITY OF WORK is the amount of work an individual does in a work day.

Page 121




[0 Does not meet O Marginal [0 Vvolumeofworkis [ Very industries; [ Superior work
minimum productivity; must be satisfactory does more than is production record.
requirement. improved. required.

3. SUPERVISION REQUIRED to do the job well.

[1 Direct supervision [J Sometimes requires [ Requires little [0 works very Dependable to act
required for all but additional supervision other effectively without with initiative and
routine activities. supervision than occasional supervision. minimum

directions. supervision.

4. ACCEPTANCE OF SUPERVISION is the ability to understand and follow instruction.

[0 Frequently ignores [0 Reluctantly accepts  [] Accepts [0 willingly accepts Always accepts
or resents supervision; fails to supetrvision; supetrvision; supervision and
supervision or follow instructions. understands and understands and follows instructions
instructions. follows follows instructions to full intent

instructions without delay.

5. DRIVE is the desire to attain goals.

[0 Does not complete [] Puts forth little effort  []  Strives to [0 Most often Completed work
work goals in a to achieve work Complete major Completes all work exceed
timely or satisfactory goals. work goals in a goals on or before established goals;
manner; shows timely manner deadlines. shows consistent
practically no initiative to
initiative increase

productivity.

6. JOB KNOWLEDGE is the information concerning work duties which an individual should know for satisfactory job performance.

[ Poorly informed [J Lacks knowledge of [] Basic [ Thoroughly [ Has mastery of all

about work duties some phases of

work.

understanding;

can answer most

questions.

Page 122

understands all
phases of work.

phases of job.




Page 2 of 3

Critical
Factors

UNSATISFACTORY IMPROVEMENT NEEDED SATISFACTORY ABOVE SATISFACTORY  OUTSTANDING

7. ALERTNESS is the ability to grasp instructions, to meet changing conditions, and to solve problem situations.
|:| [J Inattentive; slow to [0 Requires detailed [ Grasps [0 Quickto [ Exceptionally
grasp concepts. explanations and instructions with understand and alert.
instructions average ability. learn.
8. CREATIVITY is talent for having new ideas, for finding new and better ways of doing things, and for being imaginative.
|:| O Disinterested; never [ Shows little interest [J Reasonable [ Frequently [ Continually seeks
suggests ideas for and makes few number of new suggests new new and better
improvement/ suggestions for ideas and ways of doing ways of doing
change. improvement/change workable things; is very things; is
suggestions. imaginative. extremely
imaginative.
9. INTERPERSONAL SKILL is the extent to which the employee relates to the public, other employees, supervisory personnel and
subordinates in a cooperative, tactful and productive manner.
|:| [0 Discourteous & [0 Sometimesneeds [ Establishes and O Always [0 Extremely
antagonistic. to be more tactful. maintains courteous, tactful effective at
effective working & helpful; establishing good
relationships creates good will; inspiring to
public image. others in being
courteous & very
pleasant.
10. ATTENDANCE is coming to work daily and conforming to work hours.
|:| [ Often absent without [0 Laxinattendance [] Usually present [ Very prompt; [ Rarely absent or
good excuse and/or and/or reporting and on time regular in late.
frequently reports for for work on time. (except for attendance.
work late. instances of
protected leave).
11. SAFETY CONSCIOUSNESS is the ability to maintain a safe and orderly work area.
|:| [ Disorderly or unsafe; [d carelessin [J oOrdinarily keeps [ Conscientious [0 Always neat;
repeated violations keeping work area work area neat; about neatness safety conscious;
of safety rules. neat and following follows safety and safety rules exemplary safety
safety rules. rules. record.
12. PERSONAL APPEARANCE is the personal impression an individual makes on others. (Consider cleanliness, grooming, neatness

and appropriateness of dress on the job.)

Page 123




[0 Adversely affects [0 careless about [0 satisfactory [0 careful about O usually well

work relationships; appearance; personal personal groomed and

inappropriate work inappropriate appearance and appearance and always

attire. work attire. appropriate work in selection of appropriately
attire. work attire. attired.

THIS SECTION IS FOR THOSE EMPLOYEES WHO SUPERVISE

13. ABILITY TO SUPERVISE is the knowledge and ability to establish work standards; plan, assign and evaluate the work of
subordinates and meet unit objectives.
[0 cConsistently fails to [0 oOccasionally fails [] Performs the [0 Almost always [0 Exemplary
meet the to meet the basic functions of exceeds the supervisor;
responsibilities of responsibilities of supervision. basic subordinates have
supervision. supervision. responsibilities a superior work
of supervision. production record.

An Outstanding or Unsatisfactory rating must be substantiated in a written statement by the rater.

OVERALL EVALUATION

[J UNSATISFACTORY  [] IMPROVEMENT NEEDED [ SATISFACTORY [] ABOVE SATISFACTORY O
OUTSTANDING

Page 124




Page 3 of 3

MAJOR STRONG POINTS:

AND THESE CAN BE USED MORE EFFECTIVELY BY DOING THE FOLLOWING:

AREAS OF SUGGESTED DEVELOPMENT, WORK PLAN AND GOALS:

AND THESE CAN BE STRENGTHENED AND ACCOMPLISHED BY DOING THE FOLLOWING:

DEPARTMENT HEAD COMMENTS: RECOMMENDED FOR STEP INCREASE: YES [] NO [J NOT APPLICABLE
(|

| have reviewed this report with the employee and have discussed the ratings with him/her. This report is
accurate according to my best knowledge and belief.

SIGNATURE OF DEPARTMENT HEAD: DATE:

EMPLOYEE'S STATEMENT AND SIGNATURE: | have received this report and have had the opportunity to discuss it with
my Department Head. My signature does not necessarily mean that | agree with the report.

SIGNATURE OF EMPLOYEE: DATE:

GENERAL MANAGER USE ONLY: Approval: [ ] Disapproval: []

SIGNATURE OF GENERAL MANAGER: DATE:

Page 125




Description of evaluation terms:

A.

Unsatisfactory work performance is well below the standard expected of a competent worker in that job, a
majority of the time. Unsatisfactory ratings must be substantiated in a written statement by the rater.

Improvement Needed work performance is frequently less than the standard expected of a competent worker
in that job, and may improve with additional training, experience, and/or effort.

Satisfactory Work performance consistently meets the standard expected of a competent worker in that job.

Above Satisfactory Work performance is generally above the standard expected of a competent worker in that
job, a majority of the time.

Outstanding Work performance is consistently and distinctly above the standard expected of a competent
worker in that job; performance is definitely superior; Outstanding ratings must be substantiated in a written
statement by the rater.

[*An employee has the right to respond in writing to an employee performance evaluation. Said
response shall be attached to the performance evaluation and placed in the employees
personnel file.]

Page 126




8080 - APPENDIX “I" - PERSONNEL ACTION FORM

SADDLE CREEK COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT

PERSONNEL ACTION FORM

Last Name

First Name

M.1.

Mailing Address

City

State

Zip

Home Phone #

POSITION

Title:

Status

Salary Range

Step

Current Salary

Hours/Week

Introductory Period

Date of Hire

Anniversary Date

Date of Last Action

Action:

Explanation:

Termination:

Voluntary

Involuntary

Page 127




Effective Date:

Reasons Termination:

Forwarding Address

Recommended by: Approved by: Employee:
Signature Signature Signature
Date bate Date

Title Title Title

Page 128




8090 - APPENDIX “J” - LEAVE REQUEST FORM

SADDLE CREEK COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT

LEAVE REQUEST / ABSENCE REPORT

NAME

DATE OF REQUEST

DATES OF ABSENCE Total Hours Absent
FROM Reason
THROUGH

VACATION [ ]

SICK LEAVE [ ]

KINCARE [ ]

OTHER []

Page 129




EMPLOYEE SIGNATURE DATE

APPROVED [ ] NOT APPROVED [ _|

SUPERVISOR SIGNATURE DATE

Page 130




8100 - APPENDIX “K” - ACCIDENT REPORT - NON-VEHICULAR

Note: This report is prepared exclusively for the use of the SADDLE CREEK Community Services District and its attorneys, and is
an attorney-client communication not to be released without the express approval of the attorney representing the District.

SADDLE CREEK COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT

ACCIDENT REPORT — NON VEHICULAR

LOCATION
OF

INCIDENT

INJURED’S
NAME

AGE

SEX

INJURED’S
ADDRESS

HOME
PHONE

WHERE AT LOCATION
DID ACCIDENT OCCUR?

DATE

TIME

DESCRIBE HOW
ACCIDENT OCCURRED:

WHO WAS THE PERSON IN CHARGE
AT THE TIME OF THE ACCIDENT?

WAS HE/SHE PRESENT [0 YES
AT THAT TIME? O nNo

DID THE INJURED O YES
VIOLATE ANY RULES? [] NO

Describe on Reverse

NAMES OF
WITNESSES

ADDRESS

PHONE

CHECK BOX IF ANY

ARE LOCSD EMPLOYEE

Oo0Ooao

APPARENT NATURE OF INJURY

INJURED PART(S) OF BODY

Page 131




FIRST AID PROCEDURES USED AND BY WHOM IF TREATED BY DOCTOR, GIVE NAME & ADDRESS

DISPOSITION OF INJURED AFTER ACCIDENT

O HoME O HOSPITAL [0 DOCTOR O OTHER (WHERE)

WHO WAS NOTIFIED ? RELATIONSHIP

NAME AND ATTITUDE OF ANY ONE CONTACTING DISTRICT

WAS ANYTHING ELSE DONE FOR INJURED PERSON?

SIGNATURE OF EMPLOYEE COMPLETING FORM DATE TIME

| have reviewed this report and have recorded it in the District’s records.

SIGNATURE OF GENERAL MANAGER DATE TIME

Page 132




8110 - APPENDIX “L” - ACCIDENT REPORT

Page 1 of 2

Note: This report is prepared exclusively for the use of the SADDLE CREEK Community Services District and its attorneys, and is
an attorney-client communication not to be released without the express approval of the attorney representing the District.

VEHICULAR & MOVING EQUIPMENT

(For bodily injury or damage to another’s property or for damage to vehicle or moving equipment you are driving)

DRIVER'S NAME PHONE DATE OF BIRTH

ADDRESS NUMBER OF YEARS
WITH DISTRICT

CITY STATE ZIP DRIVER'S LICENSE NO.

VEHICLE

MAKE OF YOUR VEHICLE YEAR MODEL SERIAL NUMBER LICENSE NUMBER WHERE VEHICLE CAN BE SEEN
TRAILER (IF APPLICABLE) YEAR MODEL AREA OF DAMAGE | USED FOR BUSINESS | ESTIMATED COST OF REPAIR
OYes O NO $

ACCIDENT

DATE OF LOSS TIME OF LOSS | LOCATION (STREET OR HIGHWAY) CITY STATE

WERE POLICE CALLED SCENE? POLICE DEPT. CALLED | DRIVER ARRESTED | TICKETED | VIOLATION
O vyes 0O NO

NAME OF OFFICER BADGE NUMBER

STATION ADDRESS

CLAIMANT 1

OWNER OF OTHER VEHICLE CITY

| AGE ‘ ADDRESS

‘ STATE ‘ ZIP ‘ PHONE

Page 133




DRIVER, IF OTHER THAN ABOVE AGE | ADDRESS CITY STATE | ZIP PHONE

MAKE OF VEHICLE YEAR MODEL LICENSE NO. AREA OF DAMAGE | EST. OF DAMAGE | WHERE CAN VEHICLE BE SEEN?
$

CLAIMANT 2

OWNER OF OTHER VEHICLE AGE ADDRESS CITY STATE | ZIP PHONE

DRIVER, IF OTHER THAN ABOVE AGE ADDRESS CITY STATE | ZIP PHONE

MAKE OF VEHICLE YEAR MODEL LICENSE NO. | AREA OF DAMAGE EST. OF DAMAGE | WHERE CAN VEHICLE BE SEEN?

$

PROPERTY DAMAGE — OTHER THAN AUTO (i.e. FENCE, CANOPY)

OWNER OF PROPERTY ADDRESS CITY STATE | ZIP PHONE

DESCRIBE DAMAGED PROPERTY LOCATION OF PROPERTY CITY STATE | EXTENT OF
DAMAGE

WITNESS INFORMATION

NAME ADDRESS CITY STATE | ZIP PHONE

NAME ADDRESS CITY STATE | ZIP PHONE

LIST OF ALL PERSONS IN VEHICLES:

Page 134




PERSONS INJURED

Page 2 of 2

(USE ADDITIONAL SHEET IF NECESSARY)

NAME AGE NAME AGE
ADDRESS PHONE ADDRESS PHONE

CITY STATE | ZIP CITY STATE | ZIP
OCCUPATION WHERE TAKEN OCCUPATION WHERE TAKEN
CJFATALITY [JPEDESTRIAN CFATALITY [JPEDESTRIAN

[IBLEEDING OR DISTORTED

[JIN YOUR VEHICLE

[JBLEEDING OR DISTORTED

[JIN YOUR VEHICLE

[JwOuUND 1IN CLAIMANT VEHICLE [JwOuUND [CJIN CLAIMANT
VEHICLE
[JUNCONSCIOUSNESS [JUNCONSCIOUSNESS
[INO VISIBLE INJURY- [INO VISIBLE INJURY-
COMPLAINED OF PAIN COMPLAINED OF PAIN
CJOTHER [JOTHER
ADDITIONAL REMARKS
DESCRIBE ACCIDENT VEHICLES 1[0 2 [ PEDESTRIAN

ACCIDENT DIAGRAM
INDICATE NORTH BY ARROW

Page 135




WHAT STREET WERE YOU ON? CLAIMANT 1 CLAIMANT 2

WHAT DIRECTION WERE YOU TRAVELING? CLAIMANT 1 CLAIMANT 2
WEATHER CONDITIONS TRAFFIC CONDITION

Obry OWET [O icy [0 FOGGY [J SNowy [0 LIGHT [0 MODERATE [0 HEAVY
SPEED LIMIT WERE YOU FAMILIAR WITH AREA TRAFFIC CONTROLS

O YEs 0 NOo

SIGNATURE OF EMPLOYEE COMPLETING FORM DATE TIME

[THIS SECTION MUST BE COMPLETED BY SUPERVISOR|

I have reviewed this report and have recorded it in the District’s records.

Signature:

Title: Date:

Page 136




8120 - APPENDIX “M” - PERSONNEL POLICIES AND PROCEDURES (EMPLOYEE
HAND BOOK) ACKNOWLEDGMENT FORM

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT OF RECEIPT OF
SADDLE CREEK COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT
PERSONNEL POLICIES AND PROCEDURES (EMPLOYEE HANDBOOK)

This is to acknowledge that | have received a copy of the SADDLE CREEK Community
Services District Personnel Policies and Procedures (Employee Handbook) and
understand that it contains important information on the District’'s general personnel
policies and procedures applicable to my privileges and obligations as a District
employee.

I acknowledge that | am expected to read, understand, and adhere to District policies
and will familiarize myself with the material in the Employee Handbook. | understand
that:

e | am governed by the contents of the Employee Handbook.

e The District may change, rescind or add to any policies, benefits or practices
described in the Employee Handbook, from time to time in its discretion.

e By signing below, | acknowledge that | have read and will abide by the
requirements in the Employee Handbook.

Employee’s Signature Date

Page 137




Employee’s Name (typed or printed)

Page 138




8130 - APPENDIX “N” - ANTI-HARASSMENT POLICY ACKNOWLEDGMENT FORM

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT OF RECEIPT OF
SADDLE CREEK COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT
ANTI-HARASSMENT POLICY

This is to acknowledge that | have received a copy of the Anti-Harassment and Anti-
Discrimination Policy distributed by SADDLE CREEK Community Services District. By signing
below, | confirm that | have reviewed and will abide by this policy in connection with my
employment with the District.

Employee’s Signature Date

Employee’s Name (typed or printed)

Page 139




RESOLUTION NO. 2018-07

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE SADDLE CREEK COMMUNITY
SERVICES DISTRICT APPROVING A REVISED AND UPDATED PERSONNEL POLICY
(HANDBOOK)

WHEREAS, the Saddle Creek Community Services District (herein referred to as District) is a local
Government agency formed and operating in accordance with Section §61000 et seg. of the California
Government Code; and

WHEREAS, in accordance with California Government Code 61045, (g) The board of directors shall
adopt policies for the operation of the district, including, but not limited to, administrative policies,
fiscal policies, personnel policies, and the purchasing policies; and

WHEREAS, the District has previously adopted personnel policies which are now currently outdated
and in need of organization, update and amendment; and

WHEREAS, the District has prepared draft amendments to said policy as contained herein as Exhibit
A.

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED THAT THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE
SADDLE CREEK COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT DOES HEREBY approve the personnel
policy manual contained herein as Exhibit A.

WH EREFORE, this Resolution is passed and adopted by the Board of Directors of the Saddle
Creek Community Services District on May 15, 2018, by the following vote:

AYES:

NOES:
ABSENT:

Page 140



ABSTAIN:

ATTEST:

Peter Kampa, Secretary

Ken Albertson, President - Board of Directors

CERTIFICATE OF SECRETARY

I, Peter Kampa, the duly appointed and acting Secretary of the Board of Directors of
the Saddle Creek Community Services District, do hereby declare that the foregoing
RESOLUTION NO. 2018-07

was duly passed and adopted at a Regular Meeting of the Board of Directors of the
Saddle Creek Community Services District, duly called and held on May 15, 2018.

DATED:

Page 141



RESOLUTION NO. 2018-09

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE SADDLE CREEK COMMUNITY
SERVICES DISTRICT CALLING GENERAL DISTRICT ELECTION

WHEREAS, an election will be held within the Saddle Creek Community Services District within
Calaveras County on November 6, 2018, for electing governing board Members, and

WHEREAS, Election Code 10403 requires jurisdiction to file with the Board of Supervisors, and the
county clerk, a resolution requesting consolidation with said election.

THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the Saddle Creek Community Services District requests the
board of Supervisors of Calaveras County to consolidate the District Election with the election to be held
on November 6, 2018.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the District agrees to reimburse the County Elections Department
for actual costs accrued because of this consolidation. The District acknowledges that the consolidation
election will be held and conducted in the manner prescribed in Election Code 10418.

ON A MOTION by Director seconded by Director
the foregoing resolution was duly passed and adopted by the following vote on May 15, 2018.

AYES:
NOES:
ABSENT:
ABSTAIN:

ATTEST:

Peter Kampa, Secretary

Ken Albertson, President - Board of Directors

CERTIFICATE OF SECRETARY

I, Peter Kampa, the duly appointed and acting Secretary of the Board of Directors of
the Saddle Creek Community Services District, do hereby declare that the foregoing
RESOLUTION NO. 2018-09

was duly passed and adopted at a Regular Meeting of the Board of Directors of the
Saddle Creek Community Services District, duly called and held on May 15, 2018.

DATED:

Page 142



	Meeting Agenda May 15, 2018
	Saddle Creek Community Services District
	REGULAR BOARD MEETING AGENDA
	999 Saddle Creek Drive, Copperopolis, CA
	6. CONSENT CALENDAR
	7. DISCUSSION AND ACTION ITEMS
	8. STAFF AND DIRECTOR REPORTS:


	Item 6a, Treasurer's Report
	Treasurer's Report Cover Page
	4-18 Budget Analysis
	4-2018 Treasurer's Report
	4-2018 BalanceSheet
	4-2018 BoW CC Transactions
	4-2018 CHECKDETAIL

	Item 6b, Meeting Minutes April 17, 2018
	Saddle Creek Community Services District
	REGULAR BOARD MEETING MINUTES
	1001 Saddle Creek Drive, Copperopolis, CA
	6. CONSENT CALENDAR Director DeBaldo approves consent calendar, Director Hoffman seconds. Consent calendar approved unanimously minus the meeting minutes form the Special Board Meeting held March 21, 2018, they need to be revised and will come before ...
	7. DISCUSSION AND ACTION ITEMS
	8. STAFF AND DIRECTOR REPORTS:


	Item 6b2, Meeting Minutes March 2018
	Saddle Creek Community Services District
	SPECIAL BOARD MEETING MINUTES
	1001 Saddle Creek Drive, Copperopolis, CA
	6. CONSENT CALENDAR No issues with the Board with the consent calendar. Director Russ Absent.
	7. DISCUSSION AND ACTION ITEMS
	8. STAFF AND DIRECTOR REPORTS:


	Item 6d, 08 Resolution 2018-08-Opening Umpqua bank account
	Item 7a, Development of the the 2018-19 fiscal budget
	AGENDA SUPPORTING DATA

	Item 7a1, 2018-19 Proposed Budget
	Item 7a2, 2018-19 Proposed Budget
	Item 7b_HR Handbook approval
	AGENDA SUPPORTING DATA

	Personnel Policy
	CHAPTER ONE – INTRODUCTION
	1000 - Purpose of Employee Handbook
	1010 - Definitions

	A. Anniversary Date:  Date on which employee completes introductory period.  Employee may be eligible for a step merit increase at this time and each subsequent year until the top step of the classification is reached.  Subsequent promotion may change...
	B. Corrective Counseling Plan:  Plan approved by the General Manager to rectify or improve substandard performance.
	C. Employee:  Any person occupying a position approved by the Board of Directors in the District service
	D. Exempt Employee: Employee fulfilling requirements for Executive, Administrative or Professional are exempt employees, as defined by the Fair Labor Standards Act.  An exempt employee is expected to complete his/her assigned duties rather than adhere...
	E. Regular Employee: A Regular Employee is an employee who is hired to work full-time for two-thousand eighty (2,080) hours per year and has successfully passed the Introductory Period.
	F. Part-time Employee: A Part-Time employee is an employee who is hired in a position which is intended to be occupied on less than two-thousand eighty-hours annually.
	G. Temporary Employee: A temporary employee is an employee who is hired in a position that is considered temporary and cannot work more than one thousand-forty (1,040) hours in a year and is not eligible for any benefits except as provide by law. Temp...
	H. Hire Date:  Date on which employee commences work for District.  This date is the basis for seniority and vacation accrual rate once the employee completes the introductory period.
	I. Leave of Absence:  An employee who has permission to be absent from duty for a specified period and purpose pursuant to applicable law and/or District policy.
	J. Reclassification:  A significant change in the duties and responsibilities of a position.  A reclassification upward or downward in the classification series does not change the employee’s anniversary date.
	K. Regular Pay Rate:  The hourly rate paid an employee for the normal work time performing the duties for which that employee has been employed by the District.
	L. Safety Sensitive Position:  Safety Sensitive Positions are employment positions in which usage of drugs or alcohol could clearly endanger the health and safety of the individual employee, other employees, the community and/or others.  These positio...
	1. Their duties involve a greater-than-normal level of trust, responsibility for impact on the health and safety of the community and other employees; and
	2. Errors in judgment could clearly result in mistakes that would endanger the health and safety of the individual, the community and/or other employees; and
	3. Employees in these positions work with such independence or perform such tasks that it cannot be safely assumed that mistakes could be prevented by a supervisor or another employee.
	4. A listing of Safety Sensitive Positions is included as Appendix D.

	M. Step-Merit Increase:  The periodic review of employee performance and possible increase in salary based on performance and duration of employment in any given position.  Any such step increase based on merit are discretionary with the District and ...
	N. Transfer:  At the General Manager’s discretion, a change of an employee from one position to another with the same or comparable duties. 1020 - Introductory Period
	A. Requirement:  All full-time and part-time employees are “at will” employees until satisfactory completion of an introductory period.  An introductory period is regarded as part of the employment examination process and provides the employee’s super...
	B. Length of Introductory Period:  A new and/or returning employee shall be regarded as an introductory employee for the first 365 calendar days of employment.  The introductory period can be extended for a specified period of time, up to an additiona...
	C. Termination During Introductory Period:  Introductory employees serve entirely at the will and pleasure of the General Manager and may be terminated by the General Manager without cause and without right of appeal or hearing at any time.
	D. Completion of Introductory Period:  Upon satisfactory completion of the introductory period, the employee’s supervisor/manager must complete a Personnel Action Form, signed by the General Manager, confirming the satisfactory completion of the intro...
	CHAPTER TWO – EMPLOYMENT – HIRING AND CONDITIONS OF EMPLOYMENT
	2000 - Recruitment

	A. Employment – Hiring:  An applicant for employment shall be evaluated on the basis of his/her submitted material(s), personal interview(s), and demonstrated ability. The District will only solicit applications when position openings exist, when empl...
	B. The District may retain all employment applications for a period of one year or longer if required by law whereupon they may be discarded consistent with law.
	2010 - Pre-Employment Physical Examination

	A. Requirement for Examination:  All offers of employment for regular, part-time, and contract positions shall be made contingent upon the applicant successfully passing a physician’s examination and drug test, if required, to be provided at District ...
	B. Impact of Refusal:  Applicants who refuse to cooperate in the examination and any required testing shall not be considered for employment.
	C. Re-Employed Individuals:  Another pre-employment physical and drug test, if applicable, of an individual who was previously employed by the District will be required if more than three (3) months have elapsed since the individual’s last day of work...
	D. Procedure for Examination:  When the applicant reports to the medical facility for the scheduled examination, identification shall be provided to the facility in the form of a photograph and verifiable signature (e.g. vehicle operator’s license).
	E. Confidential Results:  All examination results shall be kept confidential and disclosed only to those in management with a legitimate need to know.  Results will be kept apart from the employee’s personnel file and placed in a confidential medical ...
	F. Disclosure:  District employment application forms shall contain a notice to applicants as follows:
	2020 - Background Check
	2030 - DMV Record

	A. Submission of Record:  All applicants for positions that are required to drive in connection with their work duties shall submit a current Department of Motor Vehicle record and may be required to provide proof of insurance to the District.  The pr...
	B. Insurability:  All District employees who drive District vehicles as part of their duties must maintain insurability by District’s insurance carrier.  The insurance carrier of the District will be requested to verify eligibility of insurability bas...
	2040 - Immigration
	2050 - Personnel Action Form
	2060 - Employment of Relatives and Disclosure of Personal Relationships

	A. Limitation on Hiring Family Members:  The District does not permit the hiring of a Family Member (as defined below) of any active Board member.  If an existing employee is a Family Member of an individual who is elected to serve on the Board of Dir...
	B. Disclosure Requirement:  Employees are required to immediately notify the General Manager of any relationship that potentially falls under this policy.  If, in the District’s opinion, any of the potential problems noted above cannot be avoided in a...
	2070 - Equal Opportunity Employment
	2080 - Disability Accommodation and Fitness for Duty

	A. Reasonable Accommodations:  The District will make reasonable accommodations for qualified individuals with known disabilities unless doing so would result in an undue hardship in accordance with Federal and State laws.  If you feel you need a work...
	B. Fitness for Duty:  Continued employment with the District is conditioned on an employee being fit and able to perform the duties specified in the applicable job description.  If, in the opinion of the General Manager, an employee is having difficul...
	2090 - Outside Employment

	A. Prohibition of Outside Employment:  No District employee shall be permitted to accept or continue employment in addition to or outside of District service if:
	1. The outside employment leads to a conflict, or potential conflict of interest, for the employee; or
	2. The nature of the outside employment is such that it will reflect unfavorably on the District; or
	3. The duties to be performed in the outside employment are in conflict with the duties involved in District service.
	4. The District employee’s performance of District duties is compromised or otherwise adversely impacted by the outside employment.

	B. Notification Requirement:  An employee who plans to accept such employment shall notify his or her supervisor immediately prior to commencing outside employment and obtain approval for the outside employment.
	C. Usage of District Property:  An employee who engages in outside employment shall not be permitted to use District records, materials, equipment, facilities, or other District resources in connection with said employment.
	2100 - Separation from District Employment

	A. Resignation:  An employee can resign District employment at any time.  To allow for proper transition of duties, the District requests – but does not require – that employees provide the District with at least two (2) weeks advance notice of resign...
	B. Layoffs:  Whenever, in the judgment of the District Board, it becomes necessary, due to the lack of work, absence of need for a position, material change in duties, curtailment of public services, lack of funds, other economic considerations, the G...
	1. Employees to be laid off shall be notified as soon as practicable and given at least fourteen (14) calendar days prior notice.  A layoff is not subject to grievance or appeal.
	2. Employees laid off or demoted in good standing under this policy shall be eligible for re-employment with the District.  The names of all persons laid off or demoted in accordance with this policy shall be entered upon a re-employment list.  If, wi...

	C. Involuntary Termination:  The District can terminate employment of employees who have not completed the introductory period for any reason or no reason in accordance with the Introductory Policy.  Employees who have attained regular status can be t...
	CHAPTER THREE – HOURS OF WORK AND COMPENSATION
	3000 - Compensation

	A. New Introductory Employees:  All newly appointed introductory employees shall be paid at the first step of the salary range for the position to which the introductory employee is appointed except as provided elsewhere herein.
	B. Advanced Step Hiring: If the General Manager finds that qualified applicants have greater experience or competencies than required at the first step of the salary range, the General Manager can extend an offer higher than the first step.
	C. Increase in compensation other than Cost of Living Adjustments (Step-Merit Increase):  After one year in a salary step (on the employee’s Anniversary Date), employees may qualify for a merit increase to the next step, provided management has determ...
	D. Cost of Living Adjustments:  Annually, the Board may consider a Cost of Living Adjustment (COLA).  If the COLA is approved, the District Salary Schedule will be adjusted accordingly, thus keeping the schedule current.  Therefore, an employee may re...
	E. Promotion:  Employees promoted to a position with a higher salary range shall be placed on the step of the range allocated to the new classification which would grant such employee an increase in pay no greater than five percent (5%).  The increase...
	F. Lateral Transfer:  When an employee transfers to a different position or classification with similar responsibilities as his/her existing position, the affected employee shall be placed at a salary range within the new classification that is most c...
	G. Supplemental Wages (for withholding purposes):  The Internal Revenue Service defines supplemental wages to include bonuses, commissions, overtime pay, payments for accumulated sick leave, severance pay, awards, prizes, back pay, retroactive pay inc...
	3010 - Pay Periods / Paydays
	3020 - Hours of Work

	A. Workweek:  The work-week shall consist of seven (7) consecutive days from 12:01 o’clock a.m. Saturday through midnight Friday.
	B. Workday Hours:  The regular hours of work each day shall be consecutive except for interruptions for meal periods.  The regular working day is generally 7:00 a.m. until 3:30 p.m.  Employees shall be at their assigned work location, ready to start w...
	C. Meal Periods and Rest Breaks:  Employees are provided with a half-hour (30 minutes) break for lunch, a mid-morning break of fifteen (15), minutes and a mid-afternoon break of fifteen (15) minutes.  Break time must be used on a daily basis.  Time al...
	D. Tardiness:  If an employee cannot report for work at the scheduled start time, then that employee is required to notify his/her immediate supervisor before his or her scheduled start time.  Tardiness may be cause for disciplinary action, up to and ...
	Whenever an employee will not be reporting or returning to his/her assigned duty station during scheduled work hours he/she shall contact his/her supervisor by telephone or in person and explain the reason for his/her proposed absence
	Failure to make this required notification without a justifiable reason will be considered a serious breach of policy that may result in corrective action being initiated against the offending employee
	Additionally, employees’ who fail to return or report to their assigned duty station during scheduled work hours without a valid reason (such as sickness, family emergency, etc.) shall be considered as being in violation of this Policy and may result ...
	.
	E.
	3030 - Overtime

	A. Overtime Discouraged:  The District discourages overtime whenever possible.
	B. Overtime Approval Required:  Employees shall not work overtime without first obtaining approval from his or her supervisor or the General Manager.  When overtime is necessary and authorized by the General Manager or designated Supervisor, it shall ...
	1. Time worked in excess of forty (40) hours in a work-week.
	2. Time worked on a designated holiday.
	3. Overtime compensation will not be paid to FLSA Exempt Employees.
	4. Compensation for overtime is paid at a rate of one and one-half times the employee’s regular hourly rate.
	5. Overtime shall always be paid in accordance with current federal and state laws.

	CHAPTER FOUR – DISTRICT EQUIPMENT, PROPERTY AND REIMBURSEMENT
	4000 - Uniforms

	A. Requirement for Uniforms for Maintenance Personnel:  All regular maintenance personnel are required to wear the designated District provided uniform while on regular duty.   The District will supply all qualifying employees with specific products t...
	B. Cost of Uniforms:  The cost of such uniforms and/or protective clothing that employees are required to wear shall be borne by the District.
	C. Damage to Uniforms:  Employees are responsible for any loss or damage of uniforms and/or protective clothing caused by negligence or misuse.  Off-duty wearing of District provided uniforms and/or protective clothing is prohibited.  Upon termination...
	D. Shoes:  Employees who are exposed to foot injuries or hazardous mixtures shall wear appropriate foot protection, as outlined in the Safety Manual.  The District will reimburse the employee up to $100.00 for the initial purchase of a pair of safety ...
	4010 - Use of District Vehicles & property

	A. Limitation of Use of District Property:  District vehicles, maintenance equipment, power equipment, tools, cell phones, computers, and other property shall only be used for District business and operations.  No District employee or Board member sha...
	B. Exemptions:  Exemptions must be pre-approved by the General Manager or his/her designee and may be allowed for general public good will and the general benefit of the District.
	C. Requirements:  Employees who are required to use District vehicles shall:
	1. Be aware they are on public display when driving a District vehicle and must conduct themselves accordingly.
	2. Be aware that if any violation results in a citation, it must be reported immediately to the supervisor.  Thereafter, it is the employee’s responsibility to address the citation in a legally compliant manner.  The employee may be subject to Distric...
	3. Fasten seat belts at all times and see to it that passengers do the same.
	4. District cell phone use policy is strictly enforced.  Refer to the Safety Manual for the entire policy.

	D. Animals:  Animals of any kind are prohibited from being transported in District vehicles or brought by employees onto District property, unless properly designated as a “service animal”.
	E. Purchase of Surplus Equipment:  Employees of the District shall not receive or be permitted to buy surplus District equipment or other property.
	F. Employees shall not remove anything (Firewood, rocks, building materials, etc.) from the District property. This includes both during and after working hours, unless given specific written approval. Violation of this policy may be subject to discip...
	4020 - Technology Usage

	A. Usage of District Technology Resources:  The District may provide various technology resources to its employees, including computers, cell phones, smart phones, tablets, electronic mail, internet access, and other forms of technology.  These resour...
	B. Privacy:  Subject to current legal requirements an employee cannot expect privacy rights to extend to any use of District-owned technology resources, equipment, or supplies.  The District has the right to monitor and inspect all technology resource...
	C. E-mail Usage:  All District employees, consultants and other non-employees utilizing electronic communications with the District (hereinafter “E-mail users”) must abide by the following requirements:
	1. District Property:  The District’s electronic systems and the contents thereof are the sole property of the District and therefore not considered personal.  Communications sent over the System are subject to monitoring by the District and may be su...
	2. E-mail Retention:  E-mail messages which are intended to be retained in the ordinary course of the District’s business are recognized as official records that require protection/retention in accordance with the California Public Records Act.  Becau...
	3. Improper Use:  All of the following will be considered and treated as improper use which is strictly prohibited:
	a. Use of the System for transmitting any information that is discriminatory, harassing, or obscene, including but not limited to: comments based on race, national origin, gender, sexual orientation, age, disability, religion, or political beliefs.
	b. Use of the System for transmitting any information that counsels insubordination, harms close-working relationships, publicizes a personal dispute, undermines the District’s ability to provide public services through its employees or harms the inte...
	c. Use of the System to solicit, promote or proselytize others for non-job related commercial ventures, religious or political causes, or other non-job-related activities.
	d. Use of the System in any way that communicates with the Board of Directors in such a way as to violate the Ralph M. Brown Act.

	4. Attorney-Client Privilege:  E-mail messages transmitted to or from District Legal Counsel and/or his/her employees and agents are considered to be confidential work product communications and subject to the attorney/client privilege.
	5. Pre-Approval of Outside Information:  All materials – diskettes, flash drives, CDs, DVDs, applications, documents, downloaded materials, etc. – brought into the workplace from external sources must be approved by the General Manager before being in...
	6. Monitoring:  The District reserves the right to monitor the System including reviewing, auditing, and disclosing all matters sent over and/or stored in the System.
	7. Personal Cellular Phones: Personal calls during the work hours, regardless of the phone used can interfere with employee productivity, safety and may be distracting to others. Therefore, employee use of cell phones for personal business is only per...
	8. Personal Use of District-Provided Communication Devices: Where job or business needs demand immediate access to an employee, the District may authorize issue of a business cell phone, and/or two-way radio for work-related communications. In order t...
	a. All employees understand that while some minimal personal use is inevitable, a District provided phone is intended for District business calls only. Call summary reports (i.e. number of minutes used) are distributed to supervisors on a periodic bas...
	b. Employees in possession of District equipment (e.g., cellular phones, pagers, radios, etc.) are expected to protect the equipment from loss, damage or theft. Upon resignation, termination of employment, or at any time upon request, the employee wil...

	9. Cellular Phone Use while Operating a Vehicle:  Employees whose job responsibilities include driving or equipment operation should refrain from using their phone/communication device while driving a District vehicle or while driving any other vehicl...
	a. Drivers shall comply with all federal, state, and local laws and regulations regarding the use of mobile technology devices including cell phones. Incoming or outgoing cellular phone calls are not allowed while driving. Sending or reading text mess...
	b. If acceptance of a call is unavoidable and pulling over is not an option, employees are expected to keep the call short, use hands-free options, refrain from complicated or emotional discussions and keep their eyes on the road. Special care should ...
	c. In situations where job responsibilities include regular driving and acceptance of business calls, hands-free equipment may be provided to facilitate the provisions of this policy. District vehicles are furnished with hands-free cellular equipment....
	d. Driving while distracted in the State of California is a moving violation. Accidents incurred while the driver is using a cellular phone may be considered to be preventable and the driver may be subject to disciplinary action. Employees who are cha...
	e. Failure to follow this policy may result in disciplinary action, including and up to termination.


	D. Incidental Personal Use:  Employees are allowed incidental personal use of the District’s Technology Resources during non-working periods.  This incidental personal use shall not interfere with District business.  Even if technology resources are u...
	E. Social Media:  Employees are not allowed to use the District’s Technology Resources for personal access to any type of social media, including Facebook, Twitter, blogs, etc.  These items (and any others properly characterized as forms of social med...
	F. Discipline:  Anyone found to have engaged in any of the prohibited practices mentioned above will be subject to termination of System access, disciplinary action up to and including termination of employment.
	4030 - Vehicle Cost Reimbursement

	A. Rate of Reimbursement:  When an employee is authorized to use his/her personal vehicle in the performance of District work, he/she shall be reimbursed for the cost of said use on the basis of total miles driven and at the rate specified in the Inte...
	B. Pre-Approval Required:  Employees shall request approval to use a personal vehicle in lieu of a District vehicle in writing to the employee’s supervisor. Use of personal vehicles shall not be authorized for the performance of District work if a sui...
	C. Proof of Insurance:  Proof of insurance that meets the minimum insurance requirements of the State of California shall be required by the District of any employee using a personal vehicle in the performance of District work.
	D. Accident:  Should a vehicle accident occur during an employee’s travels for District purposes, the employee’s personal vehicle insurance will be considered primary.
	4040 - Business Travel and Reimbursement

	A. Use of District Vehicles:  An employee must obtain permission from the General Manager to use a District vehicle.  Any out of pocket expenses, such as parking and tolls, shall be reimbursed upon presentation of receipts.
	B. Use of Private Vehicle:
	1. If an employee is authorized to use his/her private vehicle on District business by the General Manager, he/she shall be compensated at the prevailing IRS per diem mileage rate.
	2. Use of personal vehicles shall not be authorized for the performance of District work if a suitable District vehicle is available.
	3. Every attempt shall be made to coordinate work so that District vehicles are available and operational for the performance of said work.
	4. Proof of insurance that meets the minimum insurance requirements of the State of California shall be required by the District of any employee using a personal vehicle in the performance of District work.

	C. Air/Other Travel:  When the distance may be too great for driving a vehicle, an employee may be authorized to commute by other modes (air, bus, train, etc.).  The District shall reimburse the employee for all required and reasonable commute-related...
	D. Lodging:  It is the policy of the District to exercise prudence with respect to hotel/motel accommodations.  It is also the policy of the District for Board members and staff to stay at the main hotel/motel location of a conference, seminar, or cla...
	E. Meals: Meals may be reimbursed at the actual cost, when accompanied by a receipt, provided that the expense is reasonable.
	An employee shall be eligible for breakfast reimbursement if they are required to leave prior to 6:30 a.m. in order to reach his/her destination on time and dinner reimbursement if they arrive back in after 7:30 p.m.  The employee may be authorized a ...

	F. Employees are not to claim reimbursement for other employees except for expenses shared in common, such as taxi fares.
	G. Credit Cards:  Credit cards may be provided to designated employees for use in connection with District business.
	4050 - Accepting & Providing Gifts
	4060 - Education and Training

	A. Education Required as a Condition of Employment:  Attendance at seminars, conferences and/or training sessions will be treated as hours worked when:
	1. Attendance is required to maintain certification for the current job classification of the employee or when attendance is directed by the General Manager or his/her designee;
	2. The Seminar, Conference and/or Training Session is not offered during regular working hours; and
	3. The General Manager has approved the attendance.

	CHAPTER FIVE – BENEFITS
	5000 - Benefits and Insurance Coverage

	A. Medical Expense Insurance: The District provides medical insurance to the Maintenance Manager, Maintenance Supervisor, and all full-time employees up to nine-hundred and thirty-four dollars ($934.00) per month for employees only, or greater amount,...
	B. Dependents: Employee may enroll eligible dependents but shall pay all premium costs related to such dependents. The scope of coverage, the specific providers, and the payment of premiums may be subject to review and revision by the Board of Directo...
	C. The District does not provide dental or vision insurance.
	D. New employees are eligible for health insurance the first day of the month following thirty days of employment.
	E. Workers’ Compensation Insurance:  All District employees will be insured against injuries received while on the job in accordance with State law.
	5010 - Vacation

	A. Limitations on Accumulated Vacation Time:  An employee shall be able to accrue no more than one-hundred twenty (120) hours of vacation once the maximum vacation accrual is reached, vacation time will no longer be accumulated.  Once the vacation acc...
	B. Termination:  At termination of employment for any reason, the District shall compensate the regular fulltime employee for his/her accumulated vacation time at his/her straight time rate of pay at the time of termination.
	C. Unpaid Leave of Absence:  No vacation accrues during any unpaid leave of absence.  An employee is not permitted to borrow on future accrual of vacation benefits.
	D. Holidays:  If a holiday falls on a workday during an employee’s vacation period, that day shall be considered as a paid holiday and not vacation time.
	E. Requesting Vacation:  Employees must submit vacation requests to their supervisor.  Supervisors will consider requests in light of all relevant criteria, including operational concerns, seniority, scheduling issues, leave balances, timing of the re...
	F. Introductory Employees:  Introductory employees accrue vacation time during their introductory period and are subject to the same policies for use as regular fulltime employees.
	G. No Cash-Out During Employment:  Vacations are provided by the District to employees as a period of time away from work with pay for the purpose of rest, relaxation, and recreation.  This respite is a benefit and is intended as an aid in maintaining...
	5020 - Holidays

	A. Days Designated as Holidays:  The following days shall be recognized and observed as paid holidays:
	B. Requirements:  All regular work shall be suspended and employees shall receive one (1) day’s pay for each of the holidays listed above.  An employee on a leave without pay will not receive holiday pay.  In order to receive holiday pay, you must wor...
	C. Holidays on Weekends:  Whenever a holiday falls on Saturday, the preceding Friday shall be observed as the holiday.  Whenever a holiday falls on Sunday, the following Monday shall be observed as the holiday.
	D. Work on Holidays:  If any employee works on any of the holidays listed above, he/she shall, in addition to his/her holiday pay, be paid for all hours worked at the rate of time and one-half (1½) his/her regular rate of pay or as otherwise specified...
	5030 - Sick Leave

	A. Definition of Sick Leave:  Sick leave is defined as absence from work due to illness, non-industrial injury, or quarantine due to exposure to a contagious disease.
	B. Usage:  Sick leave may be used for dental and doctor appointments, including the actual time spent at the appointment and a reasonable amount of time to travel to and from the appointment.  The employee must report to work prior to the appointment ...
	C. Kin Care: In any calendar year, an employee may use accrued sick leave, up to the amount earned during six months of employment, to attend to the illness of an immediate family member as defined in Section 1010 (I).  After this maximum allotment is...
	D. Rate of Accrual:  Employees shall earn sick leave at the following rates:
	Full time regular and introductory employees accrue 5.87 hours of sick leave per month (Accrued each pay period) up to a maximum of one-hundred-twenty (120) work days. Such employees may use such sick leave for existing healthcare, or preventative car...
	Part-time regular and introductory employees accrue one hour of sick leave for every 30 hours worked, beginning with their first day of employment. Such employees may accrue up to a maximum of forty-eight hours or six workdays, and may use such sick l...
	Accumulated Sick leave is not available for cash out upon termination or retirement.
	Employees who work overtime do not accrue any additional sick leave credit.
	E. Requirements:  Sick leave shall not be used in lieu of or in addition to vacation leave.  If an employee calls in sick the day before a holiday, the employee will not be eligible for holiday pay.
	F. No Borrowing or Advance Accrual:  An employee is not permitted to borrow on future accrual of sick benefits.
	G. Unpaid Leave:  Sick leave does not accrue during any unpaid leave of absence.
	H. Notification Requirement:  In order to receive compensation while on sick leave, the employee shall notify his/her supervisor a minimum of 30 minutes prior to the time for beginning the regular work day that illness will prevent them from coming to...
	I. Abuse of Sick Leave:  If an employee is absent due to illness, if the District reasonably suspects abuse of sick leave, if there is a pattern of sick leave usage, or if an employee’s sick leave balances are consistently maintained at a low level, a...
	J. Not Guaranteed Benefit:  Sick leave is a benefit provided to employees for sporadic time off work in the event of true illness or need for medical care.  Employees are not guaranteed the ability to take all sick leave that may accrue except as prov...
	CHAPTER SIX – FAMILY AND MEDICAL LEAVE
	6000 - Family and Medical Leave

	A. Basis for Family and Medical Leave:  Family and Medical Leave may be taken for the birth of the employee’s child, the placement of a child with the employee for adoption or foster care, to care for the employee’s spouse, child or parent who has a s...
	B. Eligibility:  To be eligible for Family and Medical Leave, you must have at least 12 months of service with the District and must have worked at least 1,250 hours during the 12-month period preceding the date the leave is to begin.
	C. Duration:
	1. Except as provided below with respect to certain types of military-related leave, Employees may take up to a maximum of 12 workweeks of Family and Medical Leave within a 12-month period.  The District uses a rolling twelve-month period to determine...
	2. Leave may be taken intermittently (in blocks of time or on a reduced-time schedule) if the leave is for the serious health condition of the employee or the employee’s family member and if such intermittent leave is medically necessary as determined...
	3. Intermittent leave may be taken in two-week increments for the birth or placement of a child.  Intermittent leave for a shorter period (at least one day) may be taken on a maximum of two occasions.  Any leave taken for the birth, adoption, or foste...

	D. Procedures:
	1. It is employee’s responsibility to contact the General Manager in writing as soon as you become aware of the need for family and medical leave.
	2. If the leave is for the birth, adoption, or foster placement of a child, or for planned medical treatment for a serious health condition of the employee or family member, the employee must provide at least 30 days’ advance notice before the leave i...
	3. If the leave is needed for the employee’s own serious health condition, the employee must provide a certification from the health care provider stating:
	a. The date of commencement of the serious health condition;
	b. The probable duration of the condition;
	c. That the employee is unable to work at all or is unable to perform any one or more of the essential functions of his/her position because of the employee’s serious health condition.

	4. At the conclusion of leave, the District will require certification by the employee’s health care provider that the employee is fit to return to his/her job.
	5. If the leave is needed to care for the serious health condition of a family member, the employee must provide certification from the health care provider stating:
	a. The date of commencement of the serious health condition;
	b. The probable duration of the condition;
	c. An estimate of the amount of time that the health care provider believes the employee needs to take in order to care for the child, parent, or spouse; and
	d. Confirmation that the serious health condition warrants the participation of the employee.

	6. If the Family and Medical Leave request is for the employee’s own serious health condition and the District has reason to doubt the validity of the medical certification provided by the employee, the District may require, at its expense, a second o...
	7. Recertification may be required if the employee requests an extension beyond the original certification.

	E. Compensation and Benefits:
	1. Family and Medical Leave is unpaid.  An employee taking family and medical leave due to the employee’s serious health condition must substitute all accrued sick leave, unused paid vacation, personal leave, paid time off, and short-term salary conti...
	2. For any period of time that an employee is eligible for and is receiving wage replacement benefits under any type of disability benefit plan (i.e., short- or long-term disability benefits), the employee is not required to use accrued personal time ...
	3. An employee taking Family and Medical Leave will be allowed to continue participating in any health and welfare benefit plans in which he/she was enrolled before the first day of the leave (for up to a maximum of 12 workweeks) at the level and unde...

	Service Member Family and Medical Leave:
	Eligible employees are entitled to such leave in the following instances:
	4. Military-Related Leave:  Eligible employees with a spouse, child, or parent on active duty or called to active duty in the National Guard or Reserves in support of a contingency operation may take up to the normal 12 weeks of leave because of any “...
	5. Military Caregiver Leave:  An eligible employee who is the spouse, son, daughter, parent, or next-of-kin of a covered service member (includes a current member of the Regular Armed Forces as well as the National Guard or Reserves) may take up to 26...

	F. Amount of Leave:
	1. For a qualifying exigency, an employee is entitled to a maximum of 12 weeks leave (when combined with leave for any other qualifying reason) in accordance with the rolling 12-month period measured backward.
	2. To care for an ill or injured service member, an eligible employee is entitled to a combined total of 26 weeks of leave for any FMLA-qualifying reason during the single 12-month period that starts when the leave begins.  During this 12-month period...

	G. Other Military Leave Entitlements:  The District also complies with any applicable leave entitlements provided by any state or local law.  Where allowed, military leave under this policy runs concurrently with these other leaves.
	H. Procedures:  Please contact the General Manager as soon as you become aware of the need for any type of service member Family Medical Leave.  Except in the case of exigency leave for short-notice deployment, the District requires certification of t...
	I. Reinstatement:
	1. Upon return from a Family and Medical Leave, an employee will be reinstated to his/her original position or to a comparable position with equivalent pay, benefits, and other employment terms and conditions.  However, an employee has no greater righ...
	2. Reinstatement may be denied to certain salaried “key” employees.  Such employees will be notified of this possibility at the time the leave is requested.
	3. If an employee fails to report to work promptly at the end of the leave, the District will assume that the employee has resigned.
	6010 - Pregnancy Related Leaves and Transfer Privileges

	A. Eligibility for Leave:
	1. The District provides pregnancy disability leaves of absence without pay to eligible employees who are temporarily unable to work due to a disability related to pregnancy, childbirth, or related medical conditions.
	2. Employees who are affected by pregnancy or a related medical condition are also eligible to transfer to a less strenuous or hazardous position or to less strenuous or hazardous duties, if such a transfer is medically advisable and can be reasonably...

	B. Procedures for Requesting Leave:
	1. An employee should make requests for pregnancy disability leave to his/her supervisor at least 30 days in advance of foreseeable events and as soon as possible for unforeseeable events.
	2. A health care provider’s statement must be submitted verifying the need for pregnancy disability leave and stating:
	a. The date on which the employee became disabled due to pregnancy, childbirth or related medical condition or the date on which the need for a transfer became medically advisable;
	b. The probable duration of the period or periods of disability or the need for transfer; and
	c. A statement that, due to the disability, the employee is unable to perform one or more of the essential functions of her position without undue risk to herself, the successful completion of her pregnancy, or to other persons, or that the transfer i...

	3. Re-certification may be required if the employee requests an extension beyond the original certification.
	4. Any changes in this information contained in the health care provider’s statement should be promptly reported to the General Manager.

	C. Length of Leave:
	1. Full-time employees are normally granted unpaid leave for the period of the disability, up to a maximum of four months (or 17 1/3 weeks or the maximum amount of leave provided for other disabilities subject to current law.  Part-time employees are ...
	2. The pregnancy disability leave does not need to be taken in one continuous period of time but can be taken on an as-needed basis.  In other words, leave may be taken intermittently or on a reduced work schedule when determined medically advisable b...
	3. An employee taking pregnancy leave must substitute all accrued sick leave before continuing on an unpaid basis.  The employee may substitute all accrued paid vacation and sick leave, before continuing leave on an unpaid basis.  Substituted paid lea...

	D. Benefits During Leave:
	1. Employees on leave will not continue to accrue vacation or sick leave time and will not be paid for holidays during the leave, unless otherwise required herein, or applicable law. However, when an employee is out on leave that is protected by the F...
	2. The District will allow the employee to continue participating in any health and welfare benefit plans in which he/she was enrolled before the first day of the leave (for up to a maximum of 17 1/3 workweeks) at the level and under the conditions of...

	E. Return to Work:
	1. So that an employee’s return to work can be properly scheduled, an employee on pregnancy disability leave must provide the General Manager with at least two weeks’ advance notice of the date she intends to return to work.
	2. When a pregnancy disability-leave ends, an employee will be reinstated to her original position or to a comparable position with equivalent pay, benefits, and other employment terms and conditions.  However, an employee has no greater right to rein...
	3. An employee returning from pregnancy disability leave must submit a health care provider’s verification of his/her fitness to return to work.
	4. If an employee fails to report to work promptly at the end of the pregnancy disability leave, the District will assume that the employee has resigned.
	6020 - Workers’ Compensation
	All employees are covered for Workers’ Compensation, effective the first day of employment. Workers’ Compensation provides employees and/or their beneficiaries with certain benefits in the event of a work-related illness, injury, or accidental death. ...
	All payments for lost wages or salary due to a legitimate work-related illness or injury, medical treatment, and any other benefits will be made by the workers’ compensation claims administrator or insurance carrier as required by law. Workers’ Compen...
	The following policies apply to any employee, compelled to be absent due to injury, illness or disability covered under Worker’s Compensation Benefits, provided the District is in receipt of a certification form from a recognized medical professional ...
	1. Unpaid leave of absence:  Employees are allowed to take unpaid leave of absence while receiving Worker’s Compensation benefits.  The duration of the leave will be determined on a case by case basis, considering both the injured employee’s medical c...
	2. Use of Sick Leave and Vacation Time:  Employees can use accrued sick leave on a prorated basis to make up the difference between compensation received by him/her as regular salary and the amount received as worker’s compensation.  After sick leave ...
	3. Limitation on Benefits:  Employees will not accrue vacation or sick leave benefits during the periods of absence referenced in paragraphs A and B above.  Unless an employee is using accrued vacation, employees will not be paid for holidays during t...
	4. Return to Work:  Employees may return to work only after a recognized medical professional certifies that the employee is capable of resuming all of the duties of the employee’s position.  The District may, in its discretion, provide modified or li...


	F. Termination:  Consistent with current policy and legal requirements, the District may terminate employment upon receipt of medical evidence that the employee will be permanently unable to resume his/her position, the employees’ job no longer exists...
	6030 - Early Return to Work

	A. Purpose:  The purpose of this program is:
	1. To assist employees in the transition from disability to full recovery while continuing to be a productive part of the work force, while minimizing the deterioration of the employee’s work skills, health and attitude that may result from prolonged ...
	2. To provide management with a constructive program to reduce the cost of Worker’s Compensation and to minimize the loss of productivity.

	B. Determination:  The General Manager will determine the employee’s eligibility for the program, placement in modified/alternative work, record keeping, and monitoring the progress and full return to work of the employee(s) in the Early Return to Wor...
	C. Timing:  The modified/alternative work will be implemented as soon as possible so as to minimize lost time and wages.  The temporary/modified/alternative work assignment is not considered to be part of the regular staffing pattern.  The employee mu...
	D. Scheduling Concerns:  An Early-Return-To-Work Program participant is encouraged to schedule physical therapy and doctor’s appointments around his/her work schedules to avoid loss of earning power and to prevent disruption of business.  If this cann...
	E. Requirement to Report Changes:  If employee’s health status changes, it must be reported immediately to his/her supervisor and the General Manager.  The employee’s medical condition, including limitations and restrictions given by the treating phys...
	F. Periodic Evaluation:  While on the temporary modified/alternative work program, an employee who has experienced an on-the-job-injury, will be evaluated every thirty (30) days and when his/her medical condition has been determined to be permanent an...
	G. Duration of Assignment:  A modified/alternative job offer will be made only when the work is available and of benefit to the District.  The modified/alternative work, if offered, will end with the date the employee receives a regular release, and m...
	6050 - Jury Duty Leave
	6060 - Voluntary Leave of Absence Without Pay

	A. Usage of Vacation:  Voluntary leaves of absence may be taken in conjunction with, and at the conclusion of, an authorized use of vacation.  Voluntary leaves of absence without pay will only be authorized once all available vacation time has been us...
	B. Limited Job Guarantee:  Due to the District’s limited work force, maintenance of job classifications for the term of a voluntary authorized leave of absence without pay cannot be guaranteed beyond the date of the end of the approved leave period.
	C. Continuation of Benefits:  Medical and other insurance benefits will continue during any period of unpaid leave of absence provided that (1) the employee pays the entire cost of his or her medical benefit premiums, and (2) such continuation coverag...
	6070 - Other Leaves

	A. Voting Time:  If an employee’s work schedule would prevent him or her from voting on Election Day, the District will give up to two (2) hours off to vote.  The employee must give the supervisor at least two (2) days advance notice of the time neede...
	B. Military Service:  The District will provide an unpaid leave of absence to accommodate service in the Armed Forces, military reserves, and National Guard as required by federal and state law.  The length of the military leave will be determined in ...
	1. Circumstances have so changed as to make the re-employment impossible or unreasonable;
	2. The employment prior to the military leave was for a brief, nonrecurring period with no reasonable expectation that the employment would continue indefinitely or for a significant period; or
	3. In other circumstances allowed by law.

	C. Spousal Military Leave:  Employees who work twenty (20) hours or more per week may obtain up to ten (10) days of unpaid leave if they have a spouse or registered domestic partner on leave from active duty in the United States Armed Forces, Army Res...
	D. Domestic Violence:  Employees who are the victims of domestic violence or sexual assault may take time off without pay in accordance with California law to obtain any relief (e.g., a temporary restraining order) to help ensure the health, safety, o...
	E. Bone Marrow and Organ Donation:  Employees may take up to thirty (30) days paid leave for organ donation and up to five (5) days paid leave for bone marrow donation, as long as the employee seeking leave provides written verification that he or she...
	CHAPTER SEVEN – WORKPLACE CONDUCT AND PERFORMANCE/DISCIPLINE
	7000 - Attendance and Punctuality
	7010 - Dress and Grooming Standards
	7020 - Performance Evaluation

	A. Periodic Reviews:  The responsible supervisor shall conduct a scheduled performance review of each employee at least annually and prior to the date upon which an employee is eligible for increases in compensation based on merit (See Section 3000). ...
	B. Format and Content:  Performance evaluations shall be in writing on forms prescribed by the General Manager or other responsible managing employee.   The written evaluation will be presented to and discussed with the employee by the evaluator and e...
	1. Unsatisfactory work performance is well below the standard expected of a competent worker in that job, a majority of the time.  Unsatisfactory ratings must be substantiated in a written statement by the rater.
	2. Improvement Needed work performance is frequently less than the standard expected of a competent worker in that job, and may improve with additional training, experience, and/or effort.
	3. Satisfactory work performance consistently meets the standard expected of a competent worker in that job.
	4. Above Satisfactory work performance is generally above the standard expected of a competent worker in that job, a majority of the time.
	5. Outstanding work performance is consistently and distinctly above the standard expected of a competent worker in that job; performance is definitely superior; Outstanding ratings must be substantiated in a written statement by the rater.

	C. Signature:  The performance evaluation shall be signed by the evaluator (typically the employee’s immediate supervisor), and the employee’s manager (if the manager is not the evaluator).  The evaluation shall be reviewed by the General Manager.
	D. Unscheduled Evaluations:  Unscheduled performance evaluations may be made at the discretion of the General Manager or other responsible managing employee or his/her designated representative.
	7030 - Safety and Workplace Injuries

	A. Smoking in the Workplace:  Smoking, including the use of smokeless tobacco products, is not permitted in the District office or other District workspaces, worksites, District buildings, or while in or operating District vehicles or equipment.
	B. Accident Reporting:  All on-the-job injuries shall be reported to the employee’s immediate Supervisor, no matter how minor.  The Supervisor shall make an immediate report to the his/her Supervisor where appropriate documentation shall be made.  All...
	C. Injury Accident and Damage Report:  In addition to immediately reporting on-the-job injuries to the Supervisor, employees must complete an injury, accident, and damage report within twenty-four hours of occurrence, (unless a damaged vehicle is out ...
	D. Employee use of Safety Glasses and ear plugs is required when working with blowers. Lawn mowers, and any area that has flying particles, objects or dust that can be potentially dangerous. Safety glasses must pass the “pencil test” and have the Z87 ...
	E. Employees are directed to check fluids in the District’s carts and equipment prior to using or operating, and to make sure that the fluid levels are at the specific correct level.
	7040 - Anti-Harassment and Anti-Discrimination Policy

	A. Purpose:  All employees, applicants, volunteers, and independent contractors (“workers”) working for the District are to be treated with respect and dignity.  The District is committed to providing an atmosphere free of harassment and discriminatio...
	B. Harassment Prohibited:  Harassment includes conduct that has the purpose or effect of unreasonably interfering with an individual’s work performance; creating an intimidating, hostile, threatening or offensive working environment; or adversely affe...
	1. Oral or Written harassment such as epithets, jokes, derogatory comments or slurs based on race, sex, religious creed, color, national origin, ancestry, age, marital status, sexual orientation, medical condition, political or union affiliation, phys...
	2. Physical harassment such as assault, touching, impeding or blocking movement, or any physical interference with normal work or movement when directed at an individual; and
	3. Visual harassment such as derogatory posters, cartoons or drawings, based on one of the categories above.
	4. Sexual harassment includes, any unsolicited, offensive or unwelcome sexual advances, requests for sexual favors, and other oral or written, visual, or physical conduct of a sexual nature which occurs under any of the following circumstances:
	a. Submission to such conduct is made either expressly or by implication a term or condition of an individual’s employment;
	b. Submission to or rejection of such conduct by an individual is used as a basis for employment decisions affecting the individual; or
	c. Other examples of sexual harassment include unwelcome sexual flirtations or propositions; verbal abuse of a sexual nature; graphic verbal comments about an individual’s body; sexually degrading words used to describe an individual; and the display ...
	d. Sexual harassment also includes gender-based harassment by a person of the same gender.


	C. Retaliation Prohibited:  Retaliation against an employee for reporting violations of this Policy or for participating in the investigation of a harassment or discrimination complaint is strictly prohibited.
	D. Procedures regarding all complaints of harassment including retaliation:
	1. It is important that employees inform the District as soon as possible about any prohibited harassment because nothing can be done to remedy the situation if the District does not know that it exists.
	2. Any individual who feels comfortable doing so should let a fellow employee know when that employee’s behavior or comments are offensive or unwelcome, even if the situation does not rise to the level of a violation of this Policy.  However, individu...
	3. Any individual who believes that they have been or are being harassed in violation of this Policy shall report this violation to his or her supervisor, the General Manager, or any District supervisor with whom the individual feels comfortable speak...
	4. Any individual who is aware or suspects that another person has been harassed in violation of this Policy shall report this violation to his or her supervisor, the General Manager, or any District supervisor with whom the individual feels comfortab...
	1. Each supervisor has the responsibility of maintaining a work environment free of harassment.  This responsibility includes being available to discuss this Policy with the workers that they supervise and to assure the workers that they are not requi...
	2. Any supervisor who fails to take appropriate action to report or address harassment, discrimination or retaliation issues can and will be disciplined by the District.

	E. Investigation:
	1. Process:  The District will investigate all complaints of harassment in a prompt, objective, and thorough manner, including interviews of those with relevant knowledge where appropriate.  The District’s investigation will be designed to maintain, t...
	2. Resolution:  After investigation, the District will communicate the confidential findings (i.e., “sustained” or “not sustained”) to the complainant, the alleged harasser, and members of management with a legitimate need to know.
	3. Appropriate action:  If there is a finding that harassment in violation of this Policy has occurred, the District will take appropriate and immediate action to end any harassment and prevent its recurrence.  This may include imposing discipline.  S...

	F. Further Information:  Employees are urged to contact the General Manager if they have any questions or concerns about this Policy.
	7050 - Workplace Violence

	A. No Violation Tolerated:  The safety and security of employees and customers are very important to the District.  Threats, threatening behavior, acts of violence, or any related conduct which disrupts another’s work performance or the District’s abi...
	B. Prohibited Conduct:  Any person who makes threats, exhibits threatening behavior, or engages in violent acts on District property or toward other District employees may be removed from the premises pending the outcome of an investigation.  Threats,...
	C. Disciplinary Action:  Violations of this policy will lead to disciplinary action that may include dismissal.  In addition, the District will also refer the matter to the appropriate law enforcement authorities.  In addition, if the source of such i...
	D. Notification:  Employees are responsible for notifying the General Manager or any other Supervisor of any threats which they have witnessed, received, or have been told that another person has witnessed or received.  Employees should also report an...
	E. Restraining Order:  Each employee who receives a protective or restraining order which lists District premises as a protected area is required to provide the General Manager with a copy of such order.
	7060 - Drugfree Workplace and Testing

	A. Purpose of this Policy:  The purposes of this policy are:
	1. to establish and maintain a safe, healthy working environment for all employees;
	2. to ensure the safety and health of all District employees, customers, and members of the public with whom District employees interact;
	3. to ensure the sound reputation of the District and its employees within the community and industry;
	4. to reduce the number of injuries to persons or property; and
	5. to reduce absenteeism and tardiness and to improve productivity.

	B. Testing/Policy Requirements:  As an employee of the District, you will be required to submit to alcohol/drug testing in accordance with the terms of this policy.  The following rules represent the District’s policy concerning substance abuse, effec...
	1. The unlawful possession, manufacture, distribution, dispensation, or use of any illegal substance is inconsistent with the District’s objective of operating in a safe and efficient manner and is strictly prohibited.  Accordingly, no employee shall ...
	2. Employees taking physician-prescribed medications which impair their job performance should not report to work.  An employee who is using prescription or over-the-counter drugs that may impair the employee’s ability to safely perform the job, or af...
	3. The use of alcoholic beverages by employees engaged in the operation or maintenance of the District’s equipment and/or facilities is inconsistent with the objective of operating in a safe and efficient manner.  Accordingly, no employee shall use or...
	4. Lockers, desks, and storage areas are the property of the District and must be maintained according to the District’s standards.  All such areas must be kept clean and are to be used only for work-related purposes.  The District reserves the right,...
	5. As a condition of continued employment, employees must abide by this and all other policies in this Handbook.  As a further condition of continued employment, any employee who is convicted of a violation of any criminal drug statute related to the ...

	C. Authorized and Unauthorized Conduct:  District adheres to the following:
	1. Customary Use of Over-the-Counter Drugs:  Nothing in this policy is intended to prohibit the customary and ordinary purchase, sale, use, possession, or dispensation of over-the-counter drugs, so long as that activity does not violate any law or res...
	2. Off-the-Job Conduct:  This policy is not intended to regulate off-the-job conduct, so long as the employee’s off-the-job use of alcohol or legal drugs does not result in the employee being under the influence of or impaired by the use of alcohol or...

	D. Drug Testing:  The District will conduct drug testing under the following circumstances:
	1. Pre-employment:  All initial offers of employment for safety sensitive positions with the District will be made contingent upon satisfactory completion by the applicant of a pre-employment drug and alcohol screen (bodily fluid testing).  Positive t...
	2. For cause testing:  If the District has a reasonable suspicion that an employee is (1) intoxicated or under the influence of drugs or alcohol, or (2) has used drugs or alcohol on the District’s premises or during working time, the employee may be d...
	3. Post-accident:  Any employee involved in an on-the-job accident or injury resulting in personal injury or property damage exceeding $1,000 may be required to submit to an alcohol/drug test.  “Involved in an on-the-job accident or injury” means not ...

	E. Manner of Testing:  The District will refer the applicant or employee to an independent, National Institute on Drug Abuse (NIDA)-certified medical clinic or laboratory, which will administer the test.  The District will pay the cost of the test.  W...
	F. Counseling/Employee Assistance:  Employees who suspect they may have alcohol or drug problems, even in the early stages, are encouraged voluntarily to seek diagnosis and to follow through with the treatment as prescribed by qualified professionals....
	G. Accommodations:  Nothing in this policy is intended to diminish the District’s commitment to employ and reasonably accommodate qualified disabled individuals.  The District will reasonably accommodate qualified disabled employees who must take lega...
	7070 - Job Abandonment
	7080 - Open Door Policy
	7100 - Grievance Procedure

	C. Grievance Procedure Steps:
	a. Level I, Preliminary Informal Resolution:  Any employee who believes he/she has a grievance shall present the matter orally to his/her immediate supervisor within five (5) working days after the employee knows, or reasonably should know, of the cir...
	b. Level II, General Manager:  If the grievance has not been resolved to the employee’s satisfaction at Level I, the grievant must present his/her grievance in writing on a form provided by the District (attached hereto as Appendix “A”) to the General...
	i. A concise statement of the grievance including specific reference to any law, policy, rule, regulation and/or instruction deemed to be violated, misapplied or misinterpreted;
	ii. The circumstances involved;
	iii. The decision rendered by the immediate supervisor at Level I;
	iv. The specific remedy sought.

	c. Basic Rules:  If an employee does not present the grievance or does not appeal the decision rendered regarding the grievance within the time limits specified above, the grievance shall be considered resolved.
	7110 - Discipline and Appeals Procedures

	A. Purpose:  The purpose of this procedure is to establish the types of actions for which an employee can be disciplined and the disciplinary measures that may be used.
	D. Exclusive Remedy:  The procedure set forth in this Procedure shall be exclusive, and the failure of an employee to utilize the provisions herein shall constitute a waiver of any claim to relief.
	E. Application:  These Procedures apply only to Regular Employees.  Regular Employees do not include Introductory Employees, the General Manager, the District Legal Counsel, or any employee hired on a temporary, special, provisional, seasonal, emergen...
	F. Grounds for Discipline:  Discipline may be taken against an employee for “good cause.”  Good cause exists where any fact or set of facts, based upon relevant circumstances, may be reasonably relied upon in the exercise of discretion as a basis for ...
	a. Fraud in securing employment
	b. Abuse of sick leave or other violation of sick leave policy
	c. Violation of any lawful or reasonable regulation or order made and given by an employee’s supervisor; insubordination
	d. Theft or misuse of District property
	e. Misuse of District credit cards and/or violation of purchasing policies
	f. Negligence in the performance of duties
	g. Incompetence
	h. Inefficiency
	i. Inexcusable neglect of duty
	j. Inattention to or dereliction of duties
	k. Tardiness
	l. Unexcused absences
	m. Use, possession, being under the influence of, sale/purchase or offer to sell/purchase illegal drugs and narcotics or alcohol during working hours or after working hours on District property
	n. Falsification of District records
	o. Dishonesty
	p. Fighting or other abusive conduct toward employees or the public during working hours
	q. Improper or unauthorized operation of District vehicles or equipment
	r. Deliberate destruction or damage to District property, public property or the property of another employee
	s. Possessing unauthorized firearms on District property or during hours when the employee is employed by the District
	t. Private or personal use of District equipment, vehicles, tools or materials without prior approval of the General Manager
	u. Violation of safety rules or unsatisfactory driving record
	v. Conviction for a felony or misdemeanor
	w. Refusal to take and subscribe any oath or affirmation which is required by law in connection with his/her employment
	x. Harassment, or
	y. Violation of District rules, regulations, standard operating procedures, or policies or any other reasons related to employment with the District.

	G. Level of Discipline:  The District has the discretion to determine the appropriate level of discipline in the circumstances involved.  The District is not obligated to follow any particular level or order of discipline.  The severity of any action ...
	a. Types of Discipline – Minor:  No right to appeal is available to challenge minor discipline.
	i. Corrective Counseling:  Corrective counseling is a verbal warning accompanied by written documentation.  Corrective counseling may be provided to an employee whose conduct or performance must be improved.  The counseling should detail the areas for...
	ii. Written Reprimand:  A formal written notice to an employee which summarizes previous related disciplinary action, if any, which details conduct subject to discipline and which advises that continued conduct at such levels may result in suspension,...

	b. Types of Discipline – Major:
	i. Suspension:  The temporary removal of an employee from the service of the District without pay.  A suspension of this type does not include suspension pending an investigation into alleged misconduct.
	ii. Pay Reduction:  The reduction in pay of one or more pay steps where performance falls short of normal established standards or where performance is clearly inadequate in one or more of the critical job duties for the position.
	iii. Demotion:  As a result of disciplinary action, the removal of an employee from a position to one of lower grade or classification.
	iv. Dismissal:  The removal of an employee from the service of the District.


	H. Disciplinary Procedures for Major Discipline:  The following procedures apply when major discipline is imposed.  These procedures do not apply when minor discipline is imposed.
	a. Notice of Intent-to-Discipline for Suspension, Pay Reduction, Demotion or Dismissal:  Where the proposed discipline is major, as defined, a Notice of Intent-to-Discipline, signed by the Supervisor or General Manager, supporting the discipline shall...
	i. The proposed discipline.
	ii. The effective date of the discipline.
	iii. The reasons for the discipline.
	iv. All documents which support the discipline.  Copies of the documents upon which the discipline is based shall be attached to the Notice of Intent.

	b. Service:  Notice of Intent-to-Discipline shall be served on the affected employee by:
	i. Personal service; or
	ii. If personal service is not feasible, by first class certified mail, return receipt requested, to the last known mailing address of the employee.

	c. Informal Hearing Procedure (Skelly hearing):  The employee shall be given an opportunity at an informal hearing to show why the proposed major discipline should not be imposed prior to its imposition.
	i. The hearing will be conducted by a Reviewing Officer who shall be the General Manager or a responsible person designated by the General Manager (either another District managerial employee or an individual from an outside organization).  The Review...
	ii. At the hearing, the employee shall be given an opportunity, either orally, in writing, or both, to explain why the proposed discipline should be revised or cancelled.  The hearing is not an evidentiary hearing.  It shall be tape recorded.
	iii. If an alternate Skelly officer conducts the Skelly hearing, then that individual, within five (5) days of the hearing, shall provide a recommendation to the individual who issued the Notice of Intent as to whether to uphold, lessen, or withdraw t...
	iv. Within five (5) days after the hearing or receiving a recommendation from an alternate Skelly officer, the managerial employee who issued the Notice of Intent shall issue an order upholding, lessening, or withdrawing the proposed discipline.  The ...
	v. The decision will be served on the employee as provided in Section F.2.  The decision shall also inform the employee of his/her right of appeal as provided in Section H, below.


	I. Appeal from Minor Discipline:  Corrective counseling and written reprimands are not subject to appeal.  These forms of minor discipline are considered final when provided to the employee.  The employee’s only form of challenge to these types of dis...
	J. Appeal from Major Discipline:  If an employee desires to appeal the decision issued pursuant to Section F.3, above, then the following procedures shall apply.
	a. Appeal Right:  An employee who has received a major form of discipline (dismissal, suspension, pay reduction, or demotion) may appeal to a Hearing Officer.  The appeal must be in writing and filed with the General Manager within ten (10) working da...
	b. Selection of a Hearing Officer:  The parties may mutually and informally agree upon their desired Hearing Officer.  If informal selection is not possible, then the Hearing Officer shall be selected as follows:  The District shall obtain a list of f...
	c. Hearing:  An evidentiary hearing shall be held on the appeal.  The hearing shall be conducted within sixty (60) days of the selection of the hearing officer, unless the General Manager, the Hearing Officer and the appellant agree in writing that th...
	d. Conduct of the Hearing:  The hearing shall be conducted in the manner most conducive to determination of the truth, and the Hearing Officer shall not be bound by technical rules of evidence.  The following procedures shall be follows:
	i. The proceedings shall be tape recorded or steno graphically reported.  The decisions of the Hearing Officer shall not be invalidated by any informality in the proceedings.
	ii. The hearing officer shall determine the relevancy, weight, and credibility of testimony and evidence.  The hearing officer shall base his/her findings on the preponderance of the evidence.
	iii. Each side shall be permitted an opening statement and closing argument.  The District shall first present witnesses and evidence to sustain the discipline and the appellant will then present his/her witnesses and evidence in defense.
	iv. Each side will be allowed to examine and cross-examine witnesses.
	v. The hearing officer, upon a request by either party, may subpoena witnesses and/or require production of other records or material evidence.
	vi. The hearing officer may, prior to or during a hearing, grant a continuance for any reason he/she believes may be important to reaching a fair and proper decision.

	e. Cost:  The District shall bear the cost of the hearing officer and the court reporter or stenographic recording; each side shall bear its own cost of representation.
	f. Attendance at the hearing:  The appellant shall personally attend the hearing, unless physically unable to do so and excused in advance by the Hearing Officer.  Unexcused failure of an appellant to appear at a hearing shall be deemed a withdrawal o...
	g. Resolution by the Hearing Officer:  Within thirty (30) days after completion of a hearing, unless waived by the parties, the hearing officer shall prepare a written decision and serve it on the appellant pursuant to Section F.2., above, and forward...
	h. Advisory to the General Manager:  The decision of the Hearing Office shall be forwarded to the General Manager and is considered advisory. The General Manager shall review the recommendation of the Hearing Officer and may then accept, reject, or mo...
	i. Appeal from the General Manager’s final decision:  If the appellant is dissatisfied with the General Manager’s decision and wishes to seek judicial review, the limitations period provided in Code of Civil Procedure Section 1094.6, shall apply.  The...
	j. Administrative Leave:  Whenever the General Manager determines that it is in the best interest of the District not to have an employee at the workplace – either prior to or during the disciplinary process – an employee may be placed on administrati...

	CHAPTER EIGHT – APPENDICES
	8000 - APPENDIX “A” - Grievance Form
	8010 - APPENDIX “B” - Consent and Release form For applicants
	8020 - APPENDIX “C” - Consent and Release Form for Employees being Requested to Undergo Testing
	8030 - APPENDIX “D” - List of Safety Sensitive Positions
	8040 - APPENDIX “E” - Performance Evaluation Form
	SADDLE CREEK Community Services District
	EVALUATION
	OVERALL EVALUATION

	8080 - APPENDIX “I” - Personnel Action Form
	8090 - APPENDIX “J” - Leave Request Form
	8100 - APPENDIX “K” - Accident Report - Non-Vehicular
	ACCIDENT REPORT – NON VEHICULAR

	8110 - APPENDIX “L” - Accident Report
	8120 - APPENDIX “M” - Personnel Policies and Procedures (Employee Hand Book)  Acknowledgment Form
	SADDLE CREEK COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT

	8130 - APPENDIX “N” - Anti-Harassment Policy Acknowledgment Form
	SADDLE CREEK COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT



	Item 7b, 07 Resolution 2018-07-HR Policy Resolution
	Item 7c, 09 Resolution 2018-09-Special Election



